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List of Abbreviations / Acronyms
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DWS:
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South African Maritime Safety Authority
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SAP:

Systems, Applications & Products

EDTEA:

Economic Development, Tourism

SCM:

Supply Chain Management

and Environmental Affairs

SHEQ:

Safety, Health, Environment and Quality

EIA:

Environmental Impact Assessment

SLA:

Service Level Agreement

EKZN:

Ezemvelo KwaZulu-Natal Wildlife

SM:

Stakeholder Management

EXCO:

Executive Committee

SO:

Strategic Objective

Gr:

Grade

SOP:

Standard Operation Procedure

Ha:

Hectares

SS:

Secondary School

HR:

Human Resources

UW:

Umgeni Water

HRD:

Human Resources Development

SOC:

State Owned Company

HS:

High School

TC:

Traditional Council

ICT:

Information and Communications Technology

YTD:

Year To Date

ICC:

International Convention Centre

VAT:

Value Added Tax

ICUN:

International Union for Conversation of Nature

WWF:

World Wide Fund for Nature

INR:

Institute for Natural Resources

JP:

Junior Primary

KPI:

Key Performance Indicator

KZN:

Kwa-Zulu Natal

MD:

Managing Director

METT:

Management Effectiveness Tracking Tool

MOI:

Memorandum of Incorporation

MOU:

Memorandum of Understanding

NEHAWU:

National Education, Health
and Allied Workers Union

NEMA:

National Environmental Management Act

NEMPAA:

National Environmental Management:
Protected Areas Act
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1. Organisational Overview
1.1. Report Profile
This report outlines an integrated report on Msinsi
strategies and activities for the financial year from 01
July 2019 to 30 June 2020.

Additional information pertaining to this report
and its contents can be obtained from Msinsi
Holdings Head Office at this address:

It focuses on key developments and material issues
in the business environment. It further encompasses
financial and non-financial information, including
the organisational and strategic overview, divisional
reports and organisational performance.

Physical Address:
Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd
Blocks A & C,
18 Old Main Road,
Hillcrest,
3650

The corporate governance report presents individual
Board Members’ profiles and meeting attendance
whilst organisational performance presents the
performance against predetermined objectives and
financial reports/performance.

Postal Address:
Private Bag X 1020,
Hillcrest,
3650

The organizational performance of this annual
report presents Msinsi Holdings’ progress towards
meeting predetermined objectives as per the Annual
Performance Plan of the period under review.
The Annual Financial Statements presented in this
report were audited by The Auditor General (SA).
Msinsi Holdings’ annual report complies with the
statutory disclosure requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) and Companies Act.
Furthermore, it is aligned with the recommendations
of King IV regarding integrated reporting.
This annual report addresses all material issues and
fairly presents the performance of the organisation.
The assurance of the annual report for both
performance and financial information is provided by
Internal Audit and the Audit and Risk Committee of the
Board.

Telephone number: +27 (31) 765 7724
Fax number: +27 (31) 765 7704
Email: info@msinsi.co.za
Website: www.msinsi.co.za
Company Secretary
Mr Sibusiso Madonsela
Umgeni Water Head Office
P.O. Box 9,
Pietermaritzburg,
3200
Tel: +27 (33) 341 1544 /1066
Fax: +27 (33) 342 8895
Company Registration Number:
1992 / 003933/30
VAT Number: 443 0133 779

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring
the integrity of this annual report. The Board confirms
to have approved the release of the 2019/2020 annual
report.
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1.2. Organisational Profile
1.2.1. History

1.2.2. Msinsi’s functional areas

The Msinsi Holdings SOC Limited, trading as Msinsi Resorts
and Game Reserves, was established on 13 July 1992;
and underwent a name change from Shongweni Resources
Reserve (Proprietary) Limited to Msinsi Holdings (Proprietary)
Limited on 25 March 1994.

Msinsi continued to ensure a structure that is aligned to its
mandate and functions. Msinsi’s operations are categorised
into two broad areas which include:

The company converted from a Proprietary (PTY) Limited to
a State owned Company (SOC) Limited with effect from 23
June 2014.

•

The Services Provided to Umgeni Water as part of the
Service Level Agreement or Primary Function,

•

Ecotourism or Secondary Function

Msinsi’s functions are presented in Figure 1.1 below:

Primary function:
Water Resource Management

Biodiversity
Management

Pollution
Control

Secondary Function
Ecotourism

Figure: 1.1. Msinsi Functional Area
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a) Primary Function: Water Resource Management

conserved, managed and controlled efficiently and sustainably.
These dictates are consolidated into three strategic objectives
of the National Water Resource Strategy 2 (NWRS2) viz.:

The primary function of Msinsi is to manage the water
resources of Umgeni Water owned dams and the dams that
Umgeni Water manages on behalf of the Department of Water
and Sanitation. Effective management of the water resource
contributes significantly to the value chain of water service
delivery. Therefore, Msinsi, through its activities, implements
the dictates of the National Water Act; Act 36 of 1998 i.e. that
national water resources are protected, used, developed,

•

Water supports development and reduction of poverty
and inequality.

•

Water contributes to the economy and job creation.

•

Water is protected, used, developed, conserved, 		
managed and controlled equitably and sustainably.

The water resources management function is achieved by performing the following activities:

BIODIVERSITY MANAGEMENT

POLLUTION CONTROL

Alien plant eradication

Waste Management

Fire management
Wildlife and Habitat Management
Resource Utilization
Land and Resource rehabilitation
Environmental Impact Assessment
Manage neighbour relations
Inspections and security patrol
Fence Maintenance
Table 1.1: Water Resources Management Function

b) Secondary Function: Ecotourism
The ecotourism management function is achieved by performing

Hiking Trail at Msinsi Inanda Dam

the following activities:

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT

PARKS MANAGEMENT

HOSPITALITY MANAGEMENT

Roads, Slipways, Buildings and
Grounds

Visitor Facilities, Campground
and Picnic Sites access control

Accommodation

Visitor Safety and Protection

Special events and activities

Visitor Education
Entrance Fee Collection
Logistics management
Table 1.2: Ecotourism Management Functions
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2. Strategic Overview
2.1. Vision, Mission, Strategic Intent, and Benevolent Intent
Msinsi’s vision, mission, strategic intent and benevolent intent is illustrated below:

Vision

To be the water resource
management agency
of choice in the
Water Sector.

Mission

We manage the water
resources and the environment,
to ensure their protection,
development, effective
use and ecological
sustainability.

Strategic
Intent

Benevolent
Intent

Key Partner that enables
Umgeni Water to deliver
efficient and effective
water services.

Provide water resources,
environmental and ecotourism
management services to
improve quality of life and
enhance local economic
development.

Figure 2.1: Msinsi’s Vision, Mission, Strategic Intent and Benevolent Intent
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2.2. Balanced Scorecard
2.2.1. Strategic Goals
The company’s strategy and performance-focused on four strategic goals during the year under review.

1

Strategic Goal 1:
Improve services and be a key partner in the provision of
sustainable environmental and biodiversity management
services around the water resources.

2

Strategic Goal 2:
Improve funding and financial management.

3

Strategic Goal 3:
Improve efficiency of all inputs.

4

Strategic Goal 4:

Strengthen and develop quality human resources, water
resources, infrastructure capacity and sustainability to
support growth.

Figure 2.2: Msinsi’s Strategic Goals
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2.2.2. Balanced Scorecard Perspectives
During the strategy review for the financial year 2020/2021, the Strategic Objectives were revised and decreased from seven
to six. However, for this report and the reporting period and the alignment to the performance report the Strategic Objectives
were reported as implemented during the financial year 2019/2020.
The following figure illustrates the balanced scorecard perspectives and the applicable strategic objectives during
the reporting period.

Financial
Perspective

Customer and
Stakeholder
Perspective

SO1: Increase
services and
customers
SO2: Increase
customer and
stakeholder value

Process
Perspective

Organisational
Capacity
Perspective

SO3: Improve
financial viability

SO5:
Improve all key
systems

SO4: Improve
financial ratios

Figure 2.3: Msinsi’s Balanced Scorecard
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SO6:
Improve
infrastructure assets
SO7:
Increase skills and
competency

Zebras at Msinsi Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve
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2.3. Values
The following figure illustrates Msinsi’s Values:

C
I
P

CUSTOMER CENTRIC

We will partner with Umgeni Water, communities and other stakeholders to provide sustainable solutions
to benefit customers and stakeholders.

INTEGRITY
We commit ourselves to the highest ethical conduct.

PROFESSIONALISM
We adhere to courtesy, honesty and responsibility on our day to day engagement & service delivery.

R

RESPECT

E

ENVIRONMENTALLY CONSCIOUS

C

We value and respect all people equally, cultivate accountability and engage the will of all people.

We are committed to protecting our diminishing natural resources.

CREATIVITY

We will nuture the creative potential of all people.

Figure 2.4: Msinsi’s Organisational Values
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2.4. Msinsi’s Mandate
Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd is a Schedule 3B Public Entity under the PFMA, by virtue of it being a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Umgeni Water. The mandate of Msinsi is primarily to manage the water resources and secondarily to manage ecotourism at
Msinsi’s operational sites.
The water resources management function comprises of the following activities:
•
•

Biodiversity management (to protect the aquatic and associated ecosystems and their biological diversity);
Pollution control (to reduce and prevent pollution and degradation of the water resources);

Ecotourism management function comprises of the following activities:
•
•
•

Facilities Management
Parks Management
Hospitality Management

The legislative mandate; scope; reporting requirements and operating processes of Msinsi
are guided by the following South African legislation:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Water Services Act no. 108 of 1997;
Tourism Act no. 3 of 2014
Constitution of the Republic of SA
The National Water Act (No. 36 of 1998)
National Treasury Regulation of 1999
King IV Report on Corporate Governance of 2009
The Companies Act (No. 71 of 2008)
International Financial Reporting Standards
National Environmental Management Act - NEMA (No. 107 of 1998)
NEMA: Protected Areas Management Act (No. 57 of 2003)
NEMA: Biodiversity Act (No. 10 of 2004)
Firearms Control Act (No. 60 of 2000)
Public Finance Management Act (No. 1 of 1999)
Veld and Forest Fire Act (No. 101 of 1998)
South African Labour Laws

Msinsi Bon Accorde Resort
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2.5. Functions and Business Model

MSINSI HOLDINGS SOC LTD
PRIMARY FUNCTION:
WATER RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
Biodiversity
Management

Pollution
Control

SECONDARY
FUNCTION:
ECOTOURISM
Ecotourism

Figure 2.5: Msinsi Organisational Functions and Business Model

OFFICE OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR
Overall
Accountability

Risk
Management

OPERATIONS
• Water Resource 			
Management
• Biodiversity Management
• Pollution Control
• Visitor Management and 		
Access Control Management

MARKETING

Strategic
Effectiveness

CORPORATE SERVICES
Finance:
Accounting
& Financial
Management

Human
Resources

Supply
Chain
Management

Internal Audit, ICT and Engineering support
by the Parent Company

Figure 2.6: Msinsi’s Business Model

Msinsi carries out biodiversity management at the following operational sites:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Albert Falls Dam
Nagle Dam
Inanda Dam
Hazelmere Dam
Spring Grove Dam
Nungwane Dam
Mhlabatshane Dam;

•
•
•
•
•

EJ Smith Dam;
Umzinto Dam;
iMvutshane Dam
iXopo Home Farm Dam
Darvill Waste Water 		
Treatment Works

Currently, there are no ecotourism activities at Spring Grove, Nungwane,
Mhlabatshane, EJ Smith, Umzinto, iMvutshane, iXopo Dams and
Darvill operational site. Msinsi is mainly responsible for undertaking
biodiversity management activities such as fire management, alien plant
control and access monitoring. Patrols are also undertaken at Spring
Grove Dam to ensure that people do not enter the dam unlawfully.
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The table below illustrates the dam and land size.
Surface Area of
Dam at Full
Supply Level in ha.

GPS
Coordinates

Name of a dam

Land Area in ha.

Total Area in ha.

Albert Falls Dam &
Game Reserve

29.4500° S,
30.4000° E

2354
(Dam area only)

3090 plus 684 ha.
Leased = 3774

3774

Bon Accorde Resort

29.4344° S,
30.4269° E

Inclusive at
Albert Falls

31

31 (land only)

Nagle Dam & Game
Reserve

29.5836° S,
30.6169° E

184
156 (Dam area only)

2288

2472

Inanda Dam & Resort

29.7003° S,
30.8669° E

1469
1463 (Dam area only)

63

1532

Hazelmere Dam &
Resort

29.6003° S,
31.0417° E

329
(New Dam area only)

132

431

Spring Grove Dam

29.32073° S,
29.964884° E

1022

1345.1

2367.1

Nungwane Dam

30.007304° S
30.743709° E

30.7

19

49.7

EJ Smith Dam

30.3245° S
30.671196° E

17.3
(Dam area only)

9.42

26.72

Umzinto Dam

30.31124° S
30.592773° E

7.3
(Dam area only)

55.96

63.26

iMvutshane Dam

29.207259° S
31.027989° E

36 (Dam area only)

16.59

52.59

Ixopo

Lat: - 30.09 2556
Long: - 30.03 5256

20.1 (Dam area only)

15.9

36

Darvill

Lat: - 29.602118
Long: 30.430884

N/A

102.78

102.78

Table 2.1: Dam and land size

The figure below illustrates a graphical presentation of the dam and land size.

Dam and Land Sizes
0,46%
Darvill

0,94%

21,64%

Nagle Dam & Reserve
22,60%

iMvutshane Dam

0,33%

Inanda Dam & Resort
Umzinto Dam

0,48%

3,94%

Albert Falls Dam; Game Reserv e and Bon
Accorde Resort

0,25%

14,00%

EJ Smith Dam
Hazelmere Dam

34,78%

Ixopo Dam

Figure 2.7: Graphical presentation of the dam and land size
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The figure below illustrates the location of Msinsi managed dams.

Msinsi Managed Dams

Figure 2.8: Msinsi’s Managed Dams

Revenue Streams
Msinsi earns revenue from two streams, namely the Water
Resource (Environmental) Management Fee and Ecotourism.
Msinsi performs water resource management functions on
behalf of Umgeni Water based on the service level agreement.
Umgeni Water pays a management fee to Msinsi for services
rendered in respect of the water resource management
functions. This revenue is based on the Corporate Plan that
Msinsi presents annually to Umgeni Water for consideration
and approval. In this regard, the cash flow of this revenue
stream becomes predictable during the financial year.
Ecotourism revenue is generated from utilising the dams and
other facilities for recreation purposes. Revenue from this
stream is unpredictable due to dependence on factors such as
economic conditions, seasons, and weather conditions among
others. There are various initiatives that Msinsi undertakes to
enhance revenues of this stream. Such initiatives include a

15

continued partnership with SANParks for the Wild Card loyalty
product. Msinsi earns a significant share of its sales from the
Wild Card product.

Extended Functions of Msinsi Holdings
During the reporting period, the Board approved the water
resources management function of Msinsi not only to be
confined to the dam sites but to be extended to cover the
up and downstream of the dams. This undertaking supports
Msinsi’s growth strategy and as well as add value to Umgeni
Water in terms of protecting the water in the catchment.
The extended mandate of Msinsi dictates a need to collaborate
with the relevant divisions or departments in Umgeni Water in
order to achieve the mentioned mandate. Engagement with
other relevant external stakeholders will also be a focus area
in the future to achieve effectiveness in executing Msinsi’s
catchment management responsibilities. Some of these

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

functions will be performed as from the new financial year 2020/2021.
The operating environment of Msinsi can be summarised in the diagram below:

National Water Resources Strategy 2 Objectives

Water is
protected,
used, developed,
conserved,
managed and controlled
sustainably and equitably

Bulk Storage
&
Treatment

Umgeni
Water
Board

Bulk High
Quality

Water
Protection

Biodiversity
Management
Conservation

Water
Resources

Water Use

Contribute to
Water Protection
Ensures Water
Supply of Suitable
Quality and
Quantity

Contribute
to Water
Conservation
Programs and
Reconciliation

Engineering
Functions and
Infrastructure

Allocation,
Authorisation
and Oversight
Enforcement

- Resources Quality
Objectives
- RQO Monitoring
Program
- Pollution Prevention
- Land and Water
- Eco Infrastructure
Management & 		
Rehabilitation
- Stakeholder 		
management
Environmental flow
monitoring
- Research & 		
Development

- Water Demand 		
and Conservation
Programs
- Water Reconciliation
(surface and ground
including wetlands)
- Flow monitoring 		
information systems
- Environmental flow
monitoring
- Compliance 		
Monitoring and 		
Enforcement
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Collaborate
on Project Basis

Figure 2.9: Msinsi’s Operating Environment

Activities to effect the
NWRS2 Strategy

Water Resources and Upstream/Downstream of the dams

DIRECT MONITORING 2025 & BEYOND
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Organisational Structure (Management)
The current macro level organisational structure is as follows:

Board
Chairman

Managing
Director

Risk
Management
Officer

PA to the MD

Divisional Head:
Operations

Divisional Head:
Corporate Services

Divisional Head
Secretary

Divisional Head:
Secretary

Reserve Manager:
Albert Falls Dam

Finance
Manager

Reserve Manager:
Nagle Dam

Manager:
Supply Chain
Management

Reserve Manager:
Inanda Dam

Human
Resources &
Admin Manager

Reserve Manager:
Hazelmere Dam
Marketing &
Stakeholder Manager
SHEQ
Coordinator
Project Coordinator

Figure 2.10: Msinsi’s Organisational Structure (Management)
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2.6. Chairman’s Report
I am pleased to present the
Chairman’s Report for the year
ended 30 June 2020.

currently being managed as well as aligning and optimising
the organisation’s resources and processes towards achieving
organisational growth.

In this report I am presenting
the strategic overview of the
company performance, as well
as some of the highlights of the
year 2019/20.

During the year under review, the office of the Auditor General
(SA) undertook the audit assignment of Msinsi Holdings SOC
Ltd. The Board is pleased to report that Msinsi received an
unqualified audit opinion of its annual financial statements as
per the audit conducted by the office of the Auditor General
(SA). Although the organisation has missed the target of a
clean audit, audit findings will be addressed in order to improve
on the external audit opinion in the future.

The core business of Msinsi is
to support Umgeni Water to achieve its mission to “provide
innovative, sustainable, effective and affordable bulk water
and sanitation services”. The entity continues to be vigilant in
its effort to protect the water resources through initiatives such
as pollution prevention and alien invasive plant eradication
among others and thus contributing to improving the quantity
and quality of the water resources. To this extent; the Board
has approved the growth strategy for the entity to expand its
operations to the upstream and downstream of the dams that it
manages. This undertaking provides the opportunity for Msinsi
to play a significant role in catchment management function,
which is crucial to the water service delivery value chain in
terms of water quality and water availability. The Board has
therefore approved that the entity positions and capacitates
itself to perform catchment management activities in its
area of operation. The Board will oversee the progressive
development of this function over the coming years.
Like all other businesses, the COVID-19 and the National
Lockdown that was experienced towards the end of Q3 of the
year under review impacted negatively on the performance of
Msinsi especially on its ecotourism business.
Despite the challenges of COVID-19, I am pleased to report
that the entity has achieved overall performance of 92% of the
targets set in the Annual Performance Plan for the 2019/2020
financial year. Furthermore; the organisation has posted a total
comprehensive surplus of R 3.5 million for the period under
review and this is significant performance improvement when
compared to the previous year surplus of R 2.5 million. The
revenue for the secondary function viz. tourism achieved 49%
of the target and due to the adverse impact of COVID-19 on
the ecotourism operations.The environmental management
fee received by the entity amounted to R54 million when
compared to the R42 million of the previous year. The increase
was due to incorporation of the 7 new operational sites into the
scope of Msinsi during the year under review.

Msinsi’s status as a ‘going concern’ is dependent on the
Annual Management fee it receives from Umgeni Water. We
are grateful to Umgeni Water for providing the Annual Letter of
Support to Msinsi to confirm its going concern status.
The Board had to bid farewell to Board Members Mrs Mbali
Ndlovu and Mr Sibonakaliso Shabalala at the end of the
financial year 2019/20. The entity is grateful to have had the
two members serving in its Board of Directors. Three new
Board Members viz. Mrs Noluthando Radebe, Mr Sikhumbuzo
Mdlalose and Mr Sandile Dlomo have joined the Board of
Msinsi with effect from 01 July 2020.
We look forward as
the Board to benefit from the experience of the new members
and to continue strengthening the effectiveness of the Board
of Msinsi.
In conclusion, I would like to thank my fellow board members
for their support in guiding governance and the performance
of the organisation. The Board values the continuous support
from all stakeholders that interact with Msinsi in the execution
of its mandate.
My gratitude also to the Management and the staff of Msinsi
for their hard work and commitment and I urge them to
continue to improve organisational performance and deliver
on organisational mandate.

______________________
Ms Nomalungelo Mkhize
Chairman: Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd

The organisational design project was concluded and
approved by the Board and this undertaking is responding to
the organisation’s growth strategy, expanding the activities
of the entity up and downstream of the water resources
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2.7. Managing Director’s Report
This report details the performance
of Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd for
the 2019/20 financial year. The
Annual Performance Plan for the
year under review comprised 7
strategic objectives and 49 annual
measurable
result
indicators,
which informed the organisation’s
performance.
Management
executed the Annual Performance
Plan and monitored performance
against predetermined strategic objectives. Detailed
performance report is included in chapter 10 of this annual
report. The predetermined strategic objectives are aligned to
the four Balanced Scorecard perspectives, being Customer
and Stakeholder, Finance, Processes, and Organisational
Capacity.
Msinsi achieved an overall performance of 92% during
the 2019/20 financial year. This is an improvement when
compared to the overall performance of 87% achieved in
2018/19
The break-even position was the financial performance
target for the period under review however Msinsi reports a
comprehensive surplus of R 3.5 million for the year ended 30
June 2020 compared to the comprehensive surplus of R 2.5
million for the year ended 30 June 2019
The tourism-based revenue was 49% of budget and was
9% below the actual tourism-based revenue achieved in
the previous year. The decrease in revenue performance is
due to the COVID-19 and the National Lockdown that was
experienced in March 2020. The ecotourism business activities
were lockdown during Q4 of the period under review hence
the low revenues in this business function. The Wild Card
loyalty product continued to be the highest revenue generating
product followed by accommodation and gate revenue forming
the top 3 revenue generating products for the entity.
The operating expenses were 20% below budget and this
performance is attributed to the lockdown of business activity
during Q4 of the financial year as well as the effectiveness of
the cost containment plans of the entity. The year-on-year
increase in operating expenses is 13% and the increase is
mainly due to the 7 additional operational sites that Msinsi took
over in 2019/20 financial year.
The current assets grew by 99% on the year-on-year
comparison. This increase is due to the R 10.17 million Umgeni
Water Loan account for the Hillcrest Office being moved from
the non-current assets to current assets as a consequence of

19

transferring the office building to Umgeni Water, the cash and
cash equivalents grew by R 4.92 million due to cost reduction
measures.
The 96% increase in current liabilities as mainly due to R 10.1
million Umgeni Water Loan Account being moved from noncurrent to current liabilities.
Reasonable success has been achieved in respect of water
resource management activities as stipulated in the Service
Level Agreement (SLA) with Umgeni Water. Forty-nine (49)
out of 50 SLA obligations were achieved as per the review
conducted with Umgeni Water’s Executive Committee. In this
regard, Msinsi is pleased to have continued to deliver on its
mandate.
On the biodiversity side of the business, Msinsi continues to
review the reserve management plans in order to improve the
entity’s operations. This has culminated in the Nagle Dam
and Game Reserve being declared as a Nature Reserve
under NEM: PAA; an outcome that Msinsi shall explore as a
competitive advantage. A 3-year duration MoU was signed
with the Department of Environment Forestry and Fisheries:
Natural Resources Management; for the invasive alien plant
eradication. This programme is labour intensive and sources
its labour from the local communities.
Progress to address the findings of the “Management
Effectiveness Tracking Tool” baseline audit has been
satisfactory with 98% and 90% medium and long-term
findings having been closed; respectively. The short-term
findings were all closed during the previous financial year. The
adoption of the aforementioned best practice has improved
Msinsi’s approach towards managing its biodiversity.
Through the maturing risk management system, the entity had
four risks in its strategic risk register and all risks were within
appetite and tolerance. These risks are presented in detail in
Chapter 5 of this report.
Msinsi continued to engage and collaborate with various
stakeholders that are key to its operation. Durban Tourism
and Working on Fire are the significant stakeholders
engaged during the year under review and it is expected
that collaboration partnerships shall be concluded with the
aforementioned stakeholders.
All stakeholders that Msinsi has engaged with during the year
under review have added value to Msinsi’s operations. In this
regard, Msinsi acknowledge the following stakeholders:
• Amakhosi in our areas of operation for their support
towards achieving stability of Msinsi’s operations within
their areas.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

•

Municipalities for supporting Msinsi both as stakeholder
and customer.

•

Tourism Bodies viz. Tourism KwaZulu-Natal and Durban
Tourism for collaboration and exchange of ideas in order
to achieve growth of the tourism sector.

•

Media for support in enhancing Msinsi’s brand

•

The Board of Msinsi Holdings SOC, Ltd for directing the

entity towards achieving its mission and remaining
relevant to its mandate
•

Mr Mboniseni Dlamini
Managing Director
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NEHAWU and Msinsi employees for their commitment and
effort towards achieving a sustainable Msinsi Holdings
SOC, Ltd
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3. Corporate Governance Overview
Introduction
Msinsi is committed to sound corporate governance and high standards of business integrity. The Board recognises the
importance of governance structures and processes in ensuring the efficiency, effectiveness and sustainability of the entire
organisation. The strong governance structures and controls and an unwavering commitment to ethical conduct continuously
aid the organisation to mitigate risk, ensure accountability and deliver against the strategy and mandate from the shareholder
(Umgeni Water).
The Corporate Governance structure is as follows:

Board

Company
Secretary

Audit and Risk
Committee

Operations
Committee

Governance
Committee

Ethics Committee, Corporate Risk
Committee, ICT Steering Committee
(within Umgeni Water Group)

Figure 3.1: Corporate Governance Structure

3.1. Board Charter
The Board charter provides the Board with the framework of responsibilities and fiduciary duties.
The Board of Msinsi acknowledges the need for a Board Charter as recommended in the King IV Report on Corporate Governance
in South Africa. The purpose of this Charter is to set out the Board’s role and responsibilities as well as the requirements for its
composition and meeting procedures.

In discharging its responsibilities, the Board adhere to the following principles:
•
•
•
•
•

Accountability;
Transparency;
Responsibility;
Disclosure; and
To the extent required, the Board further adheres to the guidelines, policies or directives set by the Department of Water and
Sanitation (hereinafter referred to as “DWS”) for entities that fall within the Minister of Water and Sanitation’s authority.

The role of the Board as outlined in the Board Charter is:
•
•
•

To provide effective leadership and control in terms of approving Msinsi’s strategy and ensuring control over its operational 		
implementation. The Board is accountable and must take responsibility for both its success and failure.
To represent and serve the stakeholder’s interests by overseeing and appraising the strategies, policies and the performance
of Msinsi.
To ensure that Msinsi continues to operate as a viable and sustainable going concern for the benefit of its customers, 		
employees, the communities it serves and the shareholder. Therefore, it must ensure that it exercises effective control and 		
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•
•
•

provides leadership on material decisions, which have an impact on Msinsi.
To provide oversight on the human, operational and financial resources available in Msinsi to achieve the strategic objectives.
To play a key role in setting, reviewing and monitoring compliance with Msinsi’s values.
To ensure that the shareholder is kept informed of the organisation’s performance and any major developments.

3.2

Functioning of the Board

		 Disclosure, Conflict of Interest and Code of Conduct
Potential conflict of interests is appropriately managed to ensure that the entity and its associates and stakeholders have no
conflicting interests between their obligations to the organisation and their personal interests.
During the year under review the disclosure took place on various occasions amongst others viz.:
•

•
•
•
•

As part of Human Resource Management practice during the recruitment and selection process, members of the selection
panel are also required to declare their relationship or any potential conflict of interest which may arise from knowing, or
previous association with, candidates being assessed.
The Board and Executive Committee members are also required to disclose any interests prior to the commencement of the
meeting proceedings.
Employees complete an annual disclosure or upon appointment.
Suppliers also complete the disclosure of interests.
The progress on the disclosure of interests is reported quarterly in the Ethics Committee of the Board.

Ethics and the Code of Business
In prior years, and including in the reporting year, a decision was taken to integrate Msinsi into various governance committees
of the Group, and as such during the reporting year, Msinsi has fully participated in the Group Ethics Committee and the ICT
Steering Committee. Further to this, all ethical matters are reported through Umgeni Water’s processes.
The Fraud Prevention Plan was reviewed and approved during the reporting period. Msinsi is now a full participant in the Fraud
Hotline Service with Umgeni Water to enable all stakeholders to report suspicions of fraud or otherwise unethical conduct. This
hotline is operated by an external service provider, subject to a contractual agreement with the external service provider with
Umgeni Water.
Furthermore, the Code of Conduct was reviewed in order to account for the organisation’s impact on the external stakeholders.
During the year under review there were no unethical matters and or conflict of interest reported.

Risk Management
Msinsi follows an integrated approach towards risk management. During the planning process, strategic and operational risks
are identified. Risks are continuously monitored to determine, amongst other things, the emerging risks for the organisation.
Quarterly risk review meetings were held during the year under review. Msinsi further participates fully in the Group Risk
Governance Framework. In order to strengthen the operational risk function, the Risk Management Officer was appointed to
operate in conjunction with Umgeni Water. Several Risk Management strategies were implemented that entails re-assessment
of entity strategic risk areas in relation to COVID-19 events and it’s impact within the organisation.

Health, Safety and Environmental Issues
The organisation is in compliance with the Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act 85 of 1993), as all requirements of
the Act to ensure a safe and conducive working environment, were adhered to in respect of training and meetings. No major
incidents or injuries were reported during the period under review. The organisational Occupational Health and Safety policy and
procedure was reviewed as part of strengthening the organisation’s health, safety and environmental management systems. The
SHEQ unit was established to oversee this function.
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3.3. Executive Authority
Umgeni Water is the sole shareholder of Msinsi. The National Water Act, (Act 36 of 1998) outlines the responsibility of the land
owner or management agency of a water resource in terms of environmental management.
The Act states that the person who owns, controls, occupies, or uses a water resource, is responsible for the following:
•
•
•

To protect the aquatic and associated ecosystems and their biological diversity;
To reduce and prevent pollution and degradation of the water resources, and
To allow and control access to the dams for recreational purposes, and make reasonable charges for the use of and entry 		
and use of the water surface.

Furthermore, there are additional pieces of legislation which play a crucial role in the management and mandate of Msinsi.

3.4. Composition of The Board and Members’ Profiles
3.4.1. Composition of the Board
During the reporting period, Msinsi Board of Directors comprised of six non-executive Board members and one executive Board
member, the Managing Director. The Memorandum of Incorporation (MOI) outlines the roles of the Board members and the
Managing Director. Amongst other things the MOI prescribes that the Chief Executive of Umgeni Water or his nominee shall be
the Chairperson of the Msinsi Board and the term of chairmanship will be determined by the term in office as the Chief Executive.
Accordingly, Mr T.B. Hlongwa was the Chairman of Msinsi Board for duration of the financial year under review.
The involvement of Umgeni Water executives in the Board of Msinsi does not negate the Board member’s fiduciary responsibility
to Msinsi. The Board subcommittees are chaired by the independent non-executive Directors, of which the term of office was
extended for further three years during the year under review. The non-executive Board members receive remunerative benefits
and fees as determined by the Minister on an annual basis and in line with their terms of appointment. Therefore, no Board
member is involved in determining his / her own remuneration. Board Members’ emoluments are fully disclosed in the financial
statements of this report.
All board members execute their functions ethically and in a professional manner.

Nomination, election and appointments of members to the Board
The Board of Umgeni Water as a Shareholder monitors and is responsible for the nomination, election and appointment of Board
members of Msinsi Holdings. These processes are conducted in a fair and transparent manner in line with the Board Charter,
the Companies Act and King IV. The nomination of the Board members is decided upon taking into consideration the diverse
skills and experience required by the Board and the suitability of each nominee to serve the Board. The Board term is up to four
years, renewable.
During the latter part of the year under review, the call for nominations of Board members was sent out and the process
culminated in the appointment of three additional independent non-executive Directors to serve on the Board. This decision was
taken post-financial year-end
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Board Membership
As mentioned above the Board Members during the reporting period, including the new Members is depicted in
Table 3.1 below:

No.

Board
Member

Gender

Board

Operations
Committee

Audit & Risk
Committee

Governance
Committee

Male

√

n/a

n/a

√

1

Mr Thami B. Hlongwa1

2

Ms Mbali Ndlovu 2 **

Female

√

√

√

√

3

Dr Bandile Mkhize 3

Male

√

√

√

√

4

Mr Siboniso Shabalala **

Male

√

n/a

√

n/a

5

Ms Manu Pillay

Female

√

√

n/a

n/a

6

Ms Nomalungelo Mkhize

Female

√

n/a

√

n/a

7

Ms Noluthando Radebe #

Female

√

n/a

√

√

8

Mr Sandile Dlomo

Male

√

√

n/a

√

9

Mr Sikhumbuzo Mdlalose

Male

√

√

√

n/a

10

Mr Mboniseni Dlamini 4

Male

√

√

n/a

n/a

#
#

Table 3.1: Board and Committee Membership
1

Board Chairman, Governance Committee Chairman
Operations Committee Chairman
3
Audit & Risk Committee Chairman
4
Managing Director
n/a
Not a member
**
Outgoing member as at 31 July 2020
#
New member with effect from 01 August 2020
2
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3.4.2. Board Members’ Profiles
Board members were appointed to bring a balance of skills and expertise in providing leadership and control to the organisation
and advising top management.

Ms Nomalungelo Mkhize##
Non-Executive Director
Chartered Accountant (SA); BCom Honours.
•
•
•
•
•

Ms Mkhize was appointed as the Director from January 2019.
Executive Finance at Umgeni Water from December 2018.
Has held various roles including Audit Manager in one of the big four audit firms (Deloitte),
Commercial Manager for a packaging company (Nampak)
Group Assistant Finance Manager for a listed company in the agricultural sector
(Crookes Brothers Limited)
• Various senior management positions in consulting firms, the latest being an Executive for 		
Product Development (Bonakude Consulting) and Director (Morar Incorporated).
• Committee Role: Audit and Risk Committee Member
##: Chairperson of the Msinsi Board at the time of reporting

Dr Bandile Mkhize

Non-Executive Director
PhD Philosophy; Masters in Arts, BA Honours, Bachelor of Arts
•
•
•
•
•

Dr Mkhize was appointed as the Director from 16 April 2014.
Dr Mkhize is the former Chief Executive Officer of Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife from 2008 to 2015.
He is currently the Chairperson of Harry Gwala Development Agency.
He also serves on the Board of Trustees of the University of Zululand Foundation.
Among other boards, he has served on the Boards of the Wildlands Conservation Trust,
Johannesburg Tourism, Federated Hospitality Association of Southern Africa
(East Coast Region).
He has travelled extensively abroad.
Committee Role: Audit and Risk Committee Chairperson
Committee Role: Operations Committee member
Governance Committee Member
His term of office comes to an end in September 2021.

•
•
•
•
•

Ms Manu Pillay

Non-Executive Director
Professional Natural Scientist (SACNASP); MSc Eng (Chem)(Chem)
•
•
•
•
•
•

Ms Pillay was appointed as the Director from January 2019
Executive Scientific Services at Umgeni Water from December 2018.
Trustee of the Umgeni Water Retirement Fund from April 2016.
Manager: Strategy & Special Projects at Umgeni Water from 2008 to 2018.
Manager: Water and Environmental Services from 1998 to 2008.
Committee Role: Operations Committee Member
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Ms Noluthando Radebe

Non-Executive Director
Chartered Accountant (SA); BCom Honours.
Appointed as a Non-Executive Director with effect from 22 July 2020.
• Ms Radebe is a seasoned Chartered Accountant with over 20 years of formal experience in
the finance field and a SAICA member-in-good-standing.
• She has served as a non-executive Board Member and trustee in various public sector 		
corporates and private sector organisations.
• She is the founder and managing director of Radebe Professional Advisory Services CC.,
which birthed the Virtual Back Office AAB-SA (Pty) Ltd.
• She is a renowned speaker on business management and compliance administration.

Mr. Sandile Dlomo

Non-Executive Director
Bachelor of Law (LLB)
Appointed as a Non-Executive Director with effect from 22 July 2020.
• Mr. Dlomo is a specialist in Construction Law, Structuring legal relationships through drafting
agreements such as: Heads of Agreements, Shareholder Agreements, Memorandum of
Incorporations, Company Share Sale Agreements, Business Agreements, Association
Agreements and Employment Contracts.
• He is currently serving as the Deputy Chairperson of the KwaZulu-Natal Treasury Department,
Municipality Bid Appeal Tribunal (Ugu District)

Mr Sikhumbuzo Mdlalose

Non-Executive Director
B-Tech in Public Management; ND in Public Management
Appointed as a Non-Executive Director with effect from 22 July 2020.
• Mr. Mdlalose has a vast exposure in leadership who has served in various spheres of society,
this including the understanding of industrial relations and Human Resources.
• He is the Assistant Director, Policy and Planning, KZN Department of Transport 2018-current
• Mr Mdlalose is the member of the National Department of Transport Committee on Public
Transport (2011-current)
• Member of the KZN Provincial Economic Council (2018-current)

Mr Mboniseni Dlamini

Executive Director
Master of Science in Microbiology, Master of Business Administration (MBA),
Diploma in Company Direction, Strategic Turnaround Management Certificate
• Mr Dlamini was appointed as the Managing Director in May 2017.
• He is a member of the Institute of Directors of Southern Africa and Water Institute
of Southern Africa.
• He is the former CEO of Magalies Water from 2010 to 2015.
• He also served as a General Manager of Operations at Umgeni Water
during the period 2008 to 2010.
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Mr Sbusiso Madonsela

Company Secretary
Admitted Attorney of the High Court of South Africa. LLM (UKZN), LLB (UZ); Postgraduate
Diploma in Compliance (UJ); holds qualifications in Construction Contracts and Construction
Adjudication from the University of Pretoria.
• Mr Madonsela was appointed as a Company Secretary from 01 January 2014.
• Umgeni Water Legal Services Manager until December 2013.
• Prior to before that, he was the Competition Commission’s Legal Counsel.
• Has extensive experience in private legal practice.



• Served as a Trustee of the Umgeni Water Provident Fund and is now the current Fund Principal
Officer.
Prior to that
he was the Competition Commission’s Legal Counsel.

Has extensive experience in private legal practice.

Served as a Trustee of the Umgeni Water Provident Fund and is now the current
Fund Principal Officer.
 Mr. Madonsela
was appointed as a Company Secretary from 01 January 2014.
Members’
Demographics


3.4.3 Board

Board Members’ demographics are illustrated in the following three Figures below.

3.4.3 Board Members’ demographics
Board Members’ demographics are illustrated in the following three Figures below.

Age
Number

50-59

3

40-49

30-39

3
1

50-59

40-49
Age Category

30-39

Figure 3.1: Board Members’ Age Profile

RACE

Indian
10%

African
90%

Indian

GENDER
Female,
43%

Male,
57%

African

Female

Male

Figure 3.2: Board Members Race Profile Figure 3.3: Board Members Gender Profile
3.5 BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board Committees are formally constituted and are chaired by non-executive Board members.
The Board Committees assist the Board in the performance of duties and enables effective decisionmaking through providing more detailed attention to matters within the terms of reference. The
committees report to the Board on activities at every meeting. In terms of the Water Services Act, the
Board is authorised to delegate powers to the Committees established by the Board. The functions
and powers delegated to Committees are set out in the written Terms of Reference, which are formally
28
approved by the Board.
The Board had four committees as a support structure in discharging its responsibilities namely:
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3.5. Board Committees
The Board Committees are formally constituted and are chaired by non-executive Board members. The Board Committees
assist the Board in the performance of duties and enables effective decision-making by providing more detailed attention to
matters within the terms of reference. The committees report to the Board on activities at every meeting. In terms of the Water
Services Act, the Board is authorised to delegate powers to the Committees established by the Board. The functions and powers
delegated to Committees are set out in the written Terms of Reference which are formally approved by the Board.
The Board had four committees as a support structure in discharging its responsibilities namely:
•
•
•
•

Operations Committee
Audit and Risk Committee
Governance Committee
Ethics Committee (within the Umgeni Water Group)

3.5.1. Operations Committee
During the reporting period, the Committee was chaired by Ms Mbali Ndlovu and consisted of two (2) additional non-executive
Board members and one (1) executive Board member. The Committee meetings were held as reflected below.
The Committee reviews and recommends to the Board all matters relating to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Capital Infrastructure Planning
Capital Infrastructure Implementation Oversight
Health and Safety
Community Sustainability
Environmental Stewardship
Enterprise Development
Supply Chain Management
Human Resources
Remuneration

The attendance at the Operations Committee meetings during the reporting period is outlined below:
Special
Dates

Normal Meetings
Board Committee
Member

Gender

03/9/19

1. Ms M Ndlovu1

F

#

2. Dr IB Mkhize

M

3. Ms M Pillay

F

4. Ms N Mkhize

F

5. Mr OM Dlamini

M

n/a

08/11/19

20/2/20

02/4/20

14/05/20

n/a

n/a

#

n/a

Table 3.2: Operations Committee Meetings Attendance in 2019/2020

1

- Denotes Chairman
- Attendance
** - Term ended
#
- Absence with an apology
n/a - Not a Member
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Board Committee Member

Gender

1. Mr S Dlomo

M

2. Dr IB Mkhize

M

3. Ms M Pillay

F

4. Ms N Mkhize

F

5. Mr S Mdlalose

M

6. Mr OM Dlamini

M

1

Table 3.3 Operations Committee Membership
1

- Chairperson

3.5.2. Audit and Risk Committee
During the reporting period, the Committee consisted of three (3) non-executive Board members was chaired by
Dr Bandile Mkhize.
The Committee is mandated to achieve the highest level of financial management, accounting and reporting to the shareholder
and to meet the requirements prescribed in section 51(1)(a)(ii) and 76(4)(d) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 29 of
1999), as well as Treasury Regulations, 2005 (Chapter 27.1). The Audit & Risk Committee further performs a critical function of
risk management by ensuring the effectiveness, quality, integrity and reliability of Msinsi’s risk management processes.
The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee takes into account the recommendations in King IV, the Companies Act
(Act 71 of 2008), the Public Finance Management Act (Act 29 of 1999) as amended and Treasury Regulations, 2005, to ensure
alignment to best practice and legislation.
Committee meetings were held four times a year.

Roles and Responsibilities
The Committee’s role and responsibilities shall include the following:
•
•

Audit Functions
Risk Management
Normal Meetings
Board Committee
Member

Gender

1. Dr IB Mkhize 1

M

2. Mr S Shabalala

M

3. Ms M Ndlovu

F

03/9/19

08/11/19

20/2/20

#

#

#

Table 3.4: Audit and Risk Committee Meetings Attendance in 2019/2020

1
#

- Denotes Chairman
- Attendance
- Absence with an apology

Board Committee Member

Gender

1. Ms N Radebe

F

1

2.Dr B Mkhize

M

3.Mr S Mdlalose

M

Table 3.5: Audit and Risk Committee
1

- Chairperson

30

02/4/20

14/05/20

Special
Special
Meetings
Meetings
17/10/19
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3.5.3. Governance Committee
The Governance Committee meets on an ad-hoc basis. The Committee is chaired by the Chairperson of the Board and comprises
two (2) non-executive Committee Chairs. The Committee assists the Board in monitoring and assessing the performance of
executive management to ensure that performance objectives and targets are met. Performance results are considered by the
Operations Committee in determining the remuneration of the Managing Director and other executives to be recommended to
the Board for approval. During the reporting period, the Committee held three meetings as reflected below:
Normal Meetings
Board Committee
Member

Gender

1. Mr TB Hlongwa 1

M

2. Dr IB Mkhize

M

3. Ms M Ndlovu

F

03/06/19

18/09/10

17/04/20

Table 3.6: Governance Committee meeting attendance
1

- Chairperson

The Governance Committee has been re-constituted in line with Committee re-configuration and comprises of the
following members:
Board Committee Member

Gender

1. Mr TB Hlongwa

M

1

2. Mr S Dlomo

M

3. Ms N Radebe

F

Table 3.7: Governance Committee membership
1

- Chairperson

## - Ms N Mkhize was the Chairperson of the Governance Committee at the time of reporting

3.5.4. Ethics Committee
As mentioned above, Msinsi was incorporated into the Umgeni Water’s Ethics Committee structure with effect from 01 July 2018.
Msinsi continued to fully participate as standing members of the Group Ethics Committee during the reporting period. All ethical
matters are reported at Group level and also monitored by Msinsi’s Audit and Risk Committee.
Through the Umgeni Water’s Ethics Committee, the Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that Msinsi is a fair,
transparent and ethical entity and will continue to exercise oversight through Umgeni Water’s already fully functional Ethics
Committee as prescribed in Section 29.1.1 of the Treasury Regulations in the PFMA as well as in line with the requirements of
section 72 (4) of the Companies Act (Act No.71 of 2008).
The Ethics Committee meets four times a year to execute its role and responsibility as prescribed by applicable legislation and
included monitoring the entity’s activities against legal or best practice requirements relating to:
•
•
•
•
•

Social and economic development, including, EE and B-BBEE,
Good corporate citizenship, including promotion of equality, prevention of unfair discrimination, Corporate Social investment
and reduction of corruption, sponsorship, media and advertising,
Environment, health and public safety, including, impact of the organisation’s activities, products and services, biodiversity
management, waste management, energy efficiency and carbon footprint reduction,
Consumer relationships, including, advertising, public relations and consumer protection,
Labour and employment, including, the organisation’s standing in terms of the International Labour Organisation Protocol
on decent work and working conditions, employment relationships and contribution toward education and development of 		
its employees and disciplinary handling,
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•
•

Financial ethics, including, irregular and wasteful and fruitless expenditure, and
Fraud and hotline call management.

The Fraud Prevention Plan is reviewed annually. Msinsi shares a Fraud Hotline Service with Umgeni Water to enable all
stakeholders to report suspicions of fraud or otherwise unethical conduct. This hotline will be operated by an external service
provider, subject to a contractual agreement with the external service provider.
The code of conduct was reviewed in order to account for the organisation’s impact on the external stakeholders. The Code
of Ethics and Conduct was developed and approved by the Board, it was also presented to all employees during the reporting
period.

3.6. Summary of Board Meetings Attendance in 2019/2020
3.6.1. Board Meetings
The attendance at the Board meetings during the reporting period is outlined below:

Special
Meetings

Normal Meetings
Board Committee
Member

Gender

1.

Mr TB Hlongwa1

M

2.

Dr IB Mkhize2

M

3.

Ms M Ndlovu3 **

F

4.

Mr S Shabalala**

M

5.

Ms M Pillay

F

6.

Ms N Mkhize

F

07/6/19

19/9/18

5/12/19

20/3/20

17/4/20

2
3
4

17/10/19

#

#

#

7. Ms N. Radebe +

F

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

8. Mr S Dlomo +

M

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

9. Mr S Mdlalose +

M

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

10. Mr OM Dlamini4

M

Table 3.6: Attendance of Board meetings in 2019/2020

1

05/6/20

Denotes Board Member
Board Chairman
Audit and Risk Committee Chairman
Operations Committee Chairman
Managing Director

n/a not a member
# - Absence with an apology
+ New member with effect from 01/08/2020
** Outgoing member as at 31/07/2020
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3.7. Delegation of Authority
A comprehensive Delegation of Authority Framework governs the authority levels for the Board and management. These are
exercised through various board and management committees. This framework assists the Board to discharge its duties with
Board members’ accountability and responsibility.

3.8. Company Secretariat
The Company Secretary from the parent company (Umgeni Water Board) also serves the Msinsi Board. The Company
Secretary oversees the portfolio of the secretariat, governance advisory services and plays a critical role in legal and
governance advisory to the board, risk and compliance management, and attends all Board and Committee meetings as a
secretary.
The Board and members of the Executive have access to the Company Secretary who is enjoined to guide how
Msinsi should discharge its duties and responsibilities in the best interests of the Company. The Company Secretary
oversees the preparation and coordination of the induction and on-going training of Board members and assists
the Board and its Committees in formulating annual plans, agendas, minutes, and terms of reference as warranted.
The Company Secretary is not the Director of the Company or its parent company and accordingly maintains an independent
and arm’s length relationship with the Board and the Executives.

3.9 Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of the Managing Director and two (2) executives.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day running of the Company to the Managing Director who works with senior management
who assist in this task.
The Executive Committee is the highest executive decision-making structure in the company and central to its role is the
implementation of the Board’s strategy and policy direction and ensuring that all business activities are aligned in this respect.
Msinsi as an operating subsidiary works directly towards enabling Umgeni Water to fulfil its mandate and contracted
obligations.
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3.10. Executive Committee Profiles
Mr Mboniseni Dlamini

Managing Director
Master of Science in Microbiology, Master of Business Administration (MBA), Diploma in
Company Direction, Strategic Turnaround Management Certificate
• Mr Dlamini was appointed Executive Director in May 2017.
• He is a member of the Institute of Directors of Southern Africa and Water Institute
of Southern Africa.
• He is the former CEO of Magalies Water from 2010 to 2015.
• He also served as a General Manager of Operations at Umgeni Water during the
period 2008 to 2010.

Ms Mbali Ngubane

Divisional Head: Corporate Services
Chartered Accountant (SA); B Com Honours Accounting; Advanced Certificate (Auditing).
• Ms Ngubane was appointed as the Divisional Head: Corporate Services effective
on 01 February 2017.
• Prior to joining Msinsi, she was an Audit Manager at the Auditor General of South Africa.
• She has also held a position as a Tax Consultant in the Business Tax Advisory division of
Ernst & Young where she also completed her articles.
• She was a Senior Lecturer at the University of Zululand.

Ms Nokuthula Mthembu

Divisional Head: Operations
Master in Business Administration (MBA), Management Development Programme (MDP),
Bachelor of Science (Geography and Hydrology).
• Ms Mthembu was appointed as the Divisional Head: Operations effective on 01 September 2017.
• Prior to joining Msinsi, Ms Mthembu was a Quality and Environmental Manager at
Transnet Port Terminals (Richards Bay).
• She also held a position of Section Head: Water and Environmental Management Division at
Mhlathuze Water.
• She has worked as a Principal, Senior and Environmental Officer for the National and Provincial
Department of Environmental Affairs respectively
• She worked as a GIS Officer for the then Department of Water Affairs and Forestry.
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4. Operations Overview
4.1. Strategic Objective 1: Increase Services and Customers
Revenue Enhancement Plans were developed as a response, or effort, to increase revenue earned through tourism based
products. The objective of the plan is to make Msinsi’s product offerings more attractive to the customers by introducing a
product mix and enhancing current products and activities.

Revenue in Rands

The figure below illustrates the Top 10 revenues per product in order of revenue generation.
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Figure 4.1: Top Ten Revenue Generating Products

The financial year under review 2019/2020 showed a decline in all revenue streams of the top ten revenues generated. The Wild
Card and the Chalets/Lodges continued to be high revenue generators for the business and were followed by the Gate revenues.
The COVID-19 pandemic impacted the business negatively as the reserves were closed during the lockdown period from
27 March 2020 up to the end of the financial year.
The lockdown resulted in the business not being able to generate revenue for almost 100 days of the financial year. The below
table outlines the variance on the individual top ten products caused by the impact of the national lockdown:
Product

2018/2019

2019/2020

Variance %

Tented Accommodation

332,322

247,522

-26%

Fishing permits

409,747

416,372

2%

Boat Launching Fees

487,174

464,061

-5%

Conferences

580,381

431,381

-26%

Special Events Area

636,137

600,439

-6%

Other Eco -Tourism Revenue

1,417,611

880,092

-38%

Campsites

1,675,037

1,402,175

-16%

Gate Revenue

2,554,450

2,026,166

-21%

Chalets/Lodges

2,967,355

2,149,952

-28%

Wild Card Revenue

3,394,912

2,919,845

-14%

Total Top 10 Products

14,455,126

11,538,005

-20%

Table 4.1: Top Ten Revenue Generated Product
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The 2019/20 financial year, presented a decline trend for the business’ top ten revenue indicators by product. However, the
fishing permits category presented a positive growth of 2% on a year-on-year comparison. The COVID-19 national lockdown
impacted the business negatively, this resulted in all Msinsi product offering being unable to meet the actual sales of the prior
year.
The regulations imposed by government to prohibit traveling and accommodation for leisure during April and June 2020, further
aggravated the negative impact on the accommodation product. The average decline in revenue for all the products listed in the
table 4.1 is 20%.
Over the previous years the Wild Card has been the top performer in the top ten revenue generating products for Msinsi. The
Wild Card contributed R 2,919,845 for the financial year under review, while this contribution was reported as top performer for
the year, the Wild Card product recorded a revenue decline of 14% when compared to 2018/19 financial year.
The special events category reported a decline of 6% when compared with the 2018/19 financial year. The reported decline is
attributed to the lockdown of the events and gatherings during Q4 of Msinsi’s business cycle.

4.2. Wild Card, Accommodation, Camping and Day Visitor Statistics
Figures 4.2 and table 4.2 illustrate consolidated day visitor statistics based on the Wild Card product, accommodation and
camping; and adult, child and pensioner, respectively.

Visitors
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Figure 4.2: Consolidated Wild Card, Accommodation and Camping Visitors over 5 years

Description
Wild Card
Accommodation
Camping

2018/19

2019/20

Variance %

18956

14935

-21%

5879

4592

-22%

17373

13423

-23%

Table 4.2: Wild Card, Accommodation and Camping Visitors

The data reported in Table 4.2, above, indicates the decline in Wild Card, Accommodation and Camping Visitors. This decline is
due to the national lockdown; which fell within the fourth quarter of the business cycle.
The tourism industry was heavily impacted by the country’s economic climate was uncertain and unstable for the reporting
period.
During the period under review, there was a change in the accommodation and camping booking pattern, which changed from
long term bookings of campsites during the December school holidays to weekend visits. This behavioural change is attributable
to the COVID-19 pandemic, which was beginning to spread to South Africa at that time.
The Wild Card product visitors were also negatively impacted by COVID-19.
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Consolidated Day Visitor Statistics
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Figure 4.3: Consolidated day visitor statistics (demographics) over a period of 5 years

Description

2018/19

2019/20

Variance %

Adult

75295

55868

-26%

Child

13373

9528

-29%

Pensioner

6897

5731

-17%

Total Visitors

95565

71127

-26%

Table 4.3: Consolidated day Visitor Statistics

Figure 4.3 and Table 4.3 above, present result comparison for consolidated day visitors at all Msinsi resorts and game reserves.
The business for 2019/20 financial year saw a sharp decline in visitors with children, this was evident with a 29% decline in
the number of children visitors recorded by the resorts, a total of 9 528 children visitors were recorded against 6897 from the
previous financial year.
The adult day visitor numbers dropped by an average of 26% in comparison to the previous financial year and the highest
decline was recorded in Q4 of 2019/20.
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Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve
Situated at one of the largest dams in KZN and only 30 minutes from Pietermaritzburg is Albert Falls Dam and Game Reserve.
This reserve offers accommodation, water sports, nature trails, bird watching and game viewing.
Albert Falls offers 3-star graded accommodation in a form of 16 (2-sleeper) and 4 (6-sleeper) chalets. There are 104 (54
electric and 50 non-electric) campsites with well- maintained ablutions that are serviced daily. The Albert Falls hall can be used
for wedding receptions, parties, conferences etc. and the outdoor lovers can hold small conferences on the thatched gazebo
situated at the Notuli site. Wildlife in the reserve includes several animal species such as the impala, the red hartebeest, oribi,
giraffe, and warthog, buffalo, zebra and a wide variety of birdlife. Visitors can enjoy various types of water sports such as
boating, canoeing, skiing, sailing, fishing, etc. The reserve offers nature trails for adventurous visitors. The game drives offered
by experienced tour guides afford visitors an exciting educational experience on wildlife.

Figure 4.4: Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve Map

Day Visitor Statistics

Visitors
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Adult

Child

2018/19
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Variance %

Adult

19498

15846

-19%

Child

3334

2255

-32%

Pensioner

2535

2355

-7%

Total Visitors

25367

20456

-19%

Table 4.4: Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve Day Visitor Statistics

Pensioner

Figure 4.5: Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve Day Visitor Statistics

Table 4.4 above, presents the recorded statistics for day visitors at Albert Falls, the business managed to retain the pensioner
visitors, despite not being able to operate during the Q4 period, the resort registered a 7% decline in the pensioner visitors during
the period under review. The child category of visitors declined by 32% when compared to the previous financial year whilst the
adult visitor numbers declined by 19%.
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Visitors
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Wild Card

9843

6945

-29%

Accommodation

1774

1251

-29%

Camping

10329

8032

-22%

Table 4.5: Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve Wild Card,
Accommodation and Camping Visitor Statistics

YEAR
Wild Card

Description

Camping

Figure 4.6: Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve Wild Card,
Accommodation and Camping Visitor Statistics

The camping visitors for Albert Falls, showed a decline when compared with the previous year, with 8032 camping visitors
recorded for 2019/20 financial year, compared to 10 329 for 2018/19, which represents a 22% decline. The remaining two
products both reported a decline of 29% in comparison to the previous financial year. The decline in the mentioned activities
at Albert Falls is mainly due to low dam levels that makes the site less attractive to the water sports enthusiast. The National
Lockdown during Q4 also contributed to the decline in performance.

Water Sport Activity at Msinsi Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve
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Bon Accorde Resort
Bon Accorde Resort is located on the western shores of Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve. Set in cool tranquility overlooking
the Karkloof Valley, Bon Accorde Resort exudes serenity. The Resort boasts (10) three star-graded four sleeper self-catering
chalets situated along the water’s edge, affording commanding views of the dam and the distant Karkloof Hills. For those who
prefer a more rustic experience, Bon Accorde offers 20 electrical and nine non-electrical campsites designed to ensure outdoor
lovers enjoy a peaceful night along the shoreline.
The gazebo which is situated on the edge of the dam can be used for garden weddings and parties. The resort offers a lot of
family-oriented activities which can be enjoyed by everyone.
The Resort has an open level area, convenient for outdoor events such as jazz festivals, picnics and other functions. The newly
built conference centre, combined with on-site accommodation, is an excellent venue for hosting small or large conferences,
weddings, year-end events, meetings, training sessions, high teas, baby showers, etc.

Day Visitor Statistics
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Adult

8207

5810

-29%

Child

975

905

-7%

Pensioner

698

754

8%

Total Visitors

9880

7469

-24%

Table 4.6: Bon Accorde Visitor Statistics

YEAR
Adult

Description

Pensioner

Figure 4.7: Bon Accorde Visitor Statistics

Table 4.6 above presents the results for Bon Accorde visitors for the financial year under review. Despite the business being
closed during the entire Q4 period, the pensioner day visitor number grew by 8% when compared to the previous financial year,
whilst the adult and children day visitors declined by 29% and 7%, respectively over the same period. The decline in child day
visitors would be expected to follow the trend for the adult day visitors since the children would be expected to be in the company
of the adults when they visit Msinsi’s facilities.
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2018/19

2019/20

Variance %

Wild Card

1299

938

-28%

Accommodation

3003

1632

-46%

Camping

910

699

-23%

Table 4.7: Bon Accorde Wild Card product, Accommodation
and Camping Visitor Stastics

Camping

Figure 4.8: Bon Accorde Wild Card product,
Accommodation and Camping Visitor Stastics

The decline in the Wild Card and Accommodation visitors is attributed to the lockdown during the Q4 of the business cycle.
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Nagle Dam & Game Reserve
Deep in the heart of the Valley of a Thousand Hills, less than an hour’s drive from both Pietermaritzburg and Durban, lies an
African jewel. At Nagle Dam & Game Reserve, nestling in the foothills of KZN’s very own ‘Table Mountain’, visitors will find
tranquil picnic spots, excellent fishing, canoeing, nature trails and game viewing.
Nagle Dam & Game Reserve offers a variety of accommodation ranging from a twelve sleeper Nagle Lodge, six sleeper Msinsi
Lodge, three-star graded two sleepers’ modern safari tented accommodation, 40 non-electrical campsites and a six-sleeper
backpacker Hatchery Lodge where you can choose to be pampered or be left to enjoy the solitude. An exclusive 20-seater
conference centre, situated on an island in the dam, offers a unique natural location for conferences and workshops.
The year 2019/2020 marked an important milestone for the Reserve as it acquired an official protection status as a Nature
Reserve that is provided for by the National Environmental Management Act 107 of 1998. The legal status awarding followed an
intensive assessment by Institute for Natural Resources (INR), Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife and Conservation outcomes. The nature
reserve status contributes immensely in ensuring the protection of resources within the purchase line. Furthermore, the legal
status opens opportunities for the reserve to source funding for nature conservation activities from organizations such as World
Wide Fund for Nature (WWF), International Union for Conservation of Nature (ICUN) and EKZNW.

Figure 4.9: Nagle Dam & Game Reserve Map

Day Visitor Statistics
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Table 4.8: Nagle Dam & Game Reserve Visitor Statistics

Pensioner

Figure 4.10: Nagle Dam & Game Reserve Visitor Statistics
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Nagle dam results for the financial year under review are presented in Table 4.8 above, with visitors displaying a strong decline
on the core clientele for the resort, the adult category declined by 47% for the financial year under review, recording 2269 visitors
compared to 4293 recorded in the year prior. The pensioner numbers were down by 13% and the Child category by 17%. Both
categories reported 162, compared to 186 and 292 compared to 352 recorded in 2018/19 financial year, respectively.
Nagle Dam resort was closed to the general public during the national lockdown period from April to June 2020 of the reporting
period.
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Table 4.9: Nagle Dam Accommodation and Camping Visitor Stastics
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Figure 4.11: Nagle Dam Accommodation and Camping Visitor Stastics

Nagle Dam recorded an accommodation decline of 1330 (17%) compared to 1612 from the previous year. The camping recorded
a 16% decline for the financial year under review, which was 252 from 300 in the previous financial year. Accommodation and
Camping activities for Nagle Dam were impacted negatively in Q2 due to unrests within the communities surrounding the resort.
The unrest situation led to cancellation of revenue generating events that were scheduled during the period of the unrests. This
performance was exacerbated by the national lockdown.

Nagle Lodge (12 Sleeper)
at Msinsi Nagle Dam & Game Reserve
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Inanda Dam & Resort
Situated on the southern bank of the Inanda Dam is the Valley of a Thousand Hills below Hillcrest, this resort offers all forms
of recreational boating and is famous for bass fishing. The Inanda Bass Classic fishing tournament, held at this resort, attracts
hundreds of anglers each year. Inanda is the perfect venue for canoeing and is a compulsory overnight stop for the famous Dusi
Canoe Marathon.
Inanda Dam offers 40 electrical and 51 non-electrical campsites; picnic sites as well as 4 x four sleeper self-catering tented
accommodation set on the water’s edge afford magnificent views of the surrounding hills which makes this an ideal venue
for water sport enthusiasts and nature lovers. A 35-seater Boat Cruise offers a unique experience to visitors who wish to hold
different activities including a boat cruise, conferencing, weddings, birthdays, baby/bridal shower parties, etc.

Figure 4.12: Inanda Dam & Resort Map

Day Visitor Statistics
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Table 4.10: Inanda Dam & Resort Visitor Statistics

Figure 4.13: Inanda Dam & Resort Visitor Statistics

Inanda dam visitor statistics for the year reported an average decline of 39% with the adult and children numbers decline being
almost on par with each other. This trend would be expected since the children depend mostly on their parents to take them
along when they visit places. The decline was attributed to the imposed COVID-19 national lockdown during the Q4 reporting
period for the business, this meant that all revenue generating activities for Inanda Dam were ceased for over 100 days.
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Visitors
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Table 4.11: Inanda Dam & Resort Wild Card product, Accommodation
and Camping Visitor Stastics

YEAR
Wild Card

Description

Camping

Figure 4.14: Inanda Dam & Resort Wild Card product, Accommodation
and Camping Visitor Stastics

Although the Wild Card product performance also declined when compared to the previous year, it still performed better than the
accommodation and the camping products.
The decline in performance of these products is attributed to the national lockdown during the Q4 period of the business cycle.

Camping at Msinsi Inanda Dam
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Hazelmere Dam & Resort
A day’s outing at family-oriented picnic spots will reward every nature lover with a breath of fresh air and many birds and
butterflies to delight. Visitors can enjoy camping in 13 electrical and 13 non-electrical campsites and have access to the thatched
Lapa while preparing meals in the communal kitchen.
The Lifestyle Lounge has an impressive catering facility to satisfy the need of visitors for meetings, conferences; small parties
and intimate weddings. Hazelmere is popular for hosting major events, namely Jazz Festival, Bikers’ Rally and Fun in the Sun,
to mention a few. The raising of the dam wall offers new picnic areas with a better view of the dam. Visitors can enjoy a variety
of water sports such as fishing, boating, jet skis, canoeing and sailing.

Figure 4.15: Hazelmere Dam & Resort Map
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Table 4.12: Hazelmere Dam & Resort Visitor Statistics

Pensioner

Figure 4.16: Hazelmere Dam & Resort Visitor Statistics
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Hazelmere dam also recorded a decline in performance of all categories of day visitors when compared to the previous year.
This decline is attributed mainly to the national lockdown.

Wild Card, Accomodation & Camping
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Table 4.13: Hazelmere Dam & Resort Wild Card product, 		
Accommodation and Camping Visitor Statistics
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Figure 4.17: Hazelmere Dam & Resort Wild Card product, Accommodation
and Camping Visitor Statistics

The day visitors for the period under review reported a decline in comparison with the prior year, the behaviour in tourism industry
accompanied by the economic climate for the country contributed to the decline in day visitor numbers for the Resort. The Wild
Card product reported a 14% decline, while camping reported a 7% decline in performance during the period under review.
Camping for the business was on a growth trajectory during the first three quarters when compared with the previous year
but was subsequently negatively impacted by the national lockdown during Q4 of Msinsi’s business cycle.

Msinsi Hazelmere Dam & Resort
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Spring Grove Dam
Spring Grove Dam falls within the jurisdiction of the uMgungundlovu District Municipality (DC22) and is situated in two local
municipalities, namely Mpofana Local Municipality (KZN223) and uMngeni Local Municipality (KZN222). The dam is located 2
km south-west of the Rosetta on the farms’ Rosetta and Spring Vale.
Msinsi is mainly responsible for undertaking biodiversity management work such as fire management, invasive alien plant control
and monitoring. Patrols are also undertaken to enforce access control procedures. There are no tourism activities that are
performed at the Spring Grove Dam.

Figure 4.18: Map of Spring Grove Dam
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Strategic Objective 2: Increase Customer and Stakeholder Value
Msinsi interacts with several stakeholders in the execution of its mandate. The value proposition and the key stakeholders
that Msinsi interacted with during the year under review are listed below:

Msinsi Employees

Customers

Recruit and retain the correct number of personnel
with the right competencies at the right time, and
aligned to achieve the vision of the organisation.

To provide product quality that meets
customer expectations.

Trade Union

Umgeni Water

Collaboration to achieve healthy employee
relations in the organisation.

Shareholder & Co-management of Water Resources

Media

Msinsi Board of Directors

Communication platforms to enhance Msinsi’s brand

Ensure Good Corporate Governance

Suppliers

Amakhosi, Councillors, Municipalities,
Government Departments and Communities

To acquire goods and services at the right quantity,
quality, cost and at the right time.

Collaboration to achieve community stability
and sustainability

Tourism and Environmental Bodies
Collaboration for funding mobilisation &
Operational Optimisation
Figure 4.19: Strategic Objective 2, Increase Customer and Stakeholder Value

Stakeholder engagement continuously and successfully created value for Msinsi’s operations and the communities at large,
such as:

Nature Conservation & Tourism Bodies
Msinsi continued to engage with other stakeholders during the period under review. This included SANParks, KZN Wildlife
and Department of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation, KZN Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental
Affairs, Umgeni Ecological Infrastructure Partnership, KZN Sharks Board and Durban Tourism.

Umgeni Water
Co-management of the water resources takes place at the operational level between the Msinsi Reserve Managers, Umgeni
Water Operations and Scientific Services Department. A total of 22 meetings against a target of 18 were held between
Msinsi’s Operations Department and the Dam Superintendents. The collaboration has been effective in managing the water
resources in Msinsi’s area of operation.
Engagement with Umgeni Water at shareholder level has been undertaken with the Umgeni Water Executive Committee for
continuous review of the service level agreement. Msinsi achieved 98% of its service level agreement obligations during the
year under review.
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Municipalities
Municipalities are an important stakeholder since all Msinsi’s operations are within the jurisdiction of municipalities. Municipalities
also present an opportunity for collaboration to achieve community stability; they are also potential customers for Msinsi’s
ecotourism product offerings.
The Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve and Bon Accorde Resort are located within the jurisdiction of Umgungundlovu District
Municipality and uMshwathi Local Municipality, whilst Nagle Dam is situated within the jurisdiction of the uMgungundlovu District
Municipality (DM) and the Mkhambathini Local Municipality (LM). Inanda and Hazelmere Resorts are within the jurisdiction of
eThekwini Metropolitan Municipality.
Msinsi’s partnership with uMshwathi Local Municipality is an ongoing partnership. the plans that are in place between Msinsi and
uMshwathi Local Municipalities have been scheduled for execution in the 2020/2021 financial year.

Trade Union and Employees
The recognised worker’s union of Msinsi is NEHAWU. Engagement with the workers’ union is a structured communication,
with feedback regarding the plans and performance of the organisation. Co-operation by the union has contributed significantly
towards labour stability during 2019/20. This co-operation is expected to continue maturing in the years to come. Engagement
with employees was also held for the same purpose of providing a platform for structured communication and feedback regarding
the plans and performance of the organisation.
All targets for stakeholder engagement were met to achieve the outcome of stakeholder understanding and support.
The union (NEHAWU) membership among Msinsi’s personnel equates to 79%.

Strategic Objective 5: Improve All Key Systems
The resulting indicator for SO5 looked at the management, monitoring and state of biodiversity including fire management for
each reserve.

Alien Plant Eradication for Aquatic and Terrestrial Systems:
The Operations Division of Msinsi updates annually the terrestrial invasive alien plant management plans for the reserves,
develop a monitoring system for emerging alien plants, update the aquatic alien plant management plan for the dams and
prioritize alien plant control activities to the available budget. Msinsi signed a 3-year Memorandum of Understanding with the
Department of Environmental Affairs – Natural Resource Management for the invasive alien plant programme. The Working for
Water (WfW) project is under the Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP) which aims to address to create job opportunities
to the communities where these projects are taking place. The clearing of alien plant projects was extended to the 7 new sites
during the year under review.
The alien plant eradication programme was implemented over a total area coverage of 1 931.55 hectares, against the planned
target of 1 961.93 for the period under review. Hazelmere Dam (12.7 Ha) and Mhlabatshane (17.68 Ha) were unable to proceed
with the alien plant eradication programme scheduled for Q4 of the financial year, this was mainly due to the national COVID-19
Lockdown.
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This programme is implemented using casual labour sourced from the neighbouring communities.
Up to 814 beneficiaries were employed for this activity, and the demographics of the employees are indicated in the table below.

Reserve

Number of
Workers
Employed

Females

Females

Males

Males

18 - 35

36 - 64

18 - 35

36 - 64

People
Living with
Disabilities

Albert Falls

146

31

22

50

43

0

Spring Grove

12

2

2

6

2

0

Hazelmere

59

25

10

21

3

0

Nagle

156

68

16

40

16

16

Inanda

115

20

31

35

29

0

iMvutshane Dam

52

28

12

12

Nungwane Dam

104

40

16

36

8

4

Darvill WWTP

52

20

0

20

8

4

EJ Smith

52

16

12

12

8

4

Mzinto Dam

52

12

-

28

12

-

Mhlabatshane Dam

-

-

-

-

-

-

Ixopo Dam

14

2

-

10

2

-

TOTAL

814

264

121

270

131

28

-

Table 4.14: Casual labour sourced from the neighbouring communities for alien plant eradication projects

The chart below depicts the employment demographics for the programme.

Consolidated
Alien plant employment distribution

People with disability

Figure 4.20: Consolidated Alien plant employment distribution
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Fire Management
The Fire Management for the period under review was implemented, a Standard Operation Procedure (SOP) was developed
and implemented during the fire season, of which a total area of 106,8km was covered for the period under review. The SOP was
reviewed to ensure compliance with the COVID-19 protocols.
A total of 5 people were employed for this activity, and the demographics are presented in the table below:

Reserve

Workers
Employed

Females

Females

Males

Males

18 - 35

36 - 64

18 - 35

36 - 64

Disabled

Albert Falls

0

0

0

0

0

0

Spring Grove

0

0

0

0

0

0

Hazelmere

0

0

0

0

0

0

Nagle

5

1

1

2

1

0

Inanda

0

0

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

5

1

1

2

1

0

Table 4.15: Casual labour sourced for Fire Management

Pollution Control (PC)
Pollution prevention is part of protecting water resources. The activities below were conducted during the review period in order
to ensure that the water resources are protected.
•

Ensuring that any infrastructure developments take place with minimal environmental impacts by conducting required 		
Environmental impacts assessments and scoping reports.

•

Ensuring that no agricultural activities take place within the purchase line through field ranger patrols.

•

Monitoring and controlling visitor activities on the dam and within the purchase line.

•

Conducting upstream and downstream patrols by field rangers to ensure that no pollutants that are deposited into the dam 		
and report non-compliance to relevant authorities.

•

Engaging with Umgeni Water superintendents to discuss issues of water pollution and develop mitigating measures.

•

Ensuring that waste generated in the reserve is collected and disposed of properly.

•

Ensuring that the reserve has effective sewerage disposal means with no negative impact on water quality

•

Facilitated awareness campaigns to educate community and schools about the negative effects of pollution on water 		
resources.

•

Monitoring of illegal activities such as sand mining, dumping and discharge of contaminants in the dam.

Strategic Objective 2: Increase Customer and Stakeholder Value
Msinsi manages the wildlife species in the reserves in a way that conserves, maintains and enhances the biodiversity value of
the reserves. This is done through balancing the habitat conditions, the carrying capacity and stocking rate. Game mammals
are stocked such that their numbers do not exceed the carrying capacity of each reserve. This practice is undertaken in order
to maintain the ecological balance of the reserves that keep the wild life.

Game Count
Game counts are conducted monthly and game counts for year-end were also conducted in collaboration with external auditors.
The counts conducted show consistent numbers with insignificant variation from one count to the other at all the game reserves.
This activity is a crucial input to the game-carrying capacity plans and Msinsi’s statement of financial position.
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The following table indicates the number of births and mortalities recorded during the 2019/20 financial year:
Mortalities

Births and Introductions
Game Reserve

Number

Date

Natural

Date

Albert Falls

5 x Nyala

01/2020

2 x Blesbok

09/2019 & 01/2020

		

32 x Impala

01/2020

2 x Red Hartebeest

07/2019 &12/2019

		

7 x Zebra

01/2020

1 x zebra

01/2020

		

27 x Blue wildebeest

01/2020

3 x Blue wildebeest

11/2019 & 02/2020

		

9 x Warthog

01/2020

1 x Buffalo

11/2019

		

6 x Giraffe

01/2020

1 x Impala

11/2019

		

3 x Blesbok

01/2020

Nil

Nil

		

1 x Red Hartebeest

01/2020

Nil

Nil

		

2 x Kudu

01/2020

Nil

Nil

		

1 x Buffalo

03/2020

Nil

Nil

Inanda

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nagle

5 x Impala

12/2019

1 x Zebra

09/2019

		

Nil

Nil

1 x Kudu

09/2019

		

3 x Zebra

12/2019

2 x Zebra

10/2019

				

1 x Zebra

11/2019

		

6 x Blue Wildebeest

12/2019

1 x Kudu

01/2020

		

1 x Kudu

12/2019

1 x Nyala

03/2020

OVERALL TOTAL

108		

17

Table 4.16: Number of births and mortalities recorded in 2019/2020

Wildebeest at Msinsi Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve
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All the recorded mortalities were due to natural causes and there is no concern of possible disease break-out as the cause of the
mortality. Albert Falls Game Reserve has the most diverse wildlife species; which includes the buffalos.

Game Carrying Capacity Management:
Stock counts for the year under review revealed that some of the animals exceeded the capacity of the habitat.The excess
animals were recommended to the Board for disposal through hunting, live sales, inter-reserve transfers or culling.
The table below is the list of wildlife that was exceeding the carrying capacity of Msinsi’s game reserves.

Animal Species

Total Removals

Method of Disposal

Blue Wildebeest

34

16 Hunting

			

18 Live Sale

Warthog

23

23 Hunting

Impala

31

12 Cull for Stakeholders

			

19 Hunting

Blesbok

1

1 Hunting

Kudu

31

11 Hunting

			

20 Live Sales

Nyala

26

1 Cull for Stakeholders

		

5

Hunting

		

20

Live Sales

Zebra

6

6 Hunting

Giraffe

24

4 Hunting

			
TOTAL STOCK COUNT

20 Live Sales

176

Table 4.17: Game carrying capacity stock count

Wildlife exceeding carrying capacity by 176 animals combined in all Msinsi’s Game Reserves.

Game Security
Security patrols were conducted as per the patrol plan to identify and mitigate security risks to the reserves. The field rangers
completed their firearm training which was in place to better equip them with resources and expertise in executing their duties.
Following the recommendations of Protected Area Ranger Capability and Support (PARCS) assessment at the Albert Falls Dam
and Game Reserve, 95% of the recommendations by PARCS to Msinsi have been implemented accordingly.
Furthermore, Msinsi utilised the Management Effectiveness Tracking Tool (METT) to assess the state of management
effectiveness. METT is used as a best practice reporting tool to assess the effectiveness of environmental management. Msinsi
was assessed against the METT standards and the gaps identified are being addressed. The progress in this regard is as follows:
• Short term interventions were all completed in the previous year
• Medium term interventions - 98% complete,
• Long term interventions - 90% complete
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5. Risk & SHEQ Management
5. RISK & SHEQ MANAGEMENT

5.1. MSINSI INTEGRATED RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
5.1. Msinsi Integrated Risk Management System
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), No 1 of 1999, Section 51 (a)(i) of the act requires Accounting Officer to establish and ma
Public
Finance
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Figure 5.1: Msinsi Risk Management Improvement Roadmap for 2021/2022

Figure 5.1: Msinsi Risk Management Improvement Roadmap for 2021/2022

Umgeni Water Board
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Msinsi Risk Management
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Integrated Risk Management Systems - Risk Management Officer

Operations Division
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Managing Director
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Figure 5.2: Msinsi Integrated Risk Management Governance Structure
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Embedding Integrated Risk Management Process within an Organisation
The Fig. 5.2. outlines the framework that embeds risk management in Msinsi Holdings SOC, Ltd. The tools/ mechanisms for
managing risk include, where appropriate, the transfer of risk to third parties (i.e. MOU/SLA’s), the maintenance of an appropriate
mix of Insurance (i.e. self-insurance and commercial insurance) for all insured risks that the entity retains, internal controls, fraud
risk assessment and business continuity planning.
Below is the Audit and Risk Committee Meeting Performance Score Card
Special
Meetings

Normal Meetings
Board
Committee
Member

Gender

1. Dr IB Mkhize 1

M

2. Mr S Shabalala

M

3. Ms M Ndlovu

F

03/09/19

#

08/11/19

#

20/02/20

02/4/20

14/05/20

#		

Table 5.1. Depict that oversight responsibility is effectively executed by risk and audit committees

Denotes Chairman
Attendance
# - Absence with an apology

1

The Corporate Risk Management Committee (CRC), reports quarterly to Umgeni Water Board on the implementation status of
the integrated risk management framework as well as ensure uniform standards approach to risk management in line with the
Umgeni Water Group standards for risk management.
During this reporting period, Msinsi business operation was interrupted by the outbreak of the pandemic disease herein
referred to as “COVID-19” event that has now become a new norm and all employers need to comply with health directives
and government legislation governing the implementation of workplace concerning containment and spread of this infectious
disease or virus. Occupational Health and Safety Act, Act 85 of 1993, as amended, read with the Hazardous Biological Agents
Regulations. Section 8 (1) of the Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Act, Act 85 of 1993, as amended, requires the employer
to provide and maintain as far as is reasonably practicable a working environment that is safe and without risks to the health of
employees. Section 8(2)(b) requires steps such as may be reasonably practicable to eliminate or mitigate any hazard or potential
hazard before resorting to personal protective equipment (PPE). However, in the case of COVID-19, a combination of controls
is required, although the main principle is to follow the hierarchy implementation of controls.
In response to business disruption and to comply with disaster management act, Msinsi implemented the following risk
management intervention.
•

Launched an insurance claim for ecotourism business interruption risk that was affected by the closure of business
activities.

•

Formally appointed COVID-19 Task Team on the 15th May 2020 to implement workplace plan and re-activation of all 		
business activities according to the risk-adjusted strategy that has been adopted by the government to minimize the
spread of the disease.

COVID-19 preventative measures currently implemented through all Msinsi sites.
•

Conducted Workplace Risk Assessments

•

Sanitizers and disinfectants measures through traffic areas and ablution facilities

•

Availing of PPE for all employees

•

Education and training for employees (i.e. SHEQ procedures, HSE induction and education)

•

Employees COVID-19 symptoms self-declarations

•

Customers COVID-19 symptoms self-declarations,

•

Developed and implemented procedures for infection and contamination control, and

•

Employee special sick leave (COVID-19, 14 days’ isolation special sick leave)
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Below is the Corporate Risk Management Committee Meeting Performance Score Card
Corporate Risk Committee Meetings held
for 2019/2020 financial year

Msinsi’s Representation in the Committee

Q1		

Q2

Q3

Q4

Total

15/10/2019

31/01/2019

Nil

Was held
Virtually on
11/08/2020

3

Msinsi Managing Director
Msinsi Risk Champion or Risk Officer
Table 5.2. Corporate Risk Management Committee Meetings

The Q3 and Q4 meetings were impacted on by the National Lockdown due to COVID-19 .
The risk management approach that Msinsi follows is outlined in Fig. 5.3 below.

a) Creates Value

Mandate and
commitment

Establishing the content

d) Explicity adresses
uncertainty
e) Systematic, structured
and timely

Design of
Framework for
managing risk

f) Based on the best avaialable
information
g) Tailored
h) Takes human and cultural
factors into account

Continual
improvement of
the framework

Implementing risk
management

i) Transparent and inclusive
j) Dynamic, iterative and 		
reponsive to change
k) Facilities continual 		
enhancement of the
organization

PRINCIPLES

Monitoring and
review of the
framework

Communication and consultation

c) Part of decision making

Risk Assessment
Risk Identification
Risk Analysis
Risk Evaluation

Risk Treatment

FRAMEWORK

Figure 5.3: Msinsi Holdings Integrated Risk Management Framework and Process
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Below is the Msinsi Risk Management Committee Quarterly Review Meeting Performance Score Card
Risk Management Committee Meetings held for
2019/2020 financial year

Committee Members

Q1		

Q2

Q3

Q4

Total

27/09/2019

10/01/2020

Nil

13/07/2020
(Virtual)

3

Msinsi Managing Director
Umgeni Risk Manager
Msinsi Risk Champion or Risk Officer
Msinsi Executive Management
Msinsi Departmental Managers
Table 5.3. Msinsi Risk Management Committee Meetings

The Q3 and Q4 meetings were impacted on by the National Lockdown due to COVID-19

Msinsi Strategic Risks Profile
Msinsi Holdings currently has four (4) strategic risks as presented in risk dashboard below. These risks have been ranked
by risk score ranging from high to low, indicating the appetite/tolerance position, and are linked to strategic perspectives and
objectives impacted.

Current
Residual
Risk Score

Risk
Appetite

Risk
Tolerance

1. Hosting Events (MS)

5 (Low)

Within Appetite

Within Tolerance

2. Reputation/Image (MS)

5 (Low)

Within Appetite

Within Tolerance

3. Ecological Integrity (MS)

3 (Low)

Within Appetite

Within Tolerance

4. Sustainability of the Org (MS)

1 (Low)

Within Appetite

Within Tolerance

12

100
90

10

80
70

Control Reliance

8

60
6

50
40

4

30
20

2

Overall Response Effectiveness (%)

Risk Name

10
0

0
High Reliance
Medium Reliance
Low Reliance

Overall Response Effectiveness
Desired Overall Response Effectiveness

Figure 5.4: Strategic Risk Management Dashboard

The dashboard above depicts that Msinsi has low levels of risk exposure, medium reliance on controls and any failure of these
controls have no material impact for the organization.
All 4 strategic risks are within appetite and tolerance
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5.2. SHEQ Overview
5.2.1 Occupational Health and Safety
Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd strives to ensure a safe and healthy workplace to protect the employees and visitors from injuries
and illnesses, which may occur.
The entity continues to address key themes of safety and health in order to develop a positive culture towards health and
safety in the organisation. The disabling injuries experienced during the year under review were analysed and the causes and
the mitigations thereof are being addressed.

Msinsi’s commitment is guided by:
•

Striving to implement and comply with the latest versions of health and safety standards through its SHEQ Implementation 		
plan;

•

Increasing consultation and participation of employees to prioritise their health and safety in the workplace.

During the year under review, the entity executed this commitment by:
•

Implementing health and safety baseline risk assessment process;

•

Ensuring that employees understood the hazards and risks associated with activities through a series of SHE inductions;

•

Establishing health and safety roles and responsibilities

•

Employing continuous efforts to create a positive culture by developing and implementing health and safety system 		
procedures;

•

Introducing Health and Safety awareness at Staff info sessions;

•

Implementing Msinsi SHE Committees, promoting health and safety participation and consultation;

•

Participating in the promotion of dam safety awareness in schools and communities that are located nearby to the dams;

•

Conducted compliance monthly and quarterly audits on all sites to ensure maximum SHEQ compliance; and

•

Continuously providing resources, information, training, equipment, systems and other support to all employees, to enable 		
all to understand their respective roles, to work safely, health and to participate in improving overall SHEQ performance.

The organisation also underwent ISO 45001 internal audit facilitated by Umgeni Water SHEQ Team and the audit findings
thereof are being addressed.
The entity recorded its baseline DIFR during the year under review. Six (6) disabling injuries were recorded resulting in
DIFR of 2.82 (Figure 5.5).

3

2.82

2.5
2
1.5
1

Limit: DIFR 0.5

0.5
0
2020
Figure 5.5: Disabling Injury Frequency Rate (DIFR)

The causes of the recorded disabling injuries are being addressed. The DIFR is also a function of the cumulative hours worked
and the entity had accumulated working hours of less than one year at the time of reporting. The DIFR is expected to improve
as the working hours accumulate and the disabling injuries are prevented.
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6. Human Resources Overview
Introduction
Msinsi Holdings is a service organisation, Human Resources (HR) forms part of the core of business and service delivery.
This report covers the HR activities for the period 01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020. As at 30 June 2020, the Msinsi permanent staff
establishment comprised of 118 employees. Msinsi continuously partners with communities within which it operates.

The HR priorities for the year included inter alia the:
•
•
•
•
•

filling of vacancies with a skilled and competent workforce
employee development
succession planning
improvement of the implementation of the performance management system
no-repeat audit findings including irregular and wasteful expenditure.

Furthermore, wellness continuously took priority, hence wellness days were held during the year under review. Updating of HR
policies to be in line with legislation took precedence.
Investment in the development of the staff has been an ongoing exercise and, in this regard, 94 employees were trained in
various programs with 1512 training hours. The organisation like all other organisations was affected by the COVID-19 pandemic
and the subsequent lockdown during the period in March 2020 to June 2020. As a result, employees were engaged through HR
roadshows, wherein surveys were conducted on the impact of COVID-19 in the organisation. The employees were encouraged
to offer their input/ideas for achieving financial sustainability in the organisation post the lockdown period. Employee information
sessions were held prior to lockdown wherein employees were kept up to date with the developments in the organisation.
The Five-Year HR plan was implemented following its approval by the Board. The HR priorities that were implemented during the
year under review were informed by Five-Year HR Plan.
Five-Year Human Resources Plan
The Five-Year HR plan was developed following the four perspectives of the balanced scorecard linked to
the HR focus areas, namely:
•

Customer and Stakeholder Perspective

•

Financial Perspective

•

Process Perspective

•

Organisational Capacity Perspective

The Five-Year HR plan further comprises of ten human resources focus areas with specific objectives. These objectives would
be further translated into action plans on an annual basis for over five years. Human Resources focus areas are as follows:
•

Employee Resourcing and Human Resources Administration

•

Employment Relations Management

•

Leadership and Learning & Development

•

Workforce Planning

•

Employee Wellness

•

Performance Management

•

Reward and Recognition

•

Continuous improvement

•

Organisational Development

•

Human Resources Systems and Risk Management
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During the year under review the following HR milestones were achieved during the implementation of the Five-Year HR Plan:

EMPLOYEE RESOURCING AND HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATION
Staff Establishment

As at 30 June, the Msinsi staff establishment was as follows:
•

118 permanent employees out of 138 permanent budgeted posts

•

13 Security Officers out of 22 budgeted posts

•

6 Graduate Trainees

•

1 Fixed Term Contract employee

STAFF ESTABLISHMENT

Employee Category

Graduate Trainees

6

Security FTC

13

FTC

1

Permanent

118
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Figure 6.1: Staff Establishment

Occupational Levels
2%
1%
33%

Top Management
Senior Management

5%
24%

Professional qualified and experienced specialists
and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified workers,
junior management, supervisors, foremen and
superintendants
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making
Unskilled and defined decision making

35%

Figure 6.2: Occupational levels
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Race
0%

1%

Gender
0%

Female
41%
African

Male
59%

Coloured

99%

Indian
White

Figure 6.3: Employment by Race

Figure 6.4: Employment Status by Gender

The Employment Equity Targets (2020/21-2024/25) were approved by the Board on 05 June 2020, they are aligned with the
occupational levels and will be implemented over the period of five years.

Human Resources Policies and Procedures
Alignment of HR processes with the organisational strategy remained a priority during the year under review. The policies
and procedures development and review plan was developed and most of the policies were reviewed. The Leave Policy was
reviewed twice during the period under review due to the amendment of legislation regarding parenting leave. During the year
under review the following policies and/or procedures were developed and reviewed in order to strengthen Msinsi’s internal
controls:

New Policies and Procedures:

Name

No.
1

Sexual Harassment Procedure

2

Assisted Education Procedure

3

Trainee Development Procedure

4

Code of Ethics and Conduct

Table 6.1: New Policies and Procedures
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Reviewed policies and procedures:

Name

No.
1

Car Allowance Policy

2

Termination Policy

3

Leave Policy

4

Recruitment and Selection Procedure

5

Sexual Harassment Policy

6

Training and Development Policy

7

Anti-Substance Consumption Policy

8

Assisted Education Policy

9

Performance Bonus Policy

10.

Trainee Development Policy

Table 6.2: Reviewed Policies and Procedures

Recruitment and Selection
During the year under review nine permanent positions were filled.

Occupational Levels

Male

Female

Total

A

C

I

W

A

C

I

W

Skilled technical and academically qualified workers,
junior management, supervisors, foremen, and
superintendents

5

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

7

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

1

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

2

TOTAL PERMANENT ENGAGEMENTS

6

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

9

Table 6.3: The demographics of the recruited employees as per the occupational levels

Note: A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=White

Employee Information Sessions
Management had ensured that all employees were kept up to date with any changes taking place in the company. Two employee
information sessions were held during the year under review. Proceedings of these meetings were recorded for the purposes of
addressing issues raised during these staff information sessions.

Labour Turnover
The labour turnover control is based on permanent employees’ terminations excluding natural attrition. There was a 2.3% labour
turnover as a % of 138 employees in the staff establishment during the reporting period. The recorded labour turnover is below
the organisational benchmark of ≤5%.
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The Figure below depicts reasons for labour turnover during the reporting period as compared to the previous reporting period

Year on Year Labour Turnover % 2019/2020 and 2018/2019

Labour Turnover %

3
2.5

2.17

2

2.17

2.3

1.45 1.55

1.5
1

2.33

0.72 0.78

0.5
0
Q1

Q2

Q4
Quarter

2019/20

2018/19

Linear (2019/20)

Figure 6.5: Labour turnover

Employee Relations Management
The framework for collective bargaining had been created by entering into a recognition agreement with the National Health and
Allied Workers Union (NEHAWU). The recognition agreement was reviewed at the behest of NEHAWU during the year under
review and the agreement awaits final input from NEHAWU.
The trade union membership is a voluntary association for all employees. Up to 79% of employees including contract employees
were members of NEHAWU during the year under review.
Most scheduled engagement engagements with NEHAWU were executed during the year under review except the last one
which was not executed due to the National Lockdown. However, wage negotiations for the 2020/2021 salary reviews took place
although they were not concluded at the end of the reporting period.
There were no CCMA cases during the reporting period.

Leadership And Learning & Development
The Leadership and Learning and Development priority was on achieving employee development requirements as per the
Individual Development Plans (IDPs) set out in the performance contracts. A total of 1 512 hours were spent on employee
development.
During the reporting year, the company was faced with COVID-19, as a result in the latter part of the year, some training courses
focused on acquiring knowledge about the Corona Virus and its implication in the workplace.
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Number of Trainees per Quarter
NUMBER OF TRAINEES & HOURS

900

832

800
700
600
500

424

400

Number of Trainees

300

Training Hours

160

200

96

100

25

33

12

24

0
Q1

Q2

Quarter

Q3

Q4

Figure 6.6: Number of trainees per quarter

Employee Bursary Scheme
Employees were given an opportunity for development through the bursary scheme, and 8% participated by studying towards
approved qualifications in this regard. The skills acquired are critical for the company to achieve its strategic objectives and
mandate.
Qualification

Number of employees

Master in Business Administration

1

National Diploma in Environmental Management

1

National Diploma Public Management

1

Master in Business Administration

1

Bachelor of Business Administration

3

Advanced Diploma in Business Management

1

Honours in Environmental Management

1

Table 6.4: Qualifications studied

Graduate Trainee / Internship Programmes
A total of eight Graduate Trainees were appointed during the year under review, of which two were appointed into permanent
positions in Msinsi.

Workforce Planning
The HR Department continuously ensures the effective identification of the right talent in the right place of the organisation and
at the right time in order to enable Msinsi Holdings transformation and growth plan. In so doing, future staffing requirements of
the organisation are forecasted in order to ensure that optimum staffing levels are maintained.
During the year under review several succession planning interventions were undertaken in order to ensure that the future needs
of the organisation were met mostly at occupational levels 3 and 4.
The Organisational Development project was completed and the gaps that were identified during the Skills Audit and Organisational
Design will be closed in the upcoming year (2020/2021) by utilizing some of the succession planning interventions.
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Coaching programmmes will also be scheduled in order to address succession planning at management levels of the organisation.

Employee Wellness
The organization continues to implement its Wellness Policy and the Procedure in order to benefit all employees in the
organisation. The purpose is:
•

To manage the provision of a supportive working environment for employees experiencing conditions affecting their 		
wellness in the workplace.

•

To provide guidelines on employee wellness where organisational intervention is required.

Furthermore, the Peer Educator Programme continued in conjunction with that of Umgeni Water. The year under review was
opened with a strategic session wherein the Peer Educators Executive Committee met on 11 to 14 July to draw up the annual
strategic plan for the wellness programmes. Several wellness programmes took place at the reserves during staff meetings, and
these included amongst others:
•

Information and awareness on HIV/AIDS

•

Voluntary free testing

•

Health checks prior to wellness days

•

Management of chronic conditions and support in the workplace

Wellness day activities were held in conjunction with Umgeni Water as follows during the year under review:
•
•

20 February – Ulwandle
21 February – Izintaba

World AIDS Day was commemorated together with Umgeni Water on 28 and 29 November 2019 as it normally happens each
year and it portrayed an opportunity for every employee to unite in the fight against HIV/AIDS, show support for people living with
HIV/AIDS and remember those who have passed on.
As from March 2020 Msinsi as all other organisations was affected by the Corona Virus 2019 pandemic. Management appointed
the COVID-19 Task Team and the following mitigations were undertaken in order to minimise the risk of employees contracting
the COVID-19:
•

Flu Vaccination

•

Training on COVID-19 awareness such as the safe use of PPE (cloth mask); symptoms screening and temperature 		
scanning; workplace hygiene requirements; disposal of PPE after use

•

SHEQ Education and Training, social distancing, thermometer usage, sanitizing and hygiene

•

Supply of cloth masks for every employee, sanitizers and other PPE

•

Staggered return to work

•

Employee screening and temperature check

•

Employee Assistance Programme Support to those infected with COVID-19

•

Trained employees on SOPs for Housekeeping and Gate

Performance Management
The Performance Management System of Msinsi requires that all employees conclude performance agreements. These are
aligned to the strategic objectives and Annual Performance Plan targets applicable to the year when they are concluded.
The performance bonuses were paid out to qualifying employees during the year under review following Board approval of the
policy and implementation thereof.
Continuous improvement on performance management remains the priority The Quarterly performance reporting was undertaken
and where targets were not met, action plans to meet the target were put into place. Organisational performance achieved
during the year under review is discussed in detail in Chapter 10 of this report.
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Reward And Recognition
Remuneration Framework and Remuneration Policy
Msinsi embarked on the review of the remuneration framework in order to ensure that it has relevance to its operating environment
and landscape within which the organisation operates. The Remuneration Policy and the Remuneration Framework was
approved by the Executive Committee by the end of the reporting period as part of the Organisational Development (OD) project.
Once approved by the Board, the policy will be implemented in a phased approach until it is fully implemented in the organisation.

Salary Costs
Employee costs amounted to R37, 775,308 and the cost is within budget of R48, 157,000. The increase on salary costs was
caused by the annual increase of basic salaries during the reporting period.

Total Salary Costs against the Budget
AMOUNT

60 000 000
50 000 000
40 000 000
30 000 000
20 000 000
10 000 000

42 516 000

Budget

48 157 000
37 775 308

34 844 687
Actual

Budget

2018/2019

Actual

2019/2020
YEARS

Figure 6.7: Year on year budget and salary costs

Continuous Improvement
Msinsi adopted a culture of sustained improvement targeting the elimination of waste in all systems and processes of an
organisation. It involves encouraging the employees to participate in the improvement plans of the oganisation.
During the year under review the Human Resources Department conducted a focus group study in all organisational sites
wherein employees participated. The participation rate was 50% as few employees are working / on site due to lockdown.
The responses were noted from the participants mainly the employees’ views on the understanding and implementation of Msinsi
values and the continuous improvement of the organisation’s financial performance.
The results indicated that employees were satisfied with the risk mitigations the employer implemented such as education
on COVID-19, supply of PPE and flexible working conditions. Suggestions on how the company can improve its financial
sustainability were also noted.

Organisational Development
The Organisational Development (OD) project was one of the HR milestones during the year under review.
The project was aimed at achieving a holistic organisational redesign and alignment of salaries to the market.
The scope was focused on the following:
•

Organisational Design

•

Job analysis

•

Skills Audit & Individual Competency Profiling

The project was completed during the reporting period and the gaps that were identified during the skills audit were incorporated
in the Workplace Skills Plan. The organogram was reviewed and approved by the Board and all positions were graded in terms
of the Peromnes Grading system. The filling of new critical positions as identified and approved is in progress.

69

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Human Resources Systems and Risk Management
The following risks have been identified for the Human Resources and Administration Department and the mitigating plans are
in place to address the HR related risks:
•

Employment Equity compliance

•

Loss of talent

•

Compliance with the POPI Act (claims from employees)

•

Records management

•

Compliance with legislation

•

Segregation of duties in HR and payroll

•

No access control
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7.1. Marketing & Stakeholder Overview
Msinsi Resorts and Game Reserves focused the marketing initiatives and messaging to their customers, the positioning of the
brand was focused at the wellbeing of the visitors and reconnection with nature, through the tag line Wellness Through Nature.
The business maintained its positioning and was enhanced through various marketing platforms, the marketing department
employed a full 360 marketing model for the financial year to reach the audience from all modes of communication, elevating the
brand and ultimately attracting new and existing customers to the reserves.
The financial year was impacted since the business could not operate during the last quarter of the financial year due to the
national lockdown. All the physical marketing initiatives that were planned were suspended for the duration of the lockdown
period. This negatively affected the brand and the achievement of the strategic targets set by the business at the beginning of
the financial year.

Marketing Objectives
Marketing Objectives for the year 2019/2020 were

To
increase
Traffic for
all Msinsi
Resorts

To
increase
revenue for
all Msinsi
Resorts

To
increase
Customer &
Stakeholder
Value

To
increase
Social Media
Followers

To
increase
Market Share
for Msinsi
Resorts

Figure 7.1: Msinsi Marketing Objectives

The marketing initiatives that were planned for the year under review are summarized below:
Objective

Annual Target

Annual Actual

Variance

No. of Marketing Initiatives to Promote Msinsi Products

≥ 40

49

Nil

Development & Approval of CRM Plan

≥1

1

No. of Signed Contracts/MoUs with Customers
& Stakeholders for revenue growth

≥2

2

Nil
Nil

No. of engagement with Strategic Stakeholders

≥8

10

Nil

Number of CSI Initiatives undertaken

≥8

15

Nil

Table 7.1: Marketing & Stakeholder Engagement Balanced Scorecard

Table 7.1, above outlines the initiatives concluded by marketing during the financial year. The annual planned initiatives were
impacted in Q3 and Q4 of the year under review. The reduction in key events and activities was also impacted by the calendar
year shift in the Easter weekend from Q3 in the previous year to Q4 in the financial year under review.

Dam wall at Msinsi Nagle Dam & Game Reserve
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7.1.1. Integrated Marketing Communication
The Marketing Department engaged with its customers and clients through various mediums forming an integrated marketing
communication engagement for the brand, enhancing the messaging to customers and stakeholders within the organisation.

School
Marketing:
Environmental
Education

Print
Advertising
+ Direct
Marketing
Events
(Sporting &
Recreational)
360 Marketing
Communication
Trade Shows
&
Exhibitions

Influencer
Marketing
Social Media
(Facebook,
Twitter,
Instagram)
Figure 7.2: Msinsi Integrated Marketing Channels

Marketing Initiatives
The graphics below highlights some of the marketing initiatives the marketing department got involved in for the year:
Annual signature music & Sporting events: Hazelmere Durban Jazz Festival, Unyaka NYE Music Festival,
Inanda Music Festival, Siyashosholoza NYE Music Festival, Dusi Marathon
Msinsi Owned Events & Activations: Ladies High Tea, Msinsi Annual Report Launch, Dusi Marathon CSI Drive

Promotions & Specials: Green Friday, Valentines Day Competition, Quarterly Reserves Packages

Social Media Engagement: #MsinsiCares and #MsinsiStayHome COVID-19 Campaigns, Special Environmental Calendar
days acknowledgements.
Other Activations: Boy Scout Camp, Boot Camp, 100% Phola Picnic, Vukuzakhe Alumni Event, Coca Cola Team Building,
Crazy Store Trail Run, North Coast Courier Fishing Competition, SABAA Championships.

Influencer Marketing: Phumlani Dube - Msinsi Brand Ambassador; Mabliza Lifestyle - Fitness, Hiking and Lifestyle Influencer
Digital & Direct Marketing: Website Facelift Project, Quarterly Newsletter, SMS Marketing of Promotions and Specials,
Improved Social Media engagement, database cleanup, targeting and realignment of Msinsi website and social media audience.
Figure 7.3: Msinsi Marketing Initiatives
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7.2. Stakeholder Engagement
Msinsi endeavours to continuously improve customer and stakeholder value to its operations.
Msinsi stakeholders are grouped into four major categories and is depicted graphically below:

Umgeni
Water

Staff

Statutory

Department of
Environmental
Affairs

National
Treasury

Union

Department
of Water and
Sanitation

Suppliers

Contractual

Customers

Media

Other
Government
Institutions

Service
Providers

Academia

NonContractual

Ezemvelo KZN
Wildlife,
Tourism KZN,
Tourism Bodies,
SAN Parks

Strategic

Amakhosi
Municipalities

Economic
Development;
Tourism & Env.
Affairs; Agriculture;
Rural
Development

Communities

General
Public

7.4: Msinsi
Stakeholder
Andy Figure
Chloe
Daniel
GraceCategories
Sophia

7.2.1. Strategic Partnerships & Collaboration
The below illustration, highlights some of the key partnerships and collaborations that Msinsi engaged
in for the financial year under review
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8. Corporate Social Investment Overview
Introduction
Msinsi is a proud corporate citizen to the community of KZN, where it operates. The Corporate Social Investment (CSI)
programme for Msinsi provides support for activities that align with the organisation’s mission.
Msinsi’s CSI addresses the following areas:
•

Education and Training

•

Job Creation

•

Public Health, Community Development and Support

•

Environmental Conservation

•

Arts, Culture and Sports

CSI Initiatives
The following CSI initiatives were implemented during the year under review.
The Table below illustrates CSI initiatives undertaken during the period.
Objective

CSI Project

Value (R)

Albert Falls Dam

Venue sponsorship to Albert Falls Primary farewell for grade 9

R 10 000

Cleaning of Thokozani Creche

R 2000

Setting up of indigenous garden at Albert Falls Primary

R 2000

Donation of venison meat

R 2000

Spring Groove Dam

Donation of venison meat

R 1500

Nagle Dam

Renovations at Intobeko Creche

R 10 000

Donation of venison meat to Amakhosi

R 6000

Sponsorship to Golden steps school for entry to the reserve
and use of Lapa

R 7100

Donation of venison meat

R 1500

Donation of venison meat to Amakhosi

R 6000

Donation of Wendy house and water tank to Sithandokuhle ECD
centre

R 25 000

Donated 2 x Refuse bins and play area tractor tyre to Khanyisani
Pre-School.

R 3000

Donated Sport Trophies to Mahlabathini Community

R 500

Hazelmere Dam

Inanda Dam

Total

R 76 600

Table 8.1: 2019/20 Msinsi CSI Initiatives
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The figure below highlights the categories of the CSI initiatives, which were undertaken in the financial period under review:

Nelson
Mandela Day 2019
Intobeko Creche,
Albert Falls Primary
Silindokuhle Creche

Sporting CSI
Nelson
Mandela Day 2019

Thuma Mina
Good Deeds
Campaign

Hazelmere Junior
Primary, Khanyisani
Creche

St Francis College
Golf Day Event;
Ilembethe Canoe Club
(Dusi Marathon),
North Coast Courier
Orphan Fund
(Fishing Competition)

COVID-19
Public Service
Announcements
Msinsi Social Media
Platforms

Community CSI
Mahlabathini Community
(Sport Tournament);
Thokozani Ward Councilor
& Rosetta Ward Councellor
(Impala Donation)

Women
Empowerment:
Msinsi Ladies
High Tea

Figure 8.1: Categorized CSI initiatives

77 Handover at Sithandokuhle ECD Centre
Water Harvest CSI

CSI Initiative
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Panorama Primary School Environmental Education
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9. Environmental Education
The primary objective of an environmental is to create awareness of environmental matters, using the schools as a platform for
achieving this. The themes for the campaigns are aligned with the national calendar of an environmental events or themes. Up
to 1 926 learners and/ or people from 58 institutions, listed in the tables below, were reached through this programme during the
year under review.
A number of environmental education programmes have been implemented in all reserves are as detailed in the following tables:

Period

Theme

Participating Number of
grades (age) learners
participating

01-02/07/2019

Wildlife and
ecosystems

8&9

18

Siyabonga
SS

Game drive
and nature
walk

Wildlife and
ecosystems
conservation

15-16/07/2019

Wildlife and
ecosystems

8&9

18

Mbambagwe
HS

Game drive
and nature
walk

Wildlife and
ecosystems
conservation

11-12/08/2019

Wildlife and
ecosystems

8&9

18

Phezulu HS

Game drive
and nature
walk

Wildlife and
ecosystems
conservation

02-03/09/2019

Wildlife and
ecosystems

8&9

18

Thandaza HS

Game drive
and nature
walk

Wildlife and
ecosystems
conservation

22-23/09/2019

Wildlife and
ecosystems

9 &10

18

Temple Valley
School

Game drive
and nature
walk

Wildlife and
ecosystems
conservation

07&08/10/2019

Wildlife,
water and
ecosystems

9 &10

18

Umlazi
Game drive
commercial HS and nature
walk

Wildlife, Water,
and ecosystems
conservation

15&16/10/2019

Wildlife,
water and
ecosystems

8&9

18

Swelihle SS

Game drive
and nature
walk

Wildlife, Water,
and ecosystems
conservation

25&26/11/2019

Wildlife,
water and
ecosystems

10

18

Strelitzia SS

Game drive
and nature
walk

Wildlife, Water,
and ecosystems
conservation

02&03/12/2019

Wildlife,
water and
ecosystems

10

18

Wingen High
SS

Game drive
and nature
walk

Wildlife, Water,
and ecosystems
conservation

24-25/02/2020

Wildlife,
water and
ecosystems

8&9

18

Vukuzakhe HS

Game drive
and nature
walk

Wildlife water,
and ecosystems
conservation

27/02/2020

Wetland day

9 & 10

300

10 schools
invited by the
Department of
Environmental
Affairs

Presentation

Environmental
conservation

09/03/2020

World water
Day

6&7

60

Bathengi PS

Presentation

How to save water

12/03/2020

World water
Day

8&9

60

Albert Falls PS

Presentation

How to save water

600

13 Institutions

TOTAL

Table 9.1: Initiatives undertaken by Albert Falls Dam & Game Reserve
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Period:
Q1-Q4

Theme

Participating Number of
grades (age) learners
participating

22/07/19

Environmental
Awareness

R&1

30

Hazelmere
Junior PS

Presentation

Environmental and
pollution prevention

29/08/19

Arbor Day

8

60

Nombika HS

Presentation,
Trees seedlings,
compost and
shovel

Role of indigenous
trees in human
livelihoods

30/08/19

Environmental
Awareness

Staff

17

Hazelmere
Dam Staff

Presentation
and charts

Environmental and
pollution prevention

06/09/19

Arbor Day

Grade

30

Sunfield PS

Presentation,
Trees seedlings,
compost and
shovel

Role of indigenous
trees in human
livelihoods

21/09/2019

Beach Clean
Up Campaign

Botanic Garden 100

Botanic
Garden

Gloves and
refuse bags

Environmental and
pollution prevention

22/10/2019

Environmental
Protection

Hazelmere
Staff along with
Umgeni Water

50

DCLM

Gloves and
refuse bags

Environmental and
pollution prevention

30/10/2019

Environmental
Protection

1-7

30

Sunfield PS

Presentation
and charts

Environmental
Protection

30/10/2019

Environmental
Protection

R

20

Hazelmere
Creche

Presentation
and charts

Environmental
Protection

10/02/2020

Dam Safety

2 -7

100

Oakford PS

Presentation,
charts, colour
pens.

Dam safety and
environmental
pollution

10/02/2020

Wildlife,
water and
ecosystems

1-7

110

Cottonland PS Presentation,
charts, colour
pens.

Dam safety and
environmental
pollution

547
participants

10
Institutions

TOTAL

Table 9.2: Initiatives undertaken by Hazelmere Dam & Resort

Panorama Primary School Environmental Education
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Period:

Theme

Participating Number of
grades (age) learners
participating

18/07/2019

Mandela Day

Pre-school
learners

12

Khanyisani
Creche

Charts & pens

Tyre climbing game
and Environmental
pollution

4/09/2019

Arbor Week

Grades R to 7

50

Chief Ndlivane
PS

Presentation,
Trees seedlings,
compost and
shovell

Role of indigenous
trees in human
livelihoods

4/09/2019

Arbor Week

Grades 11

20

Myeka HS

Presentation,
Trees seedlings,
compost and
shovel

Role of indigenous
trees in human
livelihoods

10/09/2019

Arbor week

Grades 7

15

Isihlangusabasha PS

Presentation,
Trees seedlings,
compost and
shovel

Role of indigenous
trees in human
livelihoods

06/09/2019

Arbor week

Grades 5-7

45

Forest View PS

Presentation,
Trees seedlings,
compost and
shovel

Role of indigenous
trees in human
livelihoods

21/09/2019

Coastal
cleanup

Numerous
volunteers

100

Beachwood
mangroves

Gloves and
refuse bags

Environmental and
pollution prevention

10/10/2019

Stakeholders
Dam Safety
awareness

6&7

14

Mcetshwa PS,
Gence PS
Khanyisani
PS, Mbanana
Zenex, Bongumusa PS,
Umgeni Water,
EDTEA, Natural
Resources,
Impumelelo of
disabled Rural
Community

Presentation,
charts, colour
pens.

Dam safety and
environmental
pollution

14/10/19

Dam Safety
awareness

6&7

15

Umngeni PS
Khanyisani PS

Presentation,
charts, colour
pens.

Dam safety and
environmental
pollution

17/10/19

Dam Safety
awareness

6&7

15

Mbanana
Zenex PS
Bongumusa PS
Mcetshwa PS

Presentation,
charts, colour
pens.

Dam safety and
environmental
pollution

18/10/19

Dam Safety
awareness

6&7

15

Gence PS
Inyoni PS

Presentation,
charts, colour pens.

Dam safety and
environmental
pollution

11/02/2020

World
Wetlands Day

4-7

50

Vusukukhanya
PS

Presentation,
charts, colour pens.

Wetland identification
and human factor impact

11/02/2020

World
Wetlands Day

7

45

KwaGence PS

Presentation,
charts, colour pens.

Wetland identification
and human factor impact

11/02/2020

World
Wetlands Day

Intermediate &
Senior Phase

70

Hlengimpilo PS

Presentation,
charts, colour pens.

Wetland identification
and human factor impact

466

25 Instuitions

Total

Institution

Table 9.3: Initiatives undertaken by Inanda Dam & Resort
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Period:

Theme

Participating Number of
grades (age) learners
participating

18/07/19

Mandela Day

RR

31/07/19

04/09/19

Institution

Material
and
Method

Lesson Learnt /
Improvements

35

Intobeko Creche

Building
maintenance
supplies

Painted crèche and
participated in activities
with kids.
Mandela’s life through
the eyes of a child.

World Ranger N/A
Day

9

Nagle Dam F/R

Magqubu
Ntombela
conservation
lecture

The origins and
meaning of the Msinsi
leaf and its connection
to human wellness

Arbor Day/
Week

42

Phangindawo PS

Seedlings

Greening informal
settlements & rural
areas.Plant care &

6

management
04/10/19

World Ozone
Layer Day

Msinsi staff

46

Nagle Dam
Field staff

Charts

Actions that affect the
ozone layer. Mitigating
human induced impact
on ozone layer.

07/10/19

World Habitat
Day

RR

25

Intobeko Crèche

Posters and
Gardening tools

Weeding alien plants
from grass. Removal
of small objects from
crèche grounds.

11/10/19

01/11/19

World Habitat
Day

4

Water
Awareness
Day

6

World
Wetlands day

10-12

30

Ngabayena PS

Posters and
Gardening tools

40

Phangindawo PS

Water buckets
and Plumbing
fittings

Collection of dry
wood from ground to
demonstrate grassland
management.
The impacts of water
loss through leaks.
Demonstrations on
how to close water
leaks. Reporting water
leaks to local
authorities.

03/02/20

35

UMmbambangalo
HS

Poster
presentations
Walk about
school grounds

Ecosystem services
provided by wetlands.
Raw materials
harvested from wetlands as part of local
economy.

10/03/20

25/05/20

Total

National
Water week

National
Biodiversity
Day

10-14

all

9

Nonzila PS

42

Social media
education to
Msinsi followers

313
participants

10
institutions

Table 9.4: Initiatives undertaken by Nagle Dam & Game Reserve
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Poster
presentations
Nonzila river

Importance of rivers
Water for economic
development through

clean- up

tourism.

Slides and social Due to COVID-19,
media video
Nagle posted a short
video on the day of
National Biodiversity. The video taught
followers about wildlife
and reserves.
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10. Organisational Performance Overview
10.1 Performance against predetermined objectives
Msinsi Holdings implements its strategy through a balanced scorecard, comprising four (4) Balanced Perspectives, four (4)
Strategic Goals, and seven (7) Strategic Objectives.
The KPIs are further made up of forty-nine (49) total annual measurable Result Indicators, for which responsibilities and
accountabilities were agreed and targets approved within the entity during the year under review.
Collectively, the scorecard enables the organisation to achieve its ten (10) Outcomes and, ultimately, its mission/mandate to
manage the water resources and the environment.

10.2 Performance Report
The organisation achieved overall performance of 92.02% is an improvement from the prior year (2018/2019) overall performance
of 87%.
The variance of 7.98% was due to nine (9) targets not being holistically achieved viz.:
SO 1: Increase Services and Customers
i.

Quarterly CRM reports submitted to EXCO (achieved 67%)

ii. Total Occupancy (accommodation and camping) and % variance (achieved 24%)
SO 3: Improve Financial Viability
iii. Total revenue, Rm and per-cent variance (from operations) (achieved 47%)
iv. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure (achieved 33%)
v. Irregular Expenditure (achieved 33%)
vi. Number of Unresolved Audit Findings (achieved 89%)
SO 4: Improve Key Financial Ratios
vii. Debt ratio (achieved 85%)
SO5: Improve all Key Systems
viii. Number of hectares cleared of alien plants (achieved 91%)
ix. SCM turn-around times – Tenders (achieved 89%)
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Performance for the period under review is illustrated graphically in the following Figures 10.1 to 10.5.

Targets met and not met
(organisational 2019/2020)
% of Targets
not met 8%
8%

92%
% of Targets
not met
92%
% of Targets not met

% of Targets met

Figure 10.1: Targets

PERFORMANCE ACHIEVED

Organisational Performance Trend: 5 Years
94%
92%
90%
88%
86%
84%
82%
80%

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

2016

2017

2018
YEARS

Figure 10.2: Performance Trends
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PERFORMANCE ACHIEVED

Divisional Performance Trend : 5 Years
120%

100%

100%

89%

83%

80%
60%
40%

2016
2017

20%
0%

2018

MD

CS

OPS

2016

96%

94%

83%

2019

2017

93%

76%

81%

2020

2018

80%

90%

70%

Linear (2020)

2019

100%

87%

93%

2020

100%

89%

83%

DIVISION
Figure 10.3 Divisional Performance Trend

28,00
23,19

16
13,28
14,00
11,39
11,00
7,73
17,00
15,86

28,00
24,22
23,00
20,53

17
16,00
15,00
11,37
14,00
12,54

6
5,75
7,00
6,50
5,00
4,00
12,00
12,00
15,00
15,00

25
22,68
24,00
20,39
20,00
17,00

NUMBER OF INDICATORS

49,00
39,25
49,00
45,09

PLA N N ED A N D A C H IEVED IN D IC ATOR S: 5 YEA R S

Msinsi

MD

CS

OPS

Planned 2016

25

6

17

16

Achieved 2016

22,68

5,75

16,00

13,2 8

Planned 2017

2 4,00

7,00

15,00

14,00

Achieved 2017

2 0,39

6,50

11,37

11,39

Planned 2018

2 0,00

5,00

14,00

11,00

Achieved 2018

17,00

4,00

12,54

7,73

Planned 2019

49,00

12,00

2 8,00

17,00

Achieved 2019

39,2 5

12,00

2 4,2 2

15,86

Planned 2020

49,00

15,00

2 3,00

2 8,00

Achieved 2020

45,09

15,00

2 0,53

2 3,19

Figure 10.4 Number of planned and achieved indicators per Division
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The Figure below illustrate the summary of the organisational performance for Q4 as compared to
Q1, Q2 and Q3 of the reporting year:

Quarter 1-Quarter 4 % Performance

PERFORMANCE %

Q1

Q2

100,00% 100,00%
100,00% 100,00%

92,02%
88,00%
87,00%
82,45%

MSINSI

Q3

Q4

89,26%
92,75%
90,00%
80,41%

MD

CS

82,82%
82,93%
74,68%
71,32%

OPS

DIVISION
Figure 10.5: Annual Performance Illustration

Financial Performance Highlights

3 504

2 537

The surplus have
increased by R967k

30-Jun-20

30-Jun-19

Figure 10.6: Year-on-Year Actual Surplus

A surplus of R 3.5 million has been achieved as at 30 June 2020 compared to a R 2.5 million surplus achieved in the prior
year. This represents a year-on-year surplus increase of 40%.
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Operating Expenses
63737
540
62

Expenditure
Expenditure
hasincreased
increased
had
by R7.17
by R7.28 million
million

30-Jun-20

56 456
370
55

30-Jun-19

Figure 10.7: Year-on-Year Actual Expenditure

Operating expenses show a year-on-year increase of 13% due to addition of the 6 new operational sites.

Figure 10.8: Year-on-Year Actual Current Assets

The year-on-year increase in current assets is 99% and is attributable to:
•

The building for an amount of R10.17 million was moved from non-current assets to current assets due to the sale of the 		
Msinsi’s office building that will be concluded within the next 12 months. This was a significant contribution to the increase 		
in current assets.

•

The Cash and Cash Equivalents increased by R4.92 million mainly due to cost reduction measures and the increase in the 		
management fee

•

A decrease of R327 000 in Trade and Other Receivables is due to improved debtor’s collection.

•

The Intercompany Receivable held with Umgeni Water have increased by R 2.82 million due to the increase in the 		
Management Fee for 2019/2020.
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Current Liabilities R'000
21 966

Current
liabilities have
increased by
R10.6 million
30-Jun-20

11 321

30-Jun-19

Figure 10.9: Year-on-Year Actual Current Liabilities

The year-on-year increase in current assets is 94% and is attributable to:
•

The Umgeni Water loan account was moved from non-current to current liabilities due to the sale / transfer of the Hillcrest 		
Office building to Umgeni Water that is in progress.

•

The CSI was moved from non-current to current liabilities due to the CSI projects being due for implementation within the 		
next 12 months of the financial year 2019/2020.

•

An increase in the provision for performance bonuses of R 614 000 from the prior year based on the assumptions for 		
employees’ performance and the increased staff compliment for 2019/2020.

•

An increase in Trade and Other Payables due to the increase in income received in advance from the Wild Card loyalty 		
programme; which was recognised for 9 months due to the national lockdown. The national lockdown resulted in the Wild 		
Card loyalty programme membership being extended for 3 months by the administrators (SANParks) of the programme.

•

An amount of R273 000 was recognised as a liability, which will be paid over the next 12 months of the lease contract due 		
to the implementation of IFRS 16.

Non-current assets R'000
25 084

11 630

Non-current
assets have
decreased by
R13.45
million

30-Jun-20

30-Jun-19

Figure 10.10: Year-on-Year Actual Non-Current Assets

The year-on-year decrease in non-current assets was 54% and is due attributed to:
•

A decrease of R10.17 million in Property Plant and Equipment due to the Head Office building located in Hillcrest being 		
classified as held for sale.

•

A decrease in the Property Plant and Equipment due to depreciation incurred during the financial year.

•

An increase in the Right of Use of Asset (Lease of an Asset) for an amount of R 630 000 due to the implementation of the 		
new requirements of IFRS 16.

•

An increase of R 883 000 in Biological Assets was due to the additions of the biological asset count and the adjustment to 		
the fair value of game as per IFRS 13.
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The detailed Annual Performance Report is as follows:

STRATEGIC GOALS AND BALANCED SCORECARD PERSPECTIVES
Strategic Goal 1: Improve services and be a key partner in the provision of sustainable environmental and
biodiversity management services around water resource dams.
i.

Customer and Stakeholder

•

Strategic Objective 1: Increase services and customers

•

Strategic Objective 2: Increase customer and stakeholder value

Strategic Goal 2: Improve funding and financial management.
ii. Financial
•

Strategic Objective 3: Improve financial viability

•

Strategic Objective 4: Improve financial ratios

Strategic Goal 3: Improve efficiency of all inputs.
iii. Process
•

Strategic Objective 5: Improve key delivery systems

Strategic Goal 4: Strengthen and develop quality human resources, infrastructure capacity and water resources
sustainability to support growth.
iv. Organisational Capacity
•

Strategic Objective 6: Improve infrastructure assets

•

Strategic Objective 7: Increase skills and competency

Annual Performance Illustration
Organisational Annual Performance is presented in the following Tables with sub annexures as follows:
•

Annexure 1: Management Summary

•

Annexure 2: Variance Report

•

Annexure 3: 2019/2020 Division’s Performance by Strategic Goals
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Variance Report and Scores
A total of nine (9) out of forty-Nine (49) Result Indicators were not 100% met and the variance is indicated in the following table:

SO
SO1

SO
SO3

Result
Indicator
Result Indicator
Submit Quarterly Reports to
EXCO

Target
3 CRM Quarterly
reports submitted

Actual
1 CRM quarterly report
not submitted

Total Occupancy
accommodation

50% occupancy
accommodation

18.64%
accommodation

Total Occupancy camping

20% occupancy
camping

4.41% camping

ResultIndicator
Indicator
Result
Total revenue, Rm and per
cent variance (from
operations)

Fruitless and wasteful
expenditure

Target
Target
≥ R25m ± 10%

Zero Fruitless
and Wasteful
Expenditure

Actual
Actual
R11.54m

R560.85 Fruitless
and Wasteful
Expenditure incurred

Variance
Variance
1 CRM
quarterly
report not
submitted
31.36%

15.59%

Turnaround
Plan
Turnaround Plan
CRM Report was approved in Q3.
Approved CRM Plan for 2020/21 to
be implemented in Q1
Low occupancy levels in camping
and accommodation facilities were
increased by COVID-19 and
Lockdown regulations.
Various promotional packages are
being marketed to boost occupancy
rates post Lockdown.

Variance
Turnaround
Variance
TurnaroundPlan
Plan
R13.46m Below Target Low occupancy in
accommodation facilities, day
visitor and camping has affected
revenue.

R560.85 Fruitless and
Wasteful Expenditure

Various interventions are in place
to boost occupancy levels, with
turnaround expected in
2020/2021. Explained in the
Organisational Financial
Performance Report.
Actions plans are in place to
ensure the target is met at the
end of Q1 in 2020/2021
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SO

SO
SO4

Result
Indicator
Result
Indicator
SO
Irregular Expenditure

Target
Result Target
Indicator
Irregular
IrregularZero
Expenditure
Expenditure

Actual
Actual
Target
R1 129
681.85
Zero
Irregular
Irregular
Expenditure
Expenditure
incurred
Number of Unresolved Audit
2 Unresolved Audit
3 findings
Number≤ of
≤2
Findings
Findings

Result Indicator
Indicator
Target
SO
ResultTarget
Indicator
Financial SO4
ratios : surplusFinancial
Debt
ratio:: surplus
≤0.4:1
ratios
ratio, current ratio, debt ratio, current ratio, debt
ratio, debt to equity ratioratio, debt to equity ratio
within acceptable normswithin acceptable norms

Actual
Actual
Target
0.47:1
Debt ratio: ≤0.4:1

Turnaround
Variance
TurnaroundPlan
Plan
ActualVariance
Variance
Turnaround Plan
R1 129 681.85Irregular
Actions
plans are in place
to
681.85
R1
129 681.85Irregular
Actions
plans are in plac
Expenditure
ensure the target is met ensure
at the the target is met
Irregular Expenditure Expenditure
end of Q1 in 2020/2021.end of Q1 in 2020/2021.
incurred
1
action plan is in place
to action plan is in plac
3 finding
findings
1The
finding
The
resolve the audit finding resolve
betweenthe audit finding
Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 Quarter
of
1 and Quarter 2
2020/2021.
2020/2021.
Variance
Variance
Actual
0.07
0.47:1

Turnaround
Plan
Turnaround
Plan
Variance
Turnaround Plan
0.07 is mainly due
The variance
the
Thetovariance
is mainly due
debt owed to the Shareholder
for to the Sharehol
debt owed
the purchase of the Msinsi
thehead
purchase of the Msinsi
office.
office.

There are plans in placeThere
to transfer
are plans in place to
the ownership of the Head
theOffice
ownership of the Head
Building to the Shareholder
in to the Shareholde
Building
2020/2021 and this undertaking
will and this underta
2020/2021
improve performance of improve
this result
performance of th
indicator.
indicator.

SO
SO5

Result Indicator
Indicator
Target
Actual
Target
Actual
SO
Result Indicator
Target
Number ofSO5
hectares cleared
of of
≥1961.93ha
Number
hectares cleared of1931.55ha
≥1961.93ha
alien plants
alien plants
SCM turn-around times –SCM turn-around
≤ 10 weeks
20.79
times –
≤ 10weeks
weeks
Tenders
Tenders

Variance
Variance
Actual
30.38ha not
1931.55ha
cleared
10.79
weeks
20.79
weeks

Turnaround
Plan
Turnaround
Plan
Variance
Turnaround Plan
Interventions
are in
to ensure are in place to
30.38ha
notplaceInterventions
that the target
is met in 2020/21.
cleared
that the target is met in 202
10.79 weeks
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Organisational
Performance

Performance per Strategic
Goal

Strategic G
GOAL 1: Im

sustainable e
around water

GOAL 2: Im
GOAL 3: Im
GOAL 4: St

-8%

90,76%

85,92%

97,29%

100,00%

100,00%
90,76% 85,92% 97,29%

infrastructure
growth.

92%
GOAL 1 GOAL 2 GOAL 3 GOAL 4
NOT ACHIEVED -9,24% -14,08% -2,71% 0,00%
Performance

Variance

ACHIEVED

90,76% 85,92% 97,29% 100,00%

Strategic

Performance per Strategic Objective
0,00%

nal
ce

Strategic Goals
GOAL 1: Improve services and be a key partner in the provision of

Performance per Strategic
Goal 100,00%
100,00%

78,32%

100,00%

82,89%

100,00%
90,76% 85,92% 97,29% -17,11%

-21,68%

100,00%

sustainable environmental and biodiversity management services
100,00%
97,29%
94,80%
around
water resource
dams.

GOAL 2: Improve funding and financial management.
GOAL 3: Improve efficiency of all inputs.
GOAL 4: Strengthen and develop quality human resources,

infrastructure capacity
and water resources sustainability to support
-2,71%
-5,20%
growth.

SO 1

SO 2

SO 3

SO 4

SO 5

SO 6

SO 7

Variance

-21,68%

0,00%

-17,11%

-5,20%

-2,71%

0,00%

0,00%

Performance

78,32%
100,00%
82,89%
GOAL 1 GOAL
2 GOAL 3 GOAL
4

94,80%

97,29%

100,00%

100,00%

NOT ACHIEVED -9,24% -14,08% -2,71% 0,00%

riance

ACHIEVED

90,76% 85,92% 97,29% 100,00%

Strategic Objectives

Strategic
Goals Objective
ormance per
Strategic
gic

SO 1: Increase services and customers
SO 2: Increase customer and stakeholder value
SO 3: Improve financial viability
SO 4: Improve financial systems and key financial ratios
SO 5: Improve all key delivery systems
SO 6: Improve infrastructure assets
SO 7: Increase skills and competency

GOAL 1: Improve services and be a key partner in the provision of

sustainable environmental and biodiversity management services
0,00%
around water resource dams.

100,00%

% 100,00%

GOAL 2: Improve funding and financial management.
GOAL 3: Improve efficiency of all inputs.
97,29%
94,80% and develop
GOAL 4: Strengthen
quality human resources,100,00%

82,89%

infrastructure capacity and water resources sustainability to support
growth.

-17,11%

-5,20%

-2,71%

3 GOAL
SO 2 4
% 0,00%
0,00%

SO 3

SO 4

SO 5

SO 6

SO 7

-17,11%

-5,20%

-2,71%

0,00%

0,00%

%100,00%
100,00%

82,89%

94,80%

97,29%

100,00%

100,00%

Strategic Objectives
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Overall Organisational and Divisional Performance
Parameter

Msinsi

MD

CS

Ops

Planned Indicators

49

15

23

28

Actual Indicators

45.09

15.00

20.53

23.19

Performance

92.02%

100.00%

89.26%

82.82%

Variance

-7.98%

0.00%

-10.74%

-17.18%

Operations’ Performance (by Resorts and Reserves /Dams)
Parameter

Albert Falls

Bon Accorde

Inanda

Hazelmere

Nagle

Spring
Grove

Planned Indicators

9

3

9

8

9

5

Actual Indicators

7.22

1.24

6.66

6.86

6.36

5.00

Performance

80.22%

41.33%

74.00%

85.75%

70.67%

100.00%

Variance

-19.78%

-58.67%

-26.00%

-14.25%

-29.33%

0.00%

RI Description

Partner Divisions

Msinsi

Number of marketing initiatives implemented to promote Msinsi
products

OPS

1.00

Msinsi Expansion Plan reviewed and approved

MD

1.00

1.00

Number of New Sites Assessed for inclusion in Msinsi’s scope

MD

1.00

1.00
1.00

Revenue generated by the expansion plan.

MD

1.00

Actual Occupancy % (accommodation)

OPS

0.30

MD

CS

Ops
1.00

0.30

Actual Occupancy % (camping)

OPS

0.18

0.18

Msinsi CRM Plan for 2020/2021 developed, reviewed and approved

OPS

1.00

1.00

Quarterly reports on implementation of the 2019/2020 CRM plan
submitted to EXCO

OPS

0.67

0.67

Annual Report Submitted to the Board

MD

1.00

1.00

Quarterly Performance Reports Submitted to the Board

MD

1.00

1.00

Corporate Plan Submitted to the Board

MD

1.00

1.00

Annual review of Reserve Management Plans

OPS

1.00

Engagement with Shareholder to review Service Level Agreement

MD

1.00

Strategic stakeholders plan developed and approved by EXCO

OPS

1.00

Number of engagements with strategic stakeholders

MD, OPS

1.00

Number of planned / targeted engagements with Amakhosi / Councillors

OPS

1.00

1.00

Number of planned / targeted engagements with Umgeni Water
Superintendents

OPS

1.00

1.00

Number of engagements with staff

MD

1.00

Number of planned / targeted engagements with trade union

CS, OPS

1.00

1.00

Number sites visits by the Human Resources Department

CS

1.00

1.00
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Number of water and environmental education initiatives for
schools / communities implemented

OPS

1.00

1.00

Unqualified external audit report with no emphasis of matter (clean
audit)

CS

1.00

1.00

Total expenditure, Rm and per cent variance (*SHC)

CS

1.00

1.00

Total revenue, Rm and per cent variance

CS, OPS

0.74

1.00

Total surplus (loss), Rm and per cent variance

CS

1.00

1.00

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

MD, CS, OPS

0.33

1.00

0.00

0.00

Irregular Expenditure

MD, CS, OPS

0.33

1.00

0.00

0.00

Number of repeat findings

MD, CS, OPS

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

Number of unresolved findings

MD, CS, OPS

0.89

1.00

1.00

0.66

Internal audit plan implemented and findings reported

CS

1.00

Quarterly Reports on Management of Strategic Risks

MD

1.00

Current ratio

CS

1.00

1.00

Debt ratio

CS

0.85

0.85

Debt to equity ratio

CS

1.00

1.00

Net profit margin ratio

CS

1.00

1.00

Infrastructure Maintenance Management Plan developed, approved and implemented

OPS

1.00

SCM turn-around times – quotations

CS, OPS

1.00

1.00

1.00

SCM turn-around times - Preference points

CS, OPS

1.00

1.00

1.00

SCM turn-around times – Tenders

MD, CS, OPS

0.89

0.68

1.00

0.47

1.00
1.00

1.00

1.00

Number of new policies and / procedures developed, approved and CS, OPS
implemented

1.00

1.00

1.00

Number of policies and / procedures reviewed , approved and
implemented

CS, OPS

1.00

1.00

1.00

SHEQ management system developed, approved and launched

OPS

1.00

1.00

Number of hectares cleared of alien plants

OPS

0.91

0.91

Fire management plan developed and implemented

OPS

1.00

Human Resources Plan reviewed and implemented 2020/2021

CS

1.00

1.00

Number of Graduate Trainees (Graduates, In-service Trainees,
Interns) developed

CS

1.00

1.00

Number of temporary jobs created

OPS

1.00

Number of staff terminations as a % of the total staff complement

CS

1.00
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Detailed Report
STRATEGIC GOAL 1:
IMPROVE SERVICES AND BE A KEY PARTNER IN THE PROVISION OF SUSTAINABLE
ENVIRONMENTAL AND BIODIVERSITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES AROUND WATER RESOURCE DAMS.
BALANCED SCORECARD
PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
CS

CUSTOMER AND STAKEHOLDER
Stakeholder Understanding and Support
Community and Environmental Sustainability
Customer Satisfaction

SO 1: Increase services and customers
The extent to which the entity has grown its services and customers.

Number of marketing initiatives implemented to promote Msinsi products and results through visitor statistics
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
≥ 40
49
Nil
N/A

OPS
Number of marketing initiatives implemented to promote Msinsi products and results through visitor statistics
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
≥ 40
49
Nil
N/A
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Develop and approve a CRM plan
Q4 Target
Actual
≥1 CRM plan developed and
1 CRM plan developed and
approved by EXCO
approved by EXCO

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Nil

N/A

OPS
Develop and approve a CRM plan
≥1 CRM plan developed and
1 CRM plan developed and
approved by EXCO
approved by EXCO
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Result Indicator (RI)

Submit CRM quarterly reports to EXCO
Q4 Target
Actual
≥3 CRM Quarterly reports
2 CRM Quarterly reports
submitted
submitted

Indicator Responsibility

OPS
Submit CRM quarterly reports to EXCO
Q4 Target
Actual

Variance

Turnaround Plan

≥3 CRM Quarterly reports
submitted

1 CRM quarterly report not
submitted

CRM Plan was approved in
Q3. Approved CRM Plan
for 2020/21 to be
implemented in Q1

Departmental Indicator
(DI)

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)

2 CRM Quarterly reports
submitted

Number of reviewed and Approved CRM Plan
Q4 Target
Actual
≥1 2020/2021 CRM Plan
2020/2021 CRM Plan
reviewed and approved
reviewed and approved by
by EXCO
EXCO

Variance
1 CRM quarterly report not
submitted

Turnaround Plan
CRM Plan was approved in
Q3. Approved CRM Plan
for 2020/21 to be
implemented in Q1

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

OPS
Q4 Target
≥1 2020/2021 CRM Plan
reviewed and approved
by EXCO

Actual
2020/2021 CRM Plan
reviewed and approved by
EXCO

97
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Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)

Number of reviewed and Approved Expansion
Plan
Q4 Target
Actual
≥1 2020/2021 Expansion Plan
2020/2021 Expansion
approved by EXCO
Plan approved by EXCO

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
Departmental Indicator (DI)

Departmental Indicator (DI)

Departmental Indicator (DI)

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

MD
Q4 Target
≥1 2020/2021 Expansion Plan
approved by EXCO

Actual
2020/2021 Expansion
Plan approved by EXCO

Revenue (R) Generated by the expansion plan
Q4 Target
Actual
≥R3m
R3m

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

MD
Revenue (R )generated by the expansion plan
Q4 Target
≥R3mil

Actual
R3m

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Number of New Sites added to the current scope
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥2
2
Nil

MD
Number of New Sites added to the current scope
Q4 Target
≥2

Result Indicator (RI)

Variance
Nil

Actual
2

Variance
Nil

Total % occupancy for accommodation
Q4 Target
Actual
≥50% occupancy
18.64% occupancy

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
31.36%
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Turnaround Plan
Actions plans are in place to ensure the
target is met at the end of Q1 in 2020/2021.

Variance

Turnaround Plan

32%

The Accommodation was closed down as
from the 26 March 2020 as a result of the
COVID-19 Pandemic that brought about a
National Lockdown for the country which
has affected performance. The National
Lockdown has affected the tourism industry
in South Africa.

OPS
Q4 Target
Actual
Total % Occupancy for accommodation – Albert Falls
≥50% occupancy
18% occupancy

Total % Occupancy for accommodation– Bon Accorde
≥50% occupancy
30% occupancy

Total % Occupancy for accommodation – Inanda
≥50% occupancy
10.45% occupancy

There will be gradual opening of activities,
the accommodation is expected to be used
by the parent company in the Q1 and Q2 of
2020/2021.
20%

The Accommodation was closed down as
from the 26 March 2020 as a result of the
COVID-19 Pandemic that brought about a
National Lockdown for the country which
has affected performance. The National
Lockdown has affected the tourism industry
in South Africa.
There will be gradual opening of activities,
the accommodation is expected to be used
by the parent company in the Q1 and Q2 of
2020/2021.

39.55%

Tented accommodation occupancy target
was not met as facilities were closed due to
the National Lockdown restrictions.
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Departmental Indicator (DI)

Total % Occupancy for accommodation – Nagle
≥50% occupancy
13% occupancy

An approved business recovery plan will be
rolled out in Q1 of 2020/2021 including:
• Reserving facilities for quarantine
purposes to essential staff will aid
revenue generation.
• Marketing campaigns to promote
camping.
37%

Decrease of bookings in Q2 (peak season)
had an effect on occupancy. The banning of
ecotourism activities due to National
Lockdown meant that there will be no active
occupancy in accommodation with no
bookings taken.
Various actions plans are in place to ensure
the target is met at the end of Q1 in
2020/2021 including:
• Implement the approved business
recovery plan.
• Activate use of facilities for quarantine
purposes of essential staff.
• Advertise purchasing of accommodation
in advance.
• Operationalize accommodation and
products development to increase
customer value and collection of
maximum revenue.
• Track and report progress monthly.

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
Departmental Indicator (DI)

Departmental Indicator (DI)

Total % occupancy for camping
Q4 Target
Actual
≥20% occupancy
4.41% occupancy

Variance
15.59%

Turnaround Plan
Actions plans are in place to ensure the
target is met at the end of Q1 in 2020/2021.

Variance

Turnaround Plan

12%

The camping was closed on the 26 March
2020, due to the COVID 19 pandemic. This
Lockdown has affected the camping activity
at Albert Falls Dam.

OPS
Q4 Target
Actual
Total % Occupancy for camping – Albert Falls
≥20% occupancy
8% occupancy

Total % Occupancy for camping – Bon Accorde
≥20% occupancy
2% occupancy

Page 109 of 180

The Camping is not yet opened as the
country is still in Lockdown Level 3. This
activity will suffer for the 1st and 2nd quarter
of the new financial year. Once opened
aggressive marketing will be done to
promote the camping activity.
18%

The camping was closed on the 26 March
2020, due to the COVID 19 pandemic. This
Lockdown has affected the camping activity
in Bon Accorde.
The Camping is not yet opened as the
country is still in Lockdown level 3. This
activity will suffer for the 1st and the 2nd
quarter of the new financial year. Once
opened the camping will be aggressively
marketed.

Departmental Indicator (DI)

Total % Occupancy for camping – Inanda
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The Camping is not yet opened as the
country is still in Lockdown level 3. This
activity will suffer for the 1st and the 2nd
quarter of the new financial year. Once
opened the camping will be aggressively
marketed.
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Departmental Indicator (DI)

Departmental Indicator (DI)

Departmental Indicator (DI)

Total % Occupancy for camping – Inanda
≥20% occupancy
2% occupancy

Total % Occupancy for camping – Hazelmere
≥20% occupancy
6% occupancy

Total % Occupancy for camping – Nagle
≥20% occupancy
1% occupancy

18%

The reserve was closed and
booking
Page
110 were
of 180
cancelled due to the National Lockdown
implemented in March.
Marketing campaigns to promote camping
at is planned for Q1 of 2020/2021. These
promotions are to include:
• Promoting nature based tourism
activities including fishing competitions
and other outdoor events to boost
occupancy at campsites.
• Sell camping with natural activities
packages as part of outdoor
experience.

14%

The reserve was closed and booking were
cancelled due to the National Lockdown
implemented in March.
The negative variance of 14 % will be
recovered as of the reopening of camping in
the new financial year. Fishing competitions
will be in place where fisherman will camp
overnight.

19%

Poor camping activities in Q2. Ban of
Recreational and Tourism activities towards
the end of Q3. No camping activities and
bookings undertaken in Q4.
Various actions plans are in place to ensure
the target is met including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Implementation of Business recovery
plan to address occupancy issues.
Selling of services and activities online
Package camping with other
recreational activities to increase value
and revenue collection.
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Online marketing of advance booking
vouchers to customers
Increased social media presence so
that Nagle stays in customer’s minds.
Tracking and reporting of business
recovery plan mile stones in order to
improve, manage and redirect where
necessary.
Sell camping as an experience within
activities packages for outdoor groups.
Sell camping to school groups for
environmental scouting excursions.
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BALANCED SCORECARD
PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES:
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
OPS – Albert Falls
OPS - Hazelmere
OPS – Inanda
OPS – Nagle
OPS – Spring Grove
Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
OPS – Albert Falls
OPS - Hazelmere
OPS – Inanda
OPS – Nagle
OPS – Spring Grove
Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
OPS

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
MD
OPS
Result Indicator (RI)

CUSTOMER AND STAKEHOLDER
Stakeholder Understanding and Support
Product Quality
Customer Satisfaction
Community and Environmental Sustainability

SO 2: Increase customer and stakeholder value
The extent to which customer and stakeholder needs have been met.

Number of engagements with Amakhosi / Councillors
Q4 Target
Actual
≥18
25

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Number of engagements with Amakhosi / Councillors
Q4 Target
Actual
≥4
5
≥4
5
≥4
9
≥4
4
≥2
2

Variance
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Number of engagements with stakeholders
Q4 Target
Actual
≥18
22

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A
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N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

OPS

OPS
Number of engagements with stakeholders
Q4 Target
Actual
≥4
5
≥4
5
≥4
6
≥4
4
≥2
2

Strategic stakeholder plan developed and approved by EXCO
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥2020/21 stakeholder
2020/21 stakeholder
Nil
engagement plan approved
engagement plan approved
by EXCO
by EXCO

Turnaround Plan
N/A

OPS
Strategic stakeholder plan developed and approved by EXCO
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥2020/21 stakeholder
2020/21 stakeholder
Nil
engagement plan approved
engagement plan approved
by EXCO
by EXCO

Number of engagements with strategic stakeholders
Q4 Target
Actual
≥8
85

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A
N/A

MD, OPS
Number of engagements with strategic stakeholders
Q4 Target
Actual
≥4
4
≥4
81

Engagement with the Shareholder to review the Service Level Agreement
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance

Turnaround Plan
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Indicator responsibility

Q4 Target
≥8

Actual
85

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Number of engagements with strategic stakeholders
Q4 Target
Actual
≥4
4
≥4
81

Variance
Nil
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A
N/A

≥1

Nil

N/A

MD,2019/20
OPS
ANNUAL REPORT
Departmental Indicator (DI)
MD
OPS
Result Indicator
(RI)
Indicator
responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
Indicator responsibility
MD
Departmental Indicator (DI)
MD
Result Indicator (RI)

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
MD
Indicator
responsibility
Departmental
Indicator (DI)
Departmental
Indicator (DI)
MD
MD
Departmental Indicator (DI)
MD
Departmental Indicator (DI)
MD
Departmental Indicator (DI)
MD
Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
OPS – Albert Falls
OPS - Hazelmere
OPS – Inanda
OPS – Nagle
OPS – Spring groove

Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
OPS – Albert Falls
OPS - Hazelmere
OPS – Inanda
OPS – Nagle

1

Engagement with the Shareholder to review the Service Level Agreement
MD,
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Engagement with the Shareholder
≥1
1 to review the Service Level Agreement
Nil
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
MD,
≥1
1
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A
Page
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Turnaround
Plan
N/A

Engagement with the Shareholder to review the Service Level Agreement
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥1
1
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Number of submissions to the Board in respect of Quarterly Performance Reports, Annual Reports and Corporate
Plan
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
1 Annual Report approved
1 Annual Report approved
Nil
Nil
Number
of Organisational
submissions to the4Board
in respect
of QuarterlyNil
Performance Reports, AnnualN/A
Reports and Corporate
4 Quarterly
Quarterly
Organisational
Plan
Performance Reports
Performance Reports
Q4
Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
approved
1 Annual Report approved
1 Annual Report approved
Nil
Nil
4
4 Quarterly Organisational
Nil
N/A
1 Quarterly
CorporateOrganisational
Plan approved
Performance Reports
Performance Reports
MD
approved
Number of submissions to the Board in respect of the Annual Report
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
1
Planapproved
approved
1 Corporate
Annual Report
1 Annual Report approved
Nil
N/A
MD
Number of submissions to the Board in respect of the Quarterly Organisational Performance Reports
Number
of submissions to theActual
Board in respect of the Annual
Report
Q4 Target
Variance
Turnaround Plan
Q4
Target Organisational
Actual
Variance
Turnaround
Plan
4 Quarterly
4 Quarterly Organisational
Nil
N/A
1
Annual Report
approved
1
Annual Report
approved
Nil
N/A
Performance
Reports
Performance
Reports
Number of submissions to the Board in respect of the Quarterly Organisational Performance Reports
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
4 Quarterly Organisational
4 Quarterly Organisational
Nil
N/A
Performance Reports
Performance Reports
Number of submissions to the Board in respect of Corporate Plan
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
1 Corporate Plan approved
1 Corporate Plan approved
Nil
N/A
Number of submissions to the Board in respect of Corporate Plan
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Number of reviewed reserve management plans
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥5 Reserve management
5 Reserve management plans
Nil
plans reviewed and approved reviewed and approved by EXCO
by EXCO
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Turnaround Plan
Turnaround
Plan
Page
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N/A

OPS
Number of reviewed reserve management plans
Q4 Target
Actual
≥ 1 Reserve management
1 Reserve management plan
plans reviewed and approved reviewed and approved by EXCO
by EXCO
≥ 1 Reserve management
1Reserve management plan
plans reviewed and approved reviewed and approved by EXCO
by EXCO
≥ 1 Reserve management
1 Reserve management plan
plans reviewed and approved reviewed and approved by EXCO
by EXCO
≥ 1 Reserve management
1 Reserve management plan
plans reviewed and approved reviewed and approved by EXCO
by EXCO
≥ 1 Reserve management
1 Reserve management plan
plans reviewed and approved reviewed and approved by EXCO
by EXCO

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Nil

N/A

Nil

N/A

Nil

N/A

Nil

N/A

Number of water and or environmental education initiatives for schools / communities implemented
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
≥ 32
44
Nil
N/A
OPS
Number of water and environmental education initiatives for schools / communities implemented
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
≥8
13
Nil
N/A
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≥8
10
Nil
N/A
≥8
13
Nil
N/A
≥8
8
Nil
N/A
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STRATEGIC GOAL 2: IMPROVE FUNDING AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
BALANCED SCORECARD
PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
OPS

Bon Accorde
OPS

Hazelmere
OPS

FINANCIAL PERSPECTIVE
Financial Viability
Stakeholder Understanding and Support
Customer Satisfaction
Community and Environmental Sustainability

SO 3: Improve Financial Viability
The extent to which there are sustainable financial returns for each system,
area, region and the organisation

Total surplus, Rm
Q4 Target
≥ R1.038m surplus

Actual
R3.5m Surplus

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Actual
R3.5m Surplus

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

CS
Total surplus, Rm
Q4 Target
≥ R1.038m surplus

Total revenue, Rm (from operations) ≥R 25 994 000m
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥ R25 994 000m
R11.54m
R13.46m Below
Target

Turnaround Plan
Actions plans are in place to ensure the
target is met at the end of Q1 in
2020/2021.

OPS

Total revenue, Rm : Albert Falls and Khayalami
≥ R10 19m
R4.67m

R5.53m Below Target

Page 119 of 180

On the 26 March 2020, the country went
into National Lockdown due to COVID 19
pandemic. This affected the revenue for
Albert Falls Dam and Game Reserve.
Gradual opening of the activities in the
started on 01 July 2020. Albert Falls will
promote activities that are permitted to
take place during these time.

Total revenue, Rm: Bon Accorde
≥ R3 7m
R2.02m

R1.70m Below Target

On the 26 March 2020, the country went
into the National Lockdown due to COVID
19 Pandemic. This affected the revenue for
Bon Accorde Resort.
Gradual opening of the activities started
opening on the 01 July 2020. Bon Accorde
will promote activities that are permitted to
take place during this time.

Total revenue, Rm: Hazelmere
≥ R4 27m
R2.93m

R1.35m Below Target

The reserve was closed during Q4 due to
the National Lockdown implemented in
March. This resulted in a loss of revenue
during Q4 which is one of our busy
Quarters.
The reserve will recover during Q1 of the
new financial year 2020/2021 where the
reserve will be open for fishing including
the renewal of fishing permits, boat
registration and boat lockers.

Inanda
OPS

Total revenue, Rm: Inanda
≥ R5 77m

R2.01m

R3.76m Below Target

Revenue target was not met due to
unprecedented National Lockdown of
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OPS

≥ R4 27m

R2.93m

R1.35m Below Target
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The reserve was closed during Q4 due to
the National Lockdown implemented in
March. This resulted in a loss of revenue
during Q4 which is one of our busy
Quarters.
The reserve will recover during Q1 of the
new financial year 2020/2021 where the
reserve will be open for fishing including
the renewal of fishing permits, boat
registration and boat lockers.

Inanda
OPS

Total revenue, Rm: Inanda
≥ R5 77m

R2.01m

R3.76m Below Target

Revenue target was not met due to
unprecedented National Lockdown of
facilities caused by Global Page
Pandemic.
120 of 180
Hence, resort was closed down during Q4.

Marketing campaigns to promote camping
and other activities are place for Q1 of
2020/2021. These include:
• Phase one: promoting nature based
tourism activities and other outdoor
events to boost occupancy at
campsites.
• Phase two: repair/replace of canvas
walls, roof and deck is planned to be
finished by end Q1 in the new financial
year (2020/2021).
Nagle
OPS

Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
CS
Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)

MD

Total revenue, Rm: Nagle
≥ R2.03m

R0.65m

R1.39m Below Target

Poor economic conditions during the
2019/2020 financial year and the outbreak
of the COVID-19 had adverse effects on
the financial performance of Nagle Dam.
Various action plans are in place to ensure
the diversification of revenue streams in
2020/2021 including:
• Generating revenue from offering
biodiversity programs such as alien
plants eradication
• Capitalize on the ability of Msinsi to
host outdoor events once open.
• Increase Msinsi presence via social
media platforms and website.
• Work towards securing other
government grants, such as hosting of
learnership programs and tourism
infrastructure grants to improve
revenue generating facilities.

Total revenue, Rm (R54.244m Management Fee)
Q4 Target
Actual
R54.24m
R54.24m

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A
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Total revenue, Rm (R54.244m Management Fee)
Q4 Target
Actual
R54.24m
R54.24m

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Total expenditure, Rm
Q4 Target
≤ R79.49m

Actual
R63.5m

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

R63.5 m

Nil

N/A

CS

CS
Total expenditure, Rm
≤ R79.49m

Zero fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Q4 Target
Actual
Zero Fruitless
R560.85 Fruitless and
and Wasteful Expenditure
Wasteful Expenditure

Variance
R560.85 Fruitless and
Wasteful Expenditure

Turnaround Plan
Actions plans are in place to ensure
the target is met at the end of Q1 in
2020/2021.

Variance

Turnaround Plan

Nil

N/A

CS
Zero fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Q4 Target
Actual
Zero Fruitless
and Wasteful Expenditure

Zero Fruitless and
Wasteful Expenditure
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CS

R83.20 Fruitless and
Wasteful Expenditure

R83.20 Fruitless and
Wasteful Expenditure

Zero Fruitless and Wasteful
Expenditure

OPS

R477.65 Fruitless and
Wasteful Expenditure

R477.65 Fruitless and
Wasteful Expenditure

Zero Fruitless
and Wasteful Expenditure

Result Indicator (RI)

Zero Irregular Expenditure
Q4 Target
Zero Irregular Expenditure

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
CS

MD,CS,OPS
Zero Irregular Expenditure
Q4 Target

Zero Irregular Expenditure
Zero Irregular Expenditure

Going forward the utility schedule will
be reconciled to the payments on a
weekly basis.
The variance is due to interest on the
late payment of invoices / overdue
accounts.
Interventions are in place to ensure
that invoices are received
electronically and paid on time by the
end of Q1 in 2020/2021.

Actual
R1 129 681.85 Irregular
Expenditure

Variance
R1 129 681.85
Irregular
Expenditure

Turnaround Plan
Actions plans are in place to ensure
the target is met at the end of Q1 in
2020/2021.

Actual
R524 720.55 Irregular
Expenditure

Variance
R524 720.55
Irregular
Expenditure

Turnaround Plan
The SCM process not was followed
on the extension of contracts.

Zero Irregular Expenditure

MD
OPS

The e-mails from Telkom were not
monitored and reconciled against the
utility schedule resulting in a late
payment.

Zero Irregular Expenditure
R604 961.30 Irregular
Expenditure

Nil
R604 961.30
Irregular
Expenditure

The Tender process is in progress
and will be completed in Q1 of
2020/2021.
N/A
The SCM process not was followed
on the extension of contracts and
there was no compliance with SCM
requirements.
The Tender process is in progress
The will
Tender
processPage
isininQ1
progress
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and
be completed
of of 180
and will be completed in Q1 of
2020/2021.
2020/2021.

Result Indicator (RI)
Result Indicator (RI)

Unqualified external audit report with no matters of emphasis (clean audit)
Unqualified
with no matters of emphasis
(clean audit)
Q4
Target external audit report
Actual
Variance
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Unqualified
external audit
There
were material
Unqualified
externalofaudit
There were
material
report
with matters
findings
on compliance
report with matters of
findings
on compliance
emphasis
with
legislation
and
emphasis
with legislation
and
performance
information
performance information
Unqualified external audit
Unqualified
external
audit
report
with no
matters
of
report with(clean
no matters
emphasis
audit)of
emphasis (clean audit)

Indicator responsibility
Indicator responsibility
Departmental
Indicator (DI)
Departmental Indicator (DI)

CS
CS
Unqualified
external audit report with no matters of emphasis (clean audit)
Unqualified
with no matters of emphasis
(clean audit)
Q4
Target external audit report
Actual
Variance
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Unqualified
external audit
There
were material
Unqualified
externalofaudit
There were
material
report
with matters
findings
on compliance
report with matters of
findings
on compliance
emphasis
with
legislation
and
emphasis
with legislation
and
performance
information
performance information
Unqualified external audit
Unqualified
external
audit
report
with no
matters
of
report with(clean
no matters
emphasis
audit)of
emphasis (clean audit)

CS
CS

Turnaround Plan
Turnaround
Planon
Material
findings
Material findings
on
compliance
with legislation
compliance
were
raised.with legislation
were raised.
Timeous review of information
Timeous
review
information
and
creation
of aofcompliance
and creation
of a compliance
checklist.
Sufficient
time will be
checklist.
Sufficient
time will
given
to Internal
Auditors
to be
given tothe
Internal
to
identify
gaps Auditors
and
identify the where
gaps and
strengthen
weakness
strengthen
where weakness
have
been identified.
have been identified.
Turnaround Plan
Turnaround
Planon
Material
findings
Material findings
on
compliance
with legislation
compliance
were
raised.with legislation
were raised.
Timeous review of information
Timeous
review
information
and
creation
of aofcompliance
and creation
of a compliance
checklist.
Sufficient
time will be
checklist.
Sufficient
time will
given
to Internal
Auditors
to be
given
to
Internal
Auditors
to
identify the gaps and
identify the where
gaps and
strengthen
weakness
strengthen
where weakness
have
been identified.
have been identified.
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Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
MD
CS
OPS
Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
MD
CS
OPS

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
MD
Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
MD

Number of Repeat Audit Findings
Q4 Target
Actual
≤6
0

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Number of Repeat Audit Findings
≤2
0
≤2
0
≤2
0

Nil
Nil
Nil

N/A
N/A
N/A

Number of Unresolved Audit Findings
Q4 Target
Actual
≤6
6

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Nil
Nil
1 unresolved finding

N/A
N/A
There are three
unresolved internal audit
findings.

MD, CS, OPS

MD, CS, OPS
Number of Unresolved Audit Findings
≤2
1
≤2
2
≤2
3

The action plan is in
place to resolve them
between Q1 and Q2 of
2020/2021.
Number of Quarterly Reports on Management of Strategic Risks
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
4 strategic risk reports
4 Strategic Risk Reports
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

MD
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Number of Quarterly Reports on Management of Strategic Risks
4 strategic risk reports
4 Strategic Risk Reports
Nil

Internal Audit Plan implemented and findings reported
Q4 Target
Actual
Internal Audits completed as
Internal Audits completed as per
per Annual Plan
Annual Plan

N/A

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Nil

N/A

CS
Internal Audit Plan implemented and findings reported
Internal Audits completed as
Internal Audits completed as per
per Annual Plan
Annual Plan
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BALANCED SCORECARD
PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES:

FINANCIAL
Financial Viability, Infrastructure Stability, Community Sustainability.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
CS

SO 4: Improve key financial ratios
The extent to which there are sustainable financial returns for each system,
area, region and the organisation

Financial ratios : net profit margin, current ratio, debt ratio, debt to equity ratio within acceptable norms
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
Nil
Current ratio: ≥2:1
1.61:1
N/A
Debt ratio: ≤0.4:1
0.47:1
0.07
The variance was caused by the debt owed to the
Shareholder and suppliers.

Debt to equity: ≤ 1.5:2
Net profit margin ratio: ≥1%

0.90:2
5%

Nil
Nil

There are plans in place to transfer the ownership
of the Head Office Building to the Shareholder in
the new financial year 2020/2021. The payment to
the suppliers will be done as per the contractual
agreements.
N/A
N/A

CS

Financial ratios : net profit margin, current ratio, debt ratio, debt to equity ratio within acceptable norms
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
Nil
Current ratio: ≥ 2:1
1.99:1
N/A
Debt ratio: ≤ 0.4 :1
0.47:1
0.07
The variance was caused by the debt owed to the
Shareholder and suppliers.

Debt to equity: ≤1.5:2
Net profit margin ratio: ≥1%

0.90:2
5%

Nil
Nil

There are plans in place to transfer the ownership
of the Head Office Building to the Shareholder in
the new financial year 2020/2021. The payment to
the suppliers will be done as per the
contractual
Page
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agreements.
N/A.
N/A

STRATEGIC GOAL 3:
IMPROVE EFFICIENCY OF ALL INPUTS.
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STRATEGIC GOAL 3: IMPROVE EFFICIENCY OF ALL INPUTS

BALANCED SCORECARD
PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:SCORECARD
BALANCED
PERSPECTIVE:
STRATEGIC
OUTCOMES:OBJECTIVE:
KEY PERFORMANCE
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:
INDICATORS:
KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS:
Result Indicator (RI)
Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental
Indicator (DI)
OPS – Albert Falls
OPS – Hazelmere
OPS – Inanda
OPS – Albert Falls
OPS – Nagle
OPS – Hazelmere
OPS – Spring Grove
OPS – Inanda
OPS – Nungwane
OPS – Nagle
OPS – Mhlabatshane
OPS – Spring Grove
OPS – Nungwane
OPS – Mhlabatshane
OPS – EJ Smith
OPS – Mzinto
OPS – Imvutshane
OPS
EJ Smith
OPS –
– Darvill
Wastewater
OPS – Ixopo (Aquatic
Weed)
Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
OPS – Albert Falls
OPS - Hazelmere
OPS - Inanda
OPS – Nagle
OPS – Spring Grove
Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
CS

Result Indicator (RI)

Process
Operational Resiliency, Operational Optimisation and Community and
Process
Environmental Sustainability
Operational Resiliency, Operational Optimisation and Community and
SO
5: Improve all key systems
Environmental Sustainability

The
extent
to which
business
SO 5:
Improve
all key
systemsprocesses, policies and systems are enabling
strategy implementation
The extent to which business processes, policies and systems are enabling
strategy implementation

Number of hectares cleared of alien plants
Q4 Target
Actual
≥1961.93ha
1931.55ha
Number of hectares cleared of alien plants
Q4 Target
Actual
≥1961.93ha
1931.55ha
OPS
Number of hectares cleared of alien plants
OPS
Q4 Target
Actual
≥1000ha
1000ha
Number
of
hectares
cleared
of
alien
plants
≥100ha
87.30ha
Q4
Target
Actual
≥56ha
56ha
≥1000ha
1000ha
≥630ha
630ha
≥100ha
87.30ha
≥31ha
31ha
≥56ha
56ha
≥19ha
19ha
≥630ha
630ha
≥17.68ha
0ha
≥31ha
31ha
≥19ha
19ha
≥17.68ha
0ha
≥10.76ha
≥56.41ha
≥17.68ha
≥10.76ha
≥17.4ha

≥6ha

10.76ha
56.41ha
17.68ha
10.76ha
17.4ha
6ha

Variance
30.38ha have not
been cleared
Variance
30.38ha have not
been cleared

Turnaround Plan
Various interventions are in place to ensure
that the target is met in Q1 of 2020/2021.
Turnaround Plan
Various interventions are in place to ensure
that the target is met in Q1 of 2020/2021.

Variance
Nil
12.70ha
Variance
Nil
Nil
Nil
12.70ha
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
17.68ha
Nil
Nil
17.68ha

Turnaround Plan
N/A
N/A
Turnaround Plan
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
Work had to cease one week into the project
N/A
COVID-19 Pandemic.
due to the COVID19
N/A
Work is set to resume after the National
Work
had to cease one week into the project
Lockdown.
due
N/A to the COVID19 Pandemic.
Work
N/A is set to resume after the National
Lockdown.
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N/A
N/A
N/A

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Number of kilometres burnt in the Reserves
Q4 Target
Actual
≥106.8 km
106.8 km
OPS
Number of kilometres burnt in the Reserves
Q4 Target
Actual
≥15 km
15 km
≥5 km
5 km
≥1.8 km
1.8 km
≥15 km
15 km
≥70 km
70 km

N/A
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Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Human Resources Plan reviewed and approved by the Board
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥2020/21 Human resources
2020/21 Human resources
Nil
Plan approved by the Board
Plan approved by the Board

Turnaround Plan
N/A

CS
Human Resources Plan reviewed and approved by the Board
Q4 Target
Actual
≥2020/21 Human resources
2020/21 Human resources
Plan approved by the Board
Plan approved by the Board

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Number of new policies and / procedures developed and approved by EXCO or the Board
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
≥12
15
Nil
N/A
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Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
CS

Indicator responsibility
Result Indicator (RI)
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
CS
Indicator responsibility
OPS
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
CS
OPS
Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Result Indicator (RI)
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
CS
Indicator responsibility
OPS
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
Result
Indicator (RI)
CS
OPS
Indicator responsibility
Result Indicator (RI)
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
OPS
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
Quotations
turnaround
(DI)
Result
times
OPS Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)
CS
, OPS
Result
Indicator (RI)

≥2020/21 Human resources
Plan approved by the Board

2020/21 Human resources
Plan approved by the Board

CS
Human Resources Plan reviewed and approved by the Board
Q4 Target
Actual
≥2020/21 Human resources
2020/21 Human resources
Plan approved by the Board
Plan approved by the Board

Nil

N/A

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

CS,
OPS
Number of new policies and / procedures developed and approved by EXCO or the Board
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Number of new policies and/procedures developed, approved by EXCO or the Board
≥12
15
Nil
≥9
10
Nil
≥3
5
Nil
CS, OPS

Number of new policies and/procedures developed, approved by EXCO or the Board
≥9
10
Nil
≥3
5
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A
N/A
N/A
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N/A
N/A

Number of policies and / procedures reviewed and approved by EXCO or the Board
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
≥16
18
Nil
N/A
CS
Number of policies and / procedures reviewed and approved by EXCO or the Board
Q4 Target
Actualreviewed and approved by
Variance
Turnaround Plan
Number
of policies and / procedures
EXCO or the Board
≥16
18
Nil
N/A
≥15
17
Nil
N/A
≥1
1
Nil
N/A
CS
Number of policies and / procedures reviewed and approved by EXCO or the Board
≥15
17
Nil
N/A
Number of SHEQ reports submitted to EXCO
≥1
1
Nil
N/A
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
≥4 Quarterly SHEQ Reports
4 Quarterly SHEQ reports
Nil
N/A

OPS
Number of SHEQ reports submitted to EXCO

Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
Number of SHEQ reports submitted to EXCO
≥4 Quarterly SHEQ Reports
4 Quarterly SHEQ reports
Nil
N/A
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
≥4
Quarterly SHEQ Reports
4 Quarterly SHEQ reports
Nil
N/A
OPS
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
≤10
days of SHEQ reports
5.73 days
N/A
Number
submitted to EXCO Nil
Number
of days taken to procureActual
goods and services from R2kVariance
to R 30k (quotations) Turnaround Plan
Q4 Target
CS,
OPS
≥4 Quarterly
SHEQ Reports
4 Quarterly SHEQ reports
Nil
N/A
Page 132 of 180
Number of days taken to procure goods and services from R2k to R 30k (quotations)
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
Turnaround Plan
Number of days taken to procure goods and services from R2k to R 30k (quotations)
≤10 days
5.73 days
Nil
N/A
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STRATEGIC GOAL 4:
STRENGTH AND DEVELOP QUALITY HUMAN RESOURCES,
INFRASTRUCTURE CAPACITY AND WATER RESOURCES
SUSTAINABILTY TO SUPPORT GROWTH
BALANCED SCORECARD
PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:
KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator
(DI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
CS

Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
OPS

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
CS

Operational Resiliency
Operational Optimisation
Community and environmental sustainability

SO6: Improve infrastructure assets
Infrastructure maintenance within target cash flows and completion dates.

Infrastructure Maintenance Plan approved
Q4 Target
Actual
2020/21 Infrastructure
2020/21 Infrastructure
Maintenance Plan approved
Maintenance Plan approved
by EXCO
by EXCO
OPS
Infrastructure Maintenance Plan approved
Q4 Target
Actual
2020/21 Infrastructure
2020/21 Infrastructure
Maintenance Plan approved
Maintenance Plan approved
by EXCO
by EXCO

BALANCED SCORECARD
PERSPECTIVE:
OUTCOMES:
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR
Result Indicator (RI)

ORGANISATIONAL CAPACITY

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

ORGANISATIONAL CAPACITY
Leadership and Employee Development
SO 7: Increase skills and competency
Effectiveness and efficiency of employee training and development programmes

Number of Trainees (Graduates, In-service Trainees, Interns) contracted
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥6
6
Nil
CS
Number of Trainees (Graduates, In-service Trainees, Interns) contracted
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥6
6
Nil
Number of temporary jobs created
Q4 Target
Actual
≥ 321
480
OPS
Number of temporary jobs created
Q4 Target
Actual
≥ 321
480

Number of engagements with staff
Q4 Target
Actual
≥2
2

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Page 136 of 180

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

MD
Number of engagements with staff
Q4 Target
Actual
≥2
2
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Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
CS

Result Indicator (RI)

Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
CS
Result Indicator (RI)
Indicator responsibility
Departmental Indicator (DI)
CS

Number of engagements with the trade union
Q4 Target
Actual
≥4
8

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Variance
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

CS
Number of engagements with the trade union
Q4 Target
Actual
≥4
8

Number of site visits to the reserves by the Human Resources Department
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥1
5
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

MD, OPS
Number of site visits to the Reserves by the Human Resources Department
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≥1
5
Nil
Staff terminations as a % of the total staff complement
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≤ 5%
2.17%
Nil
CS
Number of staff terminations as a % of the total staff complement
Q4 Target
Actual
Variance
≤ 5%
2.17%
Nil

Turnaround Plan
N/A

Turnaround Plan
N/A
Turnaround Plan
N/A

Page 138 of 180
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MSINSI
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(Registration
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1992/003933/30)
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

General Information
General Information

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION AND DOMICILE
COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION AND DOMICILE
NATURE OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
NATURE OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
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REGISTERED OFFICE

BUSINESS ADDRESS
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POSTAL ADDRESS

BANKERS
BANKERS
AUDITORS
AUDITORS
COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER
COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER
LEVEL OF ASSURANCE
LEVEL OF ASSURANCE

South Africa
South Africa
During the year, Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd carried on the business of
During the year,and
Msinsi
Holdings (SOC)
Ltd carried
the business of
Environmental
Conservation
Management.
Theon
Company's
Environmental
and Conservation
Theand
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manage the land
water surface
mandate
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Umgeni
Water is to
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of
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Umgenithe
Water
a fee
andsurface
to
of
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to of
provide
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the general
The
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provide
recreational
opportunities
for the
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at general
the individual
namely;
the Company's
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the individual
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Albert
Falls, Bonoperations
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Spring
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Unit 1 and 2
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and 2
Block1 C
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C
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18
Old Main Road
Hillcrest
Hillcrest
3610
3610
Unit 1 and 2
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and 2
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Hillcrest
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3610
3610
Msinsi Resorts and Game Reserves
Msinsi
and Game Reserves
PrivateResorts
Bag X1020
Private
Bag
X1020
Hillcrest
Hillcrest
3650
3650
First National Bank; Rand Merchant Bank
First National Bank; Rand Merchant Bank
Auditor General of South Africa
Auditor General of South Africa
1992/003933/30
1992/003933/30
These annual financial statements have been audited in compliance
These
financial
statements
been audited
compliance
with
theannual
applicable
requirements
ofhave
the Companies
Actin71
of 2008 and
with theFinance
applicable
requirements
Companies Act 71 of 2008 and
Public
Management
Act of
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1999.
Public Finance Management Act of 1999.

THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE
THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE
PREPARED BY:
PREPARED BY:

Denise Govender
Denise Govender
Financial Manager
Financial Manager

THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE
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ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE
REVIEWED
BY:
REVIEWED BY:

Mbali Ngubane CA (SA)
Mbali Ngubane CA (SA)
Divisional Head: Corporate Services
Divisional Head: Corporate Services
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MSINSI HOLDINGS (SOC) LIMITED

(Registration number: 1992/003933/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
The directors of the company are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation and
integrity of the Annual Financial Statements and related financial information. The Annual Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standards, the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and the
Public Finance and Management Act, 1999, of South Africa ("PFMA").
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal control. These controls are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance to the reliability of the annual financial statements, and to adequately
safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and to prevent and detect material misstatement and losses. The
systems are implemented and monitored by suitably trained personnel within an appropriate segregation of authority and duties.
Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls,
procedures and systems has occurred during the period under review.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, since the directors have every reason to
believe that the company will continue to receive support from Umgeni Water.
Msinsi Holdings continues to receive financial support from Umgeni Water for the work it conducts on behalf of Umgeni Water
and this ensures the going concern status of Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Limited.
Approval of annual financial statements:
The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 150
132 to 186
168 will be approved by the Accounting Authority on 15 October 2020
and signed on their behalf by:

OM Dlamini
Managing
Director

OM Dlamini
Managing Director

N Mkhize
Board Chairperson

N. Mkhize
Board Chairperson
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MSINSI HOLDINGS (SOC) LIMITED

(Registration number: 1992/003933/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Declaration By The Company Secretary
Declaration by the Company Secretary in respect of section 88(2) (e) of the Companies Act for the year ended 30 June 2020.
I certify, in accordance with section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, that for the year ended 30 June 2020,
the entity has lodged with the Companies Intellectual Property Commission (CIPC) all such returns as required by a state
owned company in terms of this Act, and that all such returns are true and correct and up to date.

S D S Madonsela
Company Sectretary
Secretary
15 October 2020
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MSINSI HOLDINGS (SOC) LIMITED

(Registration number: 1992/003933/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Director's Report
1.

NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd carried out the business of Environmental and Conservation Management. The
Company's mandate from Umgeni Water is to manage the land and water surface of the dams owned or managed by Umgeni
Water for a fee and to provide recreational opportunities for the general public. The bulk of the Company's operations are
located at the individual reserves namely: Albert Falls, Bon Accorde, Hazelmere, Nagle, Inanda and Spring Grove.
2.

SHAREHOLDER

Umgeni Water subscribes to 100% of the shareholding.
3.

Director

The directors in office at the year ended 30 June 2020 are:
Director
Designation
T B Hlongwa
Non-Executive
Dr B Mkhize
Independent Non-Executive
M Ndlovu
Independent Non-Executive
S Shabalala
Independent Non-Executive
O M Dlamini
Prescribed Officer
P N Mkhize
Non-Executive
M Pillay
Non-Executive

4.

Appointment
Appointed April 2014
Appointed June 2014
Appointed September 2015
Appointed September 2015
Appointed May 2017
Appointed November 2018
Appointed January 2019

GOING CONCERN

The directors are of the opinion that the company will continue to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable future as it will
continue to receive support from Umgeni Water. Any issues affecting the restructuring of the holding company (Umgeni Water)
are not anticipated to affect the entity. This is supported by a letter of financial support issued to the entity by the shareholder.
The Accounting Authority of Umgeni Water has issued a going concern status in the entity’s Annual Financial Statements for
2019/2020 (accessible on www.umgeni.co.za and on request) and we support their statement in as far as it may be construed
to extend to Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd.
5.

LITIGATION STATEMENT

There is no pending litigation as at 30 June 2020.
6.

AUDITORS

The Auditor General of South Africa is the appointed auditor for the company during 2019/2020.
7.

LIQUIDITY AND SOLVENCY

The directors have performed the required liquidity and solvency test required by the Companies Act 71 0f 2008. The
Financial Statements was approved set out on page 150
132 to
to 186
168 which have been prepared on the going concern basis by
the board of directors on 15 October 2020, and was signed on its behalf by:

OM Dlamini
Managing Director
15 October 2020
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Audit and Risk Committee Report for the year ended 30 June 2020
Report of the Audit and Risk Committee in terms of Regulation 27.1 of the Public Finance Management Act
No. 1 of 1999, as amended
The Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its charter that adequately addresses the
functions of an Audit Committee as set out in the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended (the PFMA). The
Committee has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter, and has discharged all of its responsibilities contained therein.

In the conduct of its duties, the Committee has performed the following activities:
•

Considered and motivated for the recovery of all outstanding fruitless and wasteful expenditure. Recorded a reduction in this
type of expenditure in the current period compared to prior years. Refer Note 37 to the Annual Financial Statements for
details.

•

Considered and motivated for the condonation of irregular expenditure incurred in prior periods and the current financial 		
period. Recorded improvements in the identification mechanisms and the amount of this type of expenditure in the current 		
period compared to prior years. The Committee is awaiting the response to the recommended condonations (Condonation 		
Report) from the National Treasury. Refer Note 38 to the Annual Financial Statements for details.

•

Post Balance Sheet Date: Considered the first Business Recovery Plan of the organisation and its adequacy in responding 		
to the long-term adverse effects of the COVID-19 pandemic1 on the business activities of Msinsi Holdings; on 14 October 		
2020. Refer Note 36 to the Annual Financial Statements for details.

In the conduct of its duties, the Committee has, inter alia, reviewed the following:
•

Internal control, risk management and compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

•

the effectiveness of the internal control systems;

•

the risk areas of the entity’s operations covered in the scope of internal and external audits;

•

the effectiveness of the system of, and process of, risk management including the following specific risks:
- financial reporting;
- internal financial controls;
- fraud risks relating to financial reporting; and
- information technology risks relating to financial reporting;

•

the effectiveness of the entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

•

the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information provided by management and other users of such information;
and

•

the experience, expertise and resources of the finance function; and

•

Internal and external audits:
- Internal Audit and External Audit Reports;
- the effectiveness of internal audit;
- the activities of internal audit, including its annual work programme, co-ordination with the external auditor, the internal audit
findings, the management responses and implementation of the recommendations to enhance internal controls.

1
The COVID-19 State of National Disaster (“Economic Lockdown”) was declared in March 2020 by the President of South Africa. This declaration came
after some earlier economic lockdowns and travel bans in other countries had already started having a ripple effect on the business of Msinsi Holdings.
Consequently, the activation of the South African Disaster Management Act, 2002 intensified the restrictions on Msinsi Holdings’ business activities from
the last (4th) quarter of the 2019/2020 financial year under review.
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The Committee is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management and
internal audit and discussions with the AGSA on the result of their audits, that:
•

the internal accounting controls are adequate to ensure that the financial records may be relied upon for preparing the 		
financial statements, and accountability for assets and liabilities is maintained;

•

the expertise, resources and experience of the finance function are adequate;

•

the system and process of risk management and compliance processes are adequate;

•

the effectiveness of the assurance and internal audit is adequate;

•

there were no hindrances preventing the Committee from conducting its business in accordance with the approved Internal
Audit Charter; and

•

is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the Internal auditors and the AGSA.

Nothing significant has come to the attention of the Committee to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of
the controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review. The Committee is satisfied that the financial
statements are based on appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.
The Committee has evaluated the Annual Financial Statements of Msinsi Holdings SOC Ltd and accompanying notes as well as
the AGSA’s management letter and management’s responses for the year ended 30 June 2020 and, based on the information
provided, the Committee considers that they comply in all material respects with the requirements of the PFMA and International
Financial Reporting Standards. The Committee concurs with and accepts the AGSA’s report on the annual financial statements.
The Committee concurs with the Board of Directors’ conclusion that the adoption of the going concern premise in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate. Any issues affecting the restructuring of the holding company (‘Umgeni Water’) are not
anticipated to affect the entity.
This is supported by a letter of financial support issued to the entity by the shareholder. The Board of Umgeni Water has issued a
going concern status in the entity’s annual financial statements for 2019/2020 (accessible on www.umgeni.co.za and on request)
and the Audit and Risk Committee supports their statement in as far as it may be construed to extend to Msinsi.
The Committee has therefore recommended the adoption of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

_____________________________________
Audit and Risk Committee Chair
15 October 2020
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Auditor-General of South Africa
Msinsi Holdings SOC Limited Audit report 2019-20
Report of the Auditor-General to the accounting authority
of Msinsi Holdings SOC Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
1. I have audited the financial statements of Msinsi Holdings SOC Limited set out on pages 126 to 162, which comprise the 		
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 		
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.
2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Msinsi Holdings SOC
Limited as at 30 June 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS), the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South
Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies
Act).

Basis for opinion
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those 		
standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of 		
this auditor’s report.
4. I am independent of the entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
and parts 1 and 3 of the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) of the International Ethics Standards Boards for Accountants (IESBA codes) as well as the ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA codes.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the financial statements
6. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS and the requirements of the PFMA and the Companies Act, and for
such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
7. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
8. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAS will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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9. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this auditor’s
report.

Report on the Audit of the Annual Performance Report
Introduction and scope
10. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in
terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information
against predetermined objectives for the selected objective presented in the annual performance report. I performed
procedures to identify material findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
11. My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information, which must be based on
the approved performance planning documents of the entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness
of the performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures do not examine whether the actions taken
by the entity enabled service delivery. My procedures also do not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned
performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.
12. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria developed
from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for objective 5: improve all key
service delivery systems, presented on pages 108 to 109 in the annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 		
30 June 2020.
13. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and whether
performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to
determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the
reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.
14. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the selected
objective.

Other matters
15. I draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets
16. The annual performance report on pages 97 to 111 sets out information on the achievement of planned targets for the year.

Adjustment of material misstatements
17. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These material misstatements 		
were on the reported performance information for the improve all key service delivery systems objective. As management 		
subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not raise material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 		
performance information.

122

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and Scope
18. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material
findings on the entity’s compliance with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify 		
findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
19. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:

Annual Financial Statements
20. The annual financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting
framework, as required by section 55(1)(b) of the PFMA and section 29(1) (a) of the Companies Act. Material misstatements
of property, plant and equipment and FRS 16 disclosure requirements for the right of use asset identified by the auditors in
the submitted financial statements were corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Strategic Planning and Performance Management
21. An annual shareholder’s compact was not prepared as required by Treasury Regulation 29.2.1

Procurement and Contract Management
22. Some of the goods, works or service were not procured through a procurement process which is fair, equitable, transparent
and competitive, as required by section 51 (1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.

Other information
23. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report which includes the director’s report, the audit committee’s report and the company secretary’s certificate
as required by the Companies Act. The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and
the selected objective presented in the annual performance report that has been specifically reported on in the auditor’s
report.
24. My opinion on the financial statements, report on performance information and findings on compliance with legislation do not
cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
25. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected objective presented in the annual
performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
26. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When I do receive and read this information,
if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have to retract
this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary.

Internal Control Deficiencies
27. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and compliance
with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below
are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in findings on compliance with legislation included in
this report.
28. Management did not fully apply the requirements of the financial reporting framework as financial statements contained
misstatements that were subsequently corrected. The lack of reviews and monitoring of legislation resulted in non-compliance
with legislation.
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Other Reports
29. I draw attention to the following engagement conducted that had, or could have, an impact on the matters reported in the 		
entity’s financial statements, reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other related
matters. This report did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or my findings on the reported performance 		
information or compliance with legislation.
30. One investigation is being conducted by the South African Police Services and was initiated in November 2018. The
investigation related to suspected fraud into a suspicious payment made to an unknown account in 2016 and is still in
progress as at the date of this report.

Pietermaritzburg
15 October 2020
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Annexure - Auditor-General’s Responsibility for the Audit
1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 		
throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported performance information for the
selected objective and on the entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial Statements
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, I also:
•

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error; design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 		
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control

•

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control

•

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the accounting authority

•

conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of Msinsi Holdings SOC Limited ability to
continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me
at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease operating as a going
concern

•

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 		
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance
3. I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.
4. I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence
and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2020
Figures in Rand

2020

2019
Restated

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Right of Use of Asset
Biological Assets
Intangible Assets
Deposits Refundable: Electricity

Current Assets
Umgeni Water: Intercompany Receivable
Trade and Other Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Building Held for Sale
Total Assets

7,212,936
629,597
3,474,663
92,786
219,780

20,432,679
4,358,292
90,531
202,732

11,629,762

25,084,234

10,300,131
671,568
14,265,750
10,166,126

7,477,392
998,985
9,347,006
-

35,403,575

17,823,383

47,033,337

42,907,617

100
24,732,238

100
21,227,802

24,732,338

21,227,902

335,372

1,010,137
9,348,579
-

335,372

10,358,716

8,498,500
450,306
1,621,696
1,009,011
10,113,021
273,093

7,948,966
549,239
1,007,525
1,815,269
-

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital
Retained Income

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Corporate Social Investment
Loan Account Umgeni Water
Lease Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables
SARS: Vat Payable
PerformanceBonus
Bonus
Provisions for Perfomance
Corporate Social Investment
Loan Account Umgeni Water
Lease Liabilities

21,965,627

11,320,999

Total Liabilities

22,300,999

21,679,715

Total Equity and Liabilities

47,033,337

42,907,617
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Figures in Rand

2020

2019
Restated

Revenue
Other Income
Fair Value Adjustment
Lease of Land - Albert Falls
Employee Cost
Auditors Remuneration
Depreciation and Amortisation
Repairs and Maintenance
Other Operating Expenses

65,965,618
56,307,465
1,262,699
800,245
(883,629)
1,214,601
(147,190)
(40,518,967) (35,406,568)
(2,306,663)
(911,364)
(3,739,953) (3,470,760)
(2,158,165) (2,258,458)
(14,013,817) (13,262,463)

Operating profit
Finance Income
Finance Costs

3,607,126
699,585
(802,275)

2,865,510
519,152
(847,443)

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

3,504,436
-

2,537,219
-

Total profit for the year

3,504,436

2,537,219
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Share Capital
Figures in Rand

Equity
Contribution

Retained
Income

Total equity

from Parent

Balance at 01 July 2018

100

Restated Profit for the year 30 June 2019
Release of Equity Contribution from the Parent Company
Correction of error for prior year per note 41
Release of Equity Contribution from the Parent Company
Restated Balance at 30 June 2019
Profit for the year ended 30 June 2020
Balance at 30 June 2020

128

172,804

13,435,509

13,608,413

-

(172,804)
-

2,537,219
172,804
5,082,270

2,537,219
5,082,270

-

(172,804)

5,255,074

5,082,270

100

-

21,227,802

21,227,902

-

-

3,504,436

3,504,436

100

-

24,732,238

24,732,338
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Statement of Cash Flows
Figures in Rand

2020

2019
Restated

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Finance income
Finance Costs

4,930,138
699,585
(70,500)

3,308,487
519,512
-

Net cash from operating activities

5,559,223

3,827,999

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of Intangible Assets
Proceeds from the sale of Game

(268,633)
(152,357)
-

(190,640)
(93,609)
80,000

Net cash from investing activities

(420,990)

(204,249)

(219,490)

-

Cash flows from financing activities
Lease Liability Payments
Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year
Total cash at end of the year
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4,918,744
9,347,006

3,623,748
5,723,258

14,265,750

9,347,006
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Accounting Policies
General information
1.

Principal Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
1.1 Basis of Presentation
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the
Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA), and the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The Financial Statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention and is presented in South African rand.
1.2 Revenue
Revenue comprises of gate entry fees charged at the reserves gates, accommodation, tented accommodation, wild card, boat
launching fee, boat locker, special events, conferencing and environmental management fees charged to Umgeni Water in order
to meet the environmental management expenditure.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised according to the requirement of IFRS 15.
The entity applied the five step model as per the IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts with customer, to determine when to recognise
revenue and at what amount. The following approach was used:
1. Identify the contract with a customer
2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract
3. Determine the transaction price
4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation in the contract; and
5. Recognise revenue
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.
The entity provides for various revenue streams.
IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or service. Determining the timing of the
transfer of control at a point in time or over time.
1.2.1 Other Income
Revenue from interest income is accrued from the Investment Call Account maintained at Rand Merchant Bank,
Rental and sundry income is also reflected under other income.
1.3 Financial Instruments
Financial instruments consist mainly of borrowings, finance lease liabilities, listed and unlisted investments, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables.
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.
Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
The company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and classifies financial instruments, or
their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement.
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1.3 Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit or loss, any
directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent Measurement
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value being included in profit or loss for the period. Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated impairment losses. Financial liabilities at amortised cost
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Impaiments of Financial Instruments
Impairments of Financial Instruments
At the end of each reporting period, financial assets measured at cost or amortised cost are reviewed for objective evidence of
impairment. If so, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss for the period. If the objective evidence reverses in a
subsequent period, impairment losses are reversed in the profit or loss of subsequent periods.
De-recognition of Financial Instruments
Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired or
have been transferred and the company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial liabilities are
de-recognised when, and only when, they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is either
discharged, cancelled or expired.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
Trade and other Receivables
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at the invoice amount less an allowance for any unallocated amounts. Provision
is made when there is an objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect the debts. Allowance for credit losses
were identified and accounted for.
Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short- term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially
and subsequently recorded at fair value.
Loans to (from) Holding Company
These loans are recognised initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs. A loan to the holding company is classified as a
loan and receivable. A loan from the holding company is classified as a loan payable and is measured at amortised cost.
1.4 Leases
IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard which replaces IAS 17 Leases, and introduces a single lessee accounting model. The main
changes arising from the issue of IFRS 16 which are likely to impact the company are as follows:
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1.4 Leases (continued)
Company as a Lessee
Lessees are required to recognise a right-of -use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except short term leases or leases where
the underlying asset has a low value, which are expensed on a straight line or other systematic basis. The cost of the right-of-use
asset includes, where appropriate, the initial amount of the lease liability; lease payments made prior to commencement of the
lease less incentives received; initial direct costs of the lessee; and an estimate for any provision for dismantling, restoration and
removal related to the underlying asset.
The lease liability takes into consideration, where appropriate, fixed and variable lease payments; residual value guarantees to
be made by the lessee; exercise price of purchase options; and payments of penalties for terminating the lease.
The right -of- use asset is subsequently measured on the cost model at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment and
adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. However, right-of- use assets are measured at fair value when they meet
the definition of investment property and all other investment property is accounted for on the fair value model. If a right-of-use
asset relates to a class of property, plant and equipment which is measured on the revaluation model, then that right-of-use asset
may be measured on the revaluation model.
The lease liability is subsequently increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and re-measured for reassessments or
modifications. Re-measurements of lease liabilities are affected against right-of-use assets, unless the assets have been reduced
to nil, in which case further adjustments are recognised in profit or loss.
The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised payments at a revised rate when there is a change in the lease term or
a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. The lease liability is re-measured by discounting
revised lease payments at the original discount rate when there is a change in the amounts expected to be paid in a residual
value guarantee or when there is a change in future payments because of a change in index or rate used to determine those
payments.
Certain lease modifications are accounted for as separate leases. When lease modifications which decrease the scope of the
lease are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, then the lessee re-measures the lease liability by decreasing the
carrying amount of the right of lease asset to reflect the full or partial termination of the lease. Any gain or loss relating to the full
or partial termination of the lease is recognised in profit or loss. For all other lease modifications which are not required to be
accounted for as separate leases, the lessee re-measures the lease liability by making a corresponding adjustment to the rightof-use asset.
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities should be presented separately from other assets and liabilities. If not, then the line item
in which they are included must be disclosed. This does not apply to right-of-use assets meeting the definition of investment
property which must be presented within investment property. IFRS 16 contains different disclosure requirements compared to
IAS 17 leases.
IFRS16: Disclosure
An entity shall apply this Standard for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Limited (The entity) first applied IFRS 16 at the beginning of the current reporting period.
The change in accounting policy was made in accordance with its transitional provisions.
As a practical expedient, an entity is not required to reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead the entity is permitted to apply this Standard to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The entity applied the transition requirements in paragraphs C5-C18 to those leases.
The entity applied this Standard to its leases retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognised
at the date of initial application in accordance with paragraph C7-C13 and as such did not restate comparative information.
Leases previously classified as operating leases:
(a) recognise a lease liability at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as an operating lease applying IA17.
The lessee shall measure that lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at 10% at the date
of initial application.
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1.4 Leases (continued)
(b) recognise a right-use of asset at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as an operating lease applying
IAS17 at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial application.
The entity relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous applying IAS 37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets immediately before the date of initial application as an alternative to performing an impairment review. The lease was not
onerous and therefore the entity did not adjust the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application by the amount of any provision
for onerous leases recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial application.
The entity used hindsight, such as in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.
The entity has disclosed the difference between the operating lease commitments disclosed in applying IAS 17 at the end of the
annual reporting period immediately preceding the date of initial application, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initial application and lease liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position at the date of initial application.
(Refer to Note 27 lease commitments).
Company as Lessor
Accounting for leases by lessors remains similar to the provisions of IAS 17 in that leases are classified as either finance leases
or operating leases. Lease classification is reassessed only if there has been a modification. A modification is required to be
accounted for as a separate lease if it both increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and the increase in consideration is commensurate to the stand alone price of the increase in scope.
If a finance lease is modified, and the modification would not qualify as a separate lease, but the lease would have been an
operating lease if the modification was in effect from inception, then the modification is accounted for as a separate lease. In
addition, the carrying amount of the underlying asset shall be measured as the net investment in the lease immediately before
the effective date of the modification. IFRS 9 is applied to all other modifications not required to be treated as a separate lease.
Modifications to operating leases are required to be accounted for as new leases from the effective date of the modification.
Changes have also been made to the disclosure requirements of leases in the lessor's annual financial statements.
1.5 Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation:
Provisions are recognised when:
- the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and;
- reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in the notes.
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1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment
Initial Recognition and Measurement
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infra-structure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods and service, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the company; and
- the item can be measured reliably.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended.
Cost include cost incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The initial estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included
in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation
arises as a result of acquiring the asset.
Subsequent Measurement
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Substantial
improvements to property, plant and equipment are capitalised whilst maintenance and repairs are written off as they occur.
Depreciation
Depreciation on assets other than land is provided on a straight line basis so as to write-off the cost of each asset to its
residual value over its expected useful life. The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future
economic benefits or service potential are expected to be consumed by the company.
Property, Plant and equipment of less than R 2 000 is written off on acquisition.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation Method

Average Useful Life

Vehicles
Boats
Plant Equipment and Tools
Radios
Cruise Boat
Garden Equipment
Accommodation Facilities
Cleaning and Catering
Security
Office Equipment
Displays and Exhibition
Buildings
Fencing and Signage
Firearms
Visitors Facilities

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

4 to 27 years
5 to 23 years
4 to 27 years
18 to 19 yearss
5 years
4 to 20 years
5 to 24 years
4 to 23 years
10 to 26 years
4 to 35 years
8 to 15 years
40 years
6 to 12 years
26 to 32 years
5 to 13 years

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
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1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Derecognition
Property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits
or service potential expected from the use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised.
Gains and losses are calculated as the difference between the carrying value of assets (cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses) and the disposal proceeds is included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as a
gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment.
Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets held for sale (or disposal group) are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.
A non-current asset is not depreciated (or amortised) while it is classified as held for sale, or while it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale.
Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are recognised in profit
or loss.
1.7 Intangible Assets
Initial Recognition
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
The useful life of intangible assets has been assessed as follows:
Computer software

Straight line

1 year

Subsequent Measurement.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. Intangible assets, including
intangible assets not yet available for use, are assessed annually for impairment indicators. When items of intangible assets
have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss, which is recognised as an expense in the period that
the impairment is identified. The impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount.
The estimated useful life, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually at the end of the financial year. Any
adjustment arising from the annual review is applied prospectively as a change in accounting estimate in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised:
- on disposal; or
- when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.
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1.8 Biological Assets
Biological assets are measured at initial recognition and at each reporting date at their fair values less estimated point of sale
costs. The fair value of livestock is determined by reference to prevailing market prices of similar age, genes, and genetic merit
after considering its highest and best use. All changes in fair values are recognised and in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the period in which they arise.
1.9 Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation
leave and bonuses are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered, are not discounted and are based on current
wage and salary rates.
1.10 Retirement Benefits
The company contributes to a defined contribution plan for the provident fund. These contributions are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to contributions.
1.11 Comparatives Figures
When the presentation or classification of items in the Annual Financial Statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the classification is disclosed. Where accounting errors have been identified
in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated
accordingly.
1.12 PFMA Disclosure
Irregular Expenditure
Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements. The amounts recorded in the notes are equal to the
value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine the value.
Irregular expenditure means, expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or not in
accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including:
- The PFMA
- The State Tender Board Act, 1968 act no. 86 of 1968, or any regulations made in terms of that Act, or
- Any provisional legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.
Irregular expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it occurred and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care
been exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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1.13 Capital Committment
Capital commitments are items classified as commitments where the entity commits itself to future transactions that will
normally result in the outflow of resources.
Capital commitments are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as a liability but are included in the disclosure
notes in the following cases:
- Approved and contracted commitments, where the expenditure has been approved but the contract has been awarded at the
reporting date.
- Approved but not yet contracted commitments, where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has not yet being
awarded or is awaiting finalisation at the reporting date.
Contracts that are entered into before the reporting date, but goods and services have not yet been received, are disclosed in
the disclosure note to the financial statements.
1.14 Share Capital
Ordinary shares are recognised at par value and classified as 'share capital' in equity. Any amounts received from the issue of
shares in excess of par value is classified as 'share premium' in equity. Dividends are recognised as a liability in the year in
which they are declared.
1.15 Value Added Tax (VAT)
The entity is registered with the South African Revenue Services for VAT on the invoice basis in accordance with Section
15(2)(a) of the Value Added Tax Act, No. 81 of 1991.
Income Tax
The entity is exempted from tax in terms of s10 (1) (cA) (ii) of the Income Tax Act.
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its annual financial statements ( referred to as
the reporting entity).
A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:
- has control or joint control of the reporting entity;
- as significant influence over the reporting entity; or
- is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.
An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:
- The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).
- One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
- Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
- One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
- The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity related to
the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.
-The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified above.
- A person identified above has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
-The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the reporting entity
or to the parent of the reporting entity.
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1.15 Value Added Tax (VAT) (continued)
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence or be influenced by that
person in their dealings with the entity and include:
- that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
- children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
- dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.
Significant related party relationships and transactions are disclosed in the Annual Financial Statements as required by IFRS.
1.16 Use of Estimates
The preparation of Annual Financial Statements in accordance with IAS 8 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise their judgment in complying with policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Annual Financial
Statements are disclosed in the relevant sections of the Annual Financial Statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions they may undertake in the future, actual results ultimately may
differ from those estimates.
1.17 Key Sources of Uncertainty
There are no assumptions concerning the future, and other sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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2.

2020
Restated *

2019

New Standards and Interpretations

2.1 Standards and Interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the company has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:
Standard

Details of Amendment

IAS 19 Employees
Benefits

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19):
The amendments require an entity to use the updated assumptions
from a remeasurement net defined benefit liability or asset resulting
from a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement to determine current
service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period
after the change to the plan.
IFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a
lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A
lessee is required to recognise a right of- use asset representing its
right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. A lessee
measures right of- use assets similarly to other non-financial assets
(such as property, plant and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to
other financial liabilities. As a consequence, a lessee recognises
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
statement of cash flows.

IFRS 16 Leases

Annual periods
periods beginning
on
Annual
begining on
or after
after
or
1 January 2019, IAS 19 has
been adopted in 2019/2020

1 January 2019, The entity has
adopted IFRS 16 in 2019/2020

IFRS 16 contains expanded disclosure requirements for lessees.
IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.
IFRS 16 also requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessors
that will improve information disclosed about a lessor’s risk exposure,
particularly to residual value risk.

IAS 1 Presentation
of Financial
Statements

IFRS 16 supersedes the following Standards and Interpretations:
(a) IAS 17 Leases;
(b) IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease;
(c) SIC-15 Operating Leases—Incentives; and
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease.
Disclosure Initiative: The amendments clarify and align the definition of
‘material’ and provide guidance to help improve consistency in the
application of that concept whenever it is used in IFRS Standards.
"Presentation of Financial Statements" sets out the over all requirements
for financial statements, including how they should be structured, the
minimum requirements for their content and overriding concepts such as
going concern, the accrual basis of accounting and the
current/non-current distinction. The standard requires a complete set of
financial statements to comprise a statement of financial position, a
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive in come, a statement
of changes in equity and a state ment of cash flows.
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2020
Restated *

2.
New Standards and Interpretations (continued)
IAS 8 Accounting
Disclosure Initiative: The amendments clarify and align the definition of
Policies, Changes in ‘material’ and provide guidance to help improve consistency in the
Accounting
application of that concept whenever it is used in IFRS Standards.
Estimates
and Errors
IAS 16 Property,
IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" outlines the accounting
Plant and Equipment treatment for most types of property, plant and equipment. Property, plant
and equipment is initially measured at its cost, subsequently measured
either using a cost or revaluation model, and depreciated so that its
depreciable amount is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.
IAS 37 Provisions,
IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" outlines
Contingent Liabilities the accounting for provisions (liabilities of uncertain timing or amount),
and Contingent
Conginent
together with contingent assets (possible assets) and contingent
Assets
liabilities (possible obligations and present obligations that are not
probable or not reliably measurable).
IFRS 17 Insurance
IFRS 7 creates one accounting model for all insurance contracts in all
Contracts
jurisdictions that apply IFRS.

2019

1 January 2020, The entity will
adopt IAS 8 in 2020/2021

The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2022.
The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2022.
1 January 2021, The entity will
adopt IFRS 17 in 2021/2022

IFRS 17 requires an entity to measure insurance contracts using updated
estimates and assumptions that reflect the timing of cash flow and take
into account any uncertainty relating to insurance contracts.
The financial statement of an entity will reflect the time value of money
in estimated payment required to settle incurred claims.
Insurance contracts are required to be measured based only on the
obligations created by the contracts.
An entity will be required to recognise profits as an insurance service
is delivered , rather than on receipt premiums
This standard replaces IFRS 4 - Insurance contracts.
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3.

2020
Restated *

2019

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
Accomodation
Facilities
Accommodation
Facilities
Boats
Buildings
Cleaning and Catering
Displays
Fencing and Signage
Radios
Garden Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Plant and Machinery
Office Equipment
Firearms
Security
Visitor Facilities

2020
Accumulated Carrying value

2019
Accumulated Carrying value

Cost

5,885,348
1,924,764
585,119
100,015
1,040,908
43,864
1,220,134
5,162,726
2,794,506
2,122,848
9,735
501,942
785,067

depreciation
(4,027,561)
(1,247,515)
(434,005)
(75,536)
(696,984)
(36,643)
(867,235)
(3,690,401)
(1,821,125)
(1,387,419)
(7,692)
(324,082)
(347,843)

1,857,787
677,248
151,114
24,479
343,924
7,221
352,899
1,472,325
973,382
735,428
2,043
177,860
437,224

6,120,971
1,986,166
11,500,000
568,828
103,400
1,132,708
54,117
1,086,685
5,401,638
2,855,621
2,143,930
9,735
501,942
794,458

depreciation
(3,527,374)
(989,872)
(1,078,369)
(391,319)
(68,750)
(578,961)
(44,474)
(658,770)
(3,321,669)
(1,506,254)
(1,133,145)
(7,338)
(264,680)
(256,545)

2,593,597
996,294
10,421,631
177,509
34,650
553,747
9,643
427,915
2,079,969
1,349,367
1,010,785
2,397
237,262
537,913

22,176,976

(14,964,040)

7,212,936

34,260,199

(13,827,520)

20,432,679

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment - 2020

Accommodation
Facilities
Accomodation Facilities
Radio
Displays
Plant & Machinery
Boats
Building
Cleaning and Catering
Fencing and Signage
Garden Equipment
Motor Vehicle
Security
Visitor Facilities
Firearms
Office Equipment

Opening
balance
2,593,597
9,643
34,650
1,349,367
996,294
10,421,631
177,509
553,747
427,915
2,079,969
237,262
537,913
2,397
1,010,785
20,432,679

Additions
88,003
34,100
137,830
8,700

Disposals Building Held Depreciation
for Sale
(3,260)
(820,553)
(2,422)
(10,171)
(375,985)
(319,046)
- (10,166,126)
(255,505)
(60,494)
(36,975)
(172,848)
(212,846)
(607,644)
(59,402)
(6,961)
(93,726)
(354)
(284,057)

268,633

(47,196)

(10,166,126)

(3,275,053)

Closing
balance
1,857,787
7,221
24,479
973,382
677,248
151,114
343,924
352,899
1,472,325
177,860
437,226
2,043
735,428
7,212,936

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

Plant and Machinery
Boats
Accommodation Facilities
Radios
Displays
Buildings
Cleaning and Catering
Firearms
Fencing and Signage
Garden Equipment
Motor Vehicles

Opening
balance
1,724,325
1,314,469
3,411,395
12,058
44,794
10,703,381
236,757
2,750
726,122
637,099
2,685,952

Additions

Disposals
-

141

(1,900)
-

Depreciation
(374,958)
(318,174)
(817,798)
(2,415)
(10,143)
(281,750)
(57,350)
(353)
(172,376)
(209,183)
(605,983)

Closing
balance
1,349,367
996,294
2,593,597
9,643
34,650
10,421,631
177,509
2,397
553,747
427,915
2,079,969

Page 201 of 226

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

MSINSI HOLDINGS (SOC) LIMITED

(Registration number: 1992/003933/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand

2020
Restated *

3.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Office Equipment
1,098,899
Security
296,502
Visitor Facilities
631,376

190,640
-

23,525,879

190,640

4.

(1,900)

2019

(278,753)
(59,240)
(93,463)

1,010,785
237,262
537,913

(3,281,939)

20,432,679

Right of Use of Asset

The requirement of IFRS 16 is to include the right of use for an asset for a period of time and specify the rule and
recognition, measurement of the lease. The ownership of the asset remains with the lessor for the entire lease period. Land
has an indefinite economic life and therefore land is normally classified as an operating lease (under legal title is expected
to pass to the lessee by the end of the lease term) which is not the case here, the land was recognised as right of use of
land, as a liability, and at the present value of all future payments. The right of use asset was realised over the remaining
period of the lease contract.
2020

Cost

Lease of Land

Accumulated Carrying
Depreciation Value
944,395
(314,798)
629,597

Reconciliation of right of use of asset - 2020
Opening
balance
944,395

Lease of Land

Depreciation

Total

(314,798)

629,597

5. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Biological Assets

Cost /

2020
Fair Value

Valuation

Adjustment

4,513,192

Carrying value

2019
Fair Value Carrying value

Cost /
Valuation

(1,038,529)

3,474,663

Adjustment

3,914,658

443,634

4,358,292

Reconciliation of Biological Assets - 2020
Opening
balance
4,358,292

Biological Assets

Additions
154,900

Fair Value
Total
Adjustments
(1,038,529)
3,474,663

Reconciliation of biological assets - 2019

Biological Assets

Opening
balance
3,223,691

Live Sales

Fair Value
Adjustments
(80,000)
443,634

Additions

Total

770,967

4,358,292

Biological assets
The total is based on an estimate count as per the Biological Asset Policy, reflected per year as follows: (2020:461) and
(2019:633). The fair value of the game relates to price adjustment, the reduction of the game count species and the fair
value of the game that were hunted and culled for 2019/2020. The addition of the biological assets incurred due to natural
causes where the numbers increased for the Blesbok, Buffalo heifer, Warthog and Zebra and there has been no physical
purchase. The fair value of game is based on the market related prices and is therefore classified as level 2 fair values in
terms of IFRS13.
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6.

2020
Restated *

2019

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

2020
Accumulated Carrying value

Cost

amortisation
Computer software

245,966

2019
Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation

(153,180)

92,786

1,016,483

(925,952)

90,531

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets - 2020

Computer software

Opening
balance
90,531

Additions Amortisation

Opening
balance
185,743

Additions Amortisation

152,357

Total

(150,102)

92,786

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets - 2019

Computer software

143

93,609

Total

(188,821)

90,531
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7.

2020
Restated *

2019

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade Receivables
Prepaid Expenses
Accrued Income
Sundry Debtors
Allowance for Credit Losses
Other receivable

Split between non-current and current portions
Deposits Refundable: Electricity
Current assets

576,428
87,481
44,300
166,440
(203,081)
219,780

830,533
72,060
54,273
175,635
(133,516)
202,732

891,348

1,201,717

219,780
671,568

202,732
998,985

891,348

1,201,717

(133,516)
133,516
(203,081)

(133,516)
-

(203,081)

(133,516)

The entity has accounted for loans and receivables on an amortised cost basis as per IFRS 9.
Trade and Other Receivables Impaired
The Debtors Age Analysis was analysed and debt were provided for as follows:
The ageing of this debt is as follows:
Balance
Loss Rate
Expected
Credit Losses

180 Days
261 510
70%

150 Days
11 319
60%

183 057

6 791

120 Days 30 Days
4 897 14 019
60%
20%

Current
37 455
20%

Total
329 200

7 491

203 081

2 938 2 804

Reconciliation of Provision for Impairment of Trade and other Receivables
Opening balance
Reversal of Credit Losses
Allowance for Credit Losses

For trade receivable relating to accounts which are long overdue with amounts owing and slow response in terms of
collection an allowance of expected credit losses were allowed assuming with the likelihood of not recovering the amount
and also based on the current prevailing economic conditions. An amount of R 247 228.00 did not form part of the provision
allowance for credit losses because it will be fully recoverable from the customer, therefore an amount of R 329 200.00 was
impaired for 2019/2020.
8.

UMGENI WATER - INTERCOMPANY RECEIVABLE

The Intercompany Receivable relates to the Management Fee and any other cost paid on behalf of Msinsi Holdings by
Umgeni Water on a monthly. On a quarterly basis the surplus funds from the Intercompany Receivable is transferred to
Msinsi Holdings. For the period ending 30 June 2020, Umgeni Water owes Msinsi an amount of R10 300 131.00 based on
the surplus funds from the Management Fee.
Current
Umgeni Water: Intercompany Receivable

10,300,131
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7,477,392
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9.

2020
Restated *

2019

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand
Bank Balances
R.M.B - Call Account

58,702
924,230
13,282,818

34,139
587,331
8,725,536

14,265,750

9,347,006

Msinsi Holding (SOC) LTD holds an overnight deposit call account with Rand Merchant Bank and the surplus funds for
Msinsi Holding is deposited into the call account.
10.

BUILDINGS HELD FOR

SALE Head Office Building
On May 2020, Msinsi management resolved to dispose the head office building located at 18 old main road in Hillcrest. The
transfer agreement has already been signed by both parties on 25 May 2020. The building is expected to be sold within
twelve months, have been classified as a disposal held for sale and is presented separately in the statement of financial
position.
The proceeds of disposal is expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the building, and accordingly, no impairment
loss has been recognized on the classification of the asset held for sale.
Measurment

Measurement
The following principles apply:
During the period under review the building held for sale the carrying amount of the asset was measured in accordance with
IFRS 5.
Building Held for Sale

10,166,126

-

11. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
1000 Ordinary shares of R1 each
Issued
100 ordinary shares of R1 each

1,000

1,000

100

100

The unissued shares remain under the control of the directors.
12. CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT
The Corporate Social Investment for an amount of R 1 009 011.00, relates to Community Levy amounts that were levied in
the prior years from the customers entering Msinsi reserves and for the benefit of communities surrounding the dams which
Msinsi operates, these funds are used for Community projects that was outlined in the CSI plan for 2019/2020.
Corporate Social Investment

1,009,011

145

1,010,137
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2020
Restated *

2019

13. LOAN ACCOUNT
The amount received from Umgeni Water was used to purchase the Head Office building at Hillcrest for an amount of R
11. 5 million. The long term plan for the repayment was moved to the short term due to the building held for sale which will
be finalised in the subsequent year. The sale agreement was signed by both parties and the transfer documents are
currently in the deeds office.
Umgeni Water - Loan Account

10,113,021

11,163,848

14. LEASE LIABILITIES
It relates to right of use of the asset and the present value of all the lease payments over the remaining period of the lease
contract.
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

335,372
273,093
608,465

-

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade Payables
Revenue Received in Advance
VAT Payable
Accrued Bonus
Accrued Expense
Accrued Leave Pay

2,298,185
1,704,300
450,306
1,021,919
802,332
2,671,763

2,519,952
1,703,334
549,239
941,366
269,017
2,515,297

8,948,805

8,498,205

The entity has accounted for payables on an amortised cost basis which is the same as the previous accounting standard.
All trade and other payables are expected to be repaid within 1 year or as per contractual agreement.
16. PROVISIONS FOR PERFORMANCE BONUS
Reconciliation of Provisions for Performance Bonus - 2020
Opening
balance
Performance Bonus

1,007,525

Additions
1,981,533

Utilised
Total
during the
year
(1,367,362) 1,621,696

Reconciliation of Provisions for Performance Bonus - 2019
Opening
balance
Performance Bonus

1,546,279

Additions
434,204

Utilised
Total
during the
year
(972,958) 1,007,525

The organisation has provided for performance bonuses as a benefit to all its employees based on the performance of the
organisation which will be approved at the discretion of the Board. The liability for the performance bonus is based on the
policy.
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2020
Restated *

2019

2,149,952
1,402,175
824,793
464,061
247,522
471,670
431,381
54,244,396
2,919,845
600,439
2,026,166
183,217

2,967,355
1,675,037
936,484
487,174
332,322
414,528
590,153
42,189,000
3,394,912
636,137
2,554,450
129,913

65,965,618

56,307,465

17. REVENUE
Chalets/Lodges - Eco Tourism
Campsite - Eco Tourism
Eco Tourism - Other
Boat Launching - Eco Tourism
Tented Accomodation - Eco Tourism
Boat Lockers - Eco Tourism
Conference - Eco Tourism
Environmental Management Fees
Wild Card Revenue - Eco Tourism
Special Events Area - Eco Tourism
Gate Revenue - Eco Tourism
Hunting

IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts with customers
The details of the significant accounting policies and the nature of the change in relation to the entity’s various goods and
services are set below:
Type of Product or
Service

Contract with a
Customer

Management Fee

A Service Level
agreement was signed

Performance
obligation in the
contract
Provide Water
Resource Management

147

When performances
obligation was
satisfied?
Performance
obligations are
satisfied monthly
as services are
rendered and
reported on a
quarterly basis i.e.
they are therefore
fully satisfied by 30
June 2020.
Payments are
received in the
quarter subsequent
to the one where
services were
rendered after
confirmation of the
balances with the
Parent Company

Transaction
Price
R 54 244 396
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2020
Restated *

17. REVENUE (continued)
Rental Income
Entered into an
agreement to lease
office space

Wildcard Revenue

Entered into an
agreement
with Sanparks to
be one of the wild
card partner

Boat Locker

Entered into an
agreement with
customer to store
their boat

2019

Use of office space and Performance
parking
obligations are
R 118 780
satisfied monthly
as services are
rendered and
reported on a
quarterly basis i.e.
they are therefore
fully satisfied by 30
30 June 2020.
Tax invoice are
raised at the
beginning of the
month and are
payable within
seven days of
receipt.
Access control and
The performance
R 2 919 845
sale of wildcards
obligation is met
into Msinsi
over time since the
managed dams
access control to
and other dams
Msinsi Holdings
controlled by other
parks is for the
partners
duration of one
year from purchase
date of the
membership
therefore revenue
is recognised over
time. During 2019/2020
Wildcard revenue was
recognised from July
2019 to March 2020
due to the lockdown in
the tourism industry the
Wildcard customers
are given 3 months
extension on their
membership from April
2020 until June 2020.
Providing space for
customers to store
their boats

148

Performance
obligations are
satisfied monthly
as services are
rendered and
reported on a
quarterly basis i.e.
they are therefore
fully satisfied by 30
June 2020.
The tax invoice is
raised at the
beginning of the
month and
payment is
received in the
following month

R 471 670
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17. REVENUE (continued)
Special Events
Hire out venue for
events

2020
Restated *

Providing venue for
organisers to hold
events

Performance
obligations are
satisfied monthly
as services are
rendered and
reported on a
quarterly basis i.e.
they are therefore
fully satisfied by 30
June 2020.
Payments
were received
before the events
and revenue was
recognised after
the event.

2019

R 600 439

18. Other income
Other Rental Income
Sundry Income

118,780
1,143,919

603,578
196,667

1,262,699

800,245

19. Fair value adjustments
Biological Assets - Net Fair Value

(883,629)

149

1,214,601
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2020
Restated *

2019

20. OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE
Other operating expenses are made up of the following:
Advertising
Alien Plant
Animal Expenses
Allowance for Credit Losses
Bank Charges
Body Corporate Levies
Conference - Local
Conference Expenses
Consulting Fees
Consumables
Directors Emoluments
Directors Expenses
Displays/Exhibitions
Electricity/Water and Rates
Environmental Education
Events
Interest Paid
Fuel
Gas Supplies
Insurance
Kiosk Purchases
Laundry and Cleaning
Lease of Office Equipment
Legal Costs
Licenses
Loss on write off on moveable assets
Postage
Printing and Stationery
Private Security
Protective Clothing and Uniforms
Public Relations
Repairs and maintenance
Security Levy (PSIRA)
SHEQ
Skills Development Levy
Staff Bursary
Staff Recruitment
Staff Training and Development
Staff Welfare
Subscriptions and Membership
Sundry Expenses
Telephone and Fax
Travel and Accommodation-local
Visitors Facilities
WCA Contributions
Wild Card Expenses

508,141
1,753,234
69,565
321,558
33,806
40,760
179,766
309,638
135,125
279,500
10,750
2,411,885
7,108
895,215
43,591
6,943
55,512
402,694
279,064
15,075
56,160
47,196
335
246,294
1,820,616
370,325
2,158,165
668
59,950
333,268
200,450
53,221
256,415
305,100
274,790
134,843
561,214
109,395
60,310
623,228
741,107

524,026
1,122,951
29,890
133,516
352,520
135,224
81,089
233,611
247,907
32,563
379,723
7,089
87,865
1,799,512
1,581
36,549
6,729
1,105,904
62,075
99,060
105,838
344,084
245,299
356,309
87,851
1,900
72
286,213
1,617,905
240,946
18,700
2,258,458
7,664
309,089
29,300
5,190
465,222
98,965
239,914
193,636
565,955
117,539
113,085
416,756
915,647

16,171,980

15,520,921

21. OPERATING PROFIT
Operating Profit for the period is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst others:
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Restated *

2019

21. OPERATING PROFIT (continued)
Operating Leases
Leases of Land Albert Falls

-

Auditor's Remunerations
Audit Fees - External Auditors
Audit Fees - Internal Auditors

147,190

1,263,793
1,042,869
2,306,662

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation

270,494
640,870
911,364

3,589,851
150,102
3,739,953

3,281,939
188,821
3,470,760

Employee Costs
Salaries, Wages, Bonuses and Other Benefits

40,518,966

Number of Employees

118

35,406,568
117

22. Employee cost
Basic Salary
Bonus
Medical Aid
UIF
Standby Allowance
Cellphone Allowance
Provision for Performance Bonus
Overtime
Security Guards - Fixed Term Contract
Travel Allowance
Leave Pay
Casual Employees
Housing Allowance
Retirement benefits plan

20,144,091
1,726,669
4,779,624
242,587
140,679
65,106
1,981,532
581,441
1,322,429
1,559,759
828,091
2,059,523
2,065,490
3,021,945

19,065,392
1,410,533
3,968,147
211,160
156,580
70,106
434,205
803,210
1,242,385
1,626,924
747,085
752,813
2,074,522
2,843,506

40,518,966

35,406,568

IAS 19 requires the entity to recognise its obligation to provide for salary related benefits for all its employees. The benefits
are based on the actual cost as per the policies and no benefits are calculated based on the assumptions as per the liability
reflected in the financials.
Short term Employee Benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in
which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
Defined Contribution Plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
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22. Employee cost (continued)
Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution
plans where the company’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan.
Leave Pay
Leave pay is based on the number of days accrued by the staff on an annual basis, subject to certain conditions and is
capped at 30 days as per the leave policy. The liability for the leave pay is based on the total accrued leave days at year
end.
23. FINANCE INCOME
Finance Income - Bank

699,585

519,152

24. FINANCE COST
Finance Cost - Umgeni Water
Finance Lease

731,775
70,500
802,275

847,443
847,443

25. TAXATION
The entity is exempt from tax in terms of s10(1)(cA)(ii) of the Income Tax Act.
26. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital Commitments are made up of:
Approved budget for 2019/2020
Approved and contracts committed
Approved and not yet contracted for commitments

4,631,500
(268,633)
4,362,867

-

27. LEASE COMMITMENTS
The entity has adopted IFRS 16, which introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying assets is of low value.
Lessee
Lease of Photocopier Machine
The company entered into an agreement with Leaf Technology for the rental of the photocopier machine. The rental
contract was over a period of 5 years with an annual escalation rate of 10%. The office equipment rental agreement expired
on 31 August 2018. As per the agreement in Clause 1 after the contract expires a further 90 days’ notice period was given
and the contract official terminated on the 30 November 2018 from the date of the initial contract. Currently the company is
operating on a month to month contract. The tender process for the leasing of the photocopier machine was concluded as
30 June 2020. The competitive bidding process for the leasing of the photocopier machine was awarded on the 30 June
2020.
Lease of Land - Albert Falls
The company entered into an agreement with EPW Solomon for the rental of the Farm Otto's Bluff No. 16112, situated in
the Administrative District of Natal, Province of KwaZulu-Natal. The rental contract is over a period of 25 years with an
annual escalation rate of 10%. The farm rental agreement will expire on 30 June 2022.
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27. LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)
The ownership of the asset remains with the lessor for the entire lease period. Land has an indefinite economic life and
therefore land is normally classified as an operating lease which is not the case here. The land was recognised as right of
use of land, as a liability, and at the present value of all future payments. The right of use of asset will be impaired over the
remaining period of the lease contract.
Operating lease commitments as at 30/06/2019
The effect of discounting
Paid during the 2019-20 financial year

Financial Liability
Current
Later than one year and not later than 5 years

959,870
(131,915)
(219,490)

-

608,465

-

273,093
335,372

289,990
669,880

608,465

959,870

-

101,031

Lessor
Rental of Head Office Premises
Minimum lease payments due
Up to one year

The company entered into an agreement with Discovery Health (Pty) Ltd for the rental of Block C - Section 8 and Section 9,
18 Old Main Road, Hillcrest. The rental contract is over a period of 3 years with an annual escalation rate of 10%. The
building rental agreement has expired on 31 August 2019 and this agreement was not renewed.
28. RISK MANAGEMENT
The company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including fair value and interest rate risk), credit
risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The company's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of the financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the company's financial
performance.
The directors provide principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as, interest
rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative instruments and investment of excess
liquidity.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a contractual counterparty will default on its contractual obligations to the company and that the
company would suffer financial loss as a consequence of such a default. The company's credit risk is mainly limited to their
related party transactions and sundry receivables.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
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28. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liquidity Risk
Net Intercompany receivables
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

10,300,131
891,348
14,265,750

7,477,392
1,201,717
9,347,006

25,457,229

18,026,115

The company manages its liquidity risk by regularly monitoring its projected cash flow requirements against its cash
resources and unutilised borrowing facilities. Surplus cash resources are only invested with large institutions with strong
credit ratings. Forecast liquidity represents the company's expected cash inflows, principally generated from the ordinary
course of the business, less the company's contractually determined cash flow inflows and outflows rests in the expected
ageing profiles of the underlying assets and liabilities. The maturity profile is presented below:
Liquidity Risk
Trade Creditors and Other Payables
Accrued Bonuses
Accrued Leave Pay
SARS VAT Payable

4,804,817
1,021,919
2,671,763
450,306

4,492,305
941,364
2,515,297
549,239

8,948,805

8,498,205

The maturity profile is within 1 year.
Cash Flow and interest rate risks
The company's only significant interest-bearing asset/liability is the intercompany payable which bears interest at 7.63% per
annum.
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for the intercompany loan
account. The analysis is prepared assuming that the liability at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. If
interest rates had been 50 basis points (0,5%) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the company's loss
for the period ended 30 June 2020, would increase/decrease.
Capital Risk Management
The Company reviews their total capital employed on a regular basis and makes use of several indicative ratios which are
appropriate to the nature of the company's operations and consistent with conventional industry measures. The principal
ratios used in this review are:
1. Gearing, defined as net debt divided by total capital employed; and
2. Return on capital employed, defined as underlying operating profit before tax divided by average capital employed.
29. RELATED PARTIES
Material Related Party Transactions and Balances
Intercompany Receivable - Current
Loan Account - Current
Interest Paid
Environmental Management Fee
Loan Account - Non Current

10,300,131
10,113,021
731,775
54,244,396
-

7,477,392
1,815,269
847,443
42,189,000
9,348,579

75,389,323

61,677,683

Msinsi Holdings is wholly owned by Umgeni Water. Umgeni Water Services SOC Ltd, the Department of Water and
Sanitation and Durban Water Recycling (Pty) Ltd are part of the Umgeni Water group structure; whilst Msinsi Holdings
therefore has a relationship with the entities, Msinsi Holdings does not transact directly with them. The key management
personnel remuneration is separately disclosed under note no 33.
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29. RELATED PARTIES (continued)
Msinsi Holding is in the process of selling the Head Office Building to Umgeni Water which is held for sale under note no 10
for an amount of R10, 4 million. This will also clear the loan account owed by Msinsi Holding to Umgeni Water.
30. FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS
This note provides information about how the company determines fair value of various financial assets and liabilities. Fair
values of financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Biological assets are measured at the fair value
at the end of each reporting period. There have been no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the period.
Financial
Assets/Liabilities
Biological Assets

Fair Value as at 30 Fair Value at at 30 Fair Value
June 2020
June 2019
Hierarchy
3 474 663
4 358 292
Level 2

Valuation
Techniques Inputs
Market related prices

Unobservable
Inputs
N/A

The Biological Assets were valued at market related prices.
The carrying amount of the following assets and liabilities are not fair valued on a recurring basis as they are considered to
approximate fair value.
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Related Party - Current
Trade and Other Receivables

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Related Party - Non Current
Trade and Other Payables
Related Party - Current

10,300,131

7,477,392

891,348

1,201,717

11,191,479

8,679,109

-

9,348,579

8,948,8058,498,205
10,113,021

1,815,269

19,061,826

19,662,053

31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined Contribution Plan
The company contributes to a defined contribution plan which is governed by the Pension Fund Act (No.24 of 1956). The
only obligation of the company is to make the specified contribution to the scheme. The total contributions as at 30 June
2020, amounted to R 3 021 945.46 (2019: R 2 843 506.08).
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32. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
The directors of the company who are executives of Umgeni Water do not receive any director's remuneration from the
company.
Details of the Remuneration of Directors of Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd are disclosed below:
2020 Directors Fees
Director
Designation
T B Hlongwa
Non-Executive
P N Mkhize
Non-Executive
S Shabalala
Independent NonExecutive
M Ndlovu
Independent NonExecutive
Dr B Mkhize
Independent NonExecutive
M Pillay
Non-Executive
Total

Salary
-

2019 Directors Fees
Director
Designation
T B Hlongwa
Non-Executive
P N Mkhize
Non-Executive
S Shabalala
Independent NonExecutive
M Ndlovu
Independent NonExecutive
Dr B Mkhize
Independent NonExecutive
M Pillay
Non-Executive
Total

Benefits
-

Other
92 253

-

-

87 727

87 727

-

-

99 520

99 520

-

-

279 500

279 500

Salary
-

Benefits
-

Total

92 253

Other
113 537

Total
113 537

-

-

132 215

132 215

-

-

133 971

133 971

-

-

379 723

379 723

33. KEY MANAGEMENTS' EMOLUMENTS
Details of the Remuneration for Key Management Personnel of Msinsi Holdings (SOC) Ltd are disclosed below:
2020
Names
M Dlamini
M Ngubane
N Mthembu
Total

Designation
Prescribed Officer
Executive
Executive

Salary
1 535 099
1 057 591
1 013 913
3 606 603

2019
Names
M Dlamini
M Ngubane
N Mthembu
Total

Designation
Prescribed Officer
Executive
Executive

Salary
1 519 131
976 534
939 563
3 435 228

Benefits
Benefits
-

Other
266 309
122 816
115 865
504 990

Total
1 801 408
1 180 408
1 129 778
4 111 594

Other
249 988
167 038
93 821
510 847

Total
1 769 119
1 143 572
1 033 384
3 946 075

34. GOING CONCERN
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no contingent liabilities identified in 2019/2020.
36. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
COVID-19 has negatively impacted on the revenue generation and management has developed a COVID-19 Msinsi
Business Recovery plan that outlines Msinsi operational activities that have been impacted by COVID-19 pandemic and
opportunities presented by the same pandemic. The plan articulates the entity’s approach in managing the impact of this
pandemic and measures taken by management to resuscitate some of the business activities in line with a risk adjusted
strategy for the lockdown. The entity also submitted an insurance claim for business interruption during the lockdown period
for the Tourism Industry. The Human Resources Department also submitted a claim to the UIF Fund based on
management’s decision to pay temporary and causal workers who were rostered to work during the lockdown period.
37. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
The company has incurred the following Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020:
Opening balance
Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure relating to current year
Amount recovered from staff

40,844
561
(8,624)

10,579
43,728
(13,463)

32,781

40,844

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure amounting to R 560.85 was incurred in the current year and can be summarised
as follows:
Supplier
Description
Reason
Amount
Action Taken
Department of Transport Interest and Penalties
Interest charges due to
R395.00
This amount was
late payment.
recovered from the
negligent employee in
October 2019.
Msunduzi Municipality
Interest and Penalties
Interest charged due to
R19.21
The full amount of R
late payment
19.21 was fully
recovered from the
negligent employee in
May 2020.
Telkom
Interest
Interest charged due to
R146.64
The full amount of R
late payment.
146 .64 was fully
recovered from the
negligent employee in
March 2020.
Fruitless and wasteful
expenditure as at 30 June 2020
R560.85
The closing balance as at 30 June 2020 for an amount of R32 781.38 can be summarised as follows:
An amount of R 18 940.64 relates to a payment made to Vodacom for a 3G card for the prior year, upon investigation it
was resolved that the employee will pay the full amount and this deduction has commenced in June 2020 and will be fully
repaid by the 30 June 2021.
An amount of R 13 840.74 relates to prior year interest paid to Ethekwini Municipality which is under investigation with the
South African Police Services.
38. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
The company has incurred the following Irregular Expenditure from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020:
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38. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE (continued)
Opening balance
Recovery of salary paid in error
Irregular expenditure relating to the current year
Irregular expenditure relating to prior year identified in the current year
Amounts condoned by appropriate authority

Supplier

Description of
Service
CCTV Monitoring

Reason

Investigation

SCM process not
followed on
extension of
contract process.

The Host

Booking System

SCM process not
followed on
extension of
contract process.

Isiqandu Security

Security Guards

SCM process not
followed on
extension of
contract process.

Leaf Technology

Lease of Printers

SCM process not
followed on
extension of
contract process.

Yahama

Service of Boat

Service provider
does not have tax
clearance.

Upon investigation
it was resolved that
all expenses are
valid company
expenses which
were incurred in
support of the
business
requirements.
Upon investigation
it was resolved that
all expenses are
valid company
expenses which
were incurred in
support of the
business
requirements.
Upon investigation
it was resolved that
all expenses are
valid company
expenses which
were incurred in
support of the
business
requirements.
Upon investigation
it was resolved that
all expenses are
valid company
expenses which
were incurred in
support of the
business
requirements.
Upon investigation
it was resolved that
all expenses are
valid company
expenses which
were incurred in
support of the
business
requirements.

Chaptronix Natal
CC

158

Period

4,652,063
1,129,682
-

433,893
(7,428)
1,767,313
2,884,750
(426,465)

5,781,745

4,652,063

Amount

2019/2020

R59 371.41

2019/2020

R43 990.00

2019/2020

R44 8038.85

2019/2020

R363 032.57

2019/2020

R7 380.00
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38. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE (continued)
SB Homes
Provision of
Competitive
maintenance and
bidding process
repairs for boat
not done
lockers

SB Homes

Provision of repairs Competitive
to the roof of the
bidding process
campsite ablution not done
and chalets

Workwear Depot
(Pty) Ltd

Staff Uniform

Competitive
bidding process
not done

Grand Total

Upon investigation
it was resolved that
all expenses are
valid company
expenses which
were incurred in
support of the
business
requirements
Upon investigation
it was resolved that
all expenses are
valid company
expenses which
were incurred in
support of the
business
requirements
Upon investigation
it was resolved that
all expenses are
valid company
expenses which
were incurred in
support of the
business
requirements

2019

2019/2020

R104 215.70

2019/2020

R100 417.43

2019/2020

R3 235.89

R1 129 681.85

The condonation report for the irregular expenditure was submitted to the Board for the prior year and the current year on
the 5 June 2020 which was approved. Once the Board has approved the submission as per the legislative requirements
the condonation report was submitted to National Treasury in June 2020. The Supply Chain Department is currently
awaiting for National Treasury to approve the condonation report.
In the prior periods proper SCM requirements were not adhered to in terms of contracts awarded, therefore resulting in a
significant amount of irregular expenditure incurred in the prior periods.
This situation has improved as the irregular expenditure in the current year has reduced based on the contracts awarded to
suppliers via the competitive bidding process.
39. DEVIATIONS AND EXEMPTIONS
The SCM policy and procedure allows for deviations from the SCM process in cases where it is impractical to follow the
SCM process for the required goods and services and for emergencies. Paragraph 6.6 (i) of the SCM procedure further
allows for exemptions from following the SCM process for items where it has been proven impractical and which are
procured on a regular basis. Deviations and exemptions have been incurred as follows for 30 June 2020:
Deviations and Exemptions for the Current Year

14,986,728

7,199,727

The deviations includes suppliers paid for utility accounts and medical aid contribution which were omitted in the previous
year.
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40. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation - PPE
Depreciation - Building Held for Sale
Depreciation - Right of use of assets
Finance Income
Finance Costs
Fair Value (Loss) / Gain
Movements in provisions
Allowance for Credit Losses
Disposal of Assets
Amortisation
Movement in Deposits: Electricity
Changes in working capital:
Trade and Other Receivables
Movement in Corporate Social Investment
Movement in Inter-Company Receivable
Adjustment for the prior year
Trade and Other Payables
Movement in Loan Account
Prior year adjustment: straight lining

3,504,436

2,537,219

3,019,548
255,505
314,798
(699,585)
802,275
883,629
614,172
69,565
47,196
150,102
(17,048)

3,281,939
(519,512)
847,443
(1,214,601)
(538,753)
133,516
1,900
188,821
(12,008)

257,852
(1,126)
(2,822,738)
450,599
(1,782,602)
(116,440)

1,117,855
(1,919,757)
(83,772)
1,270,800
(1,782,602)
-

4,930,138

3,308,487

41. CORRECTION OF ERROR
Restated the prior year figures for 2018/2019
The prior year figures were restated due to entries not captured in the correct period resulting in the following adjustments
for 2018/2019.
Medical Aid Contribution Expenses for 2018/2019 - increase medical expense by R 40 277.00
In 2018/2019 the staff that were medical board, their medical aid contribution was not appearing on the payroll report
therefore resulting in the expense not being accounted for in the correct period.
Conference Expenses for 2018/2019 increased by R 3 000.00
In 2018/2019, an amount of R 3 000.00 was not taken into account at year end the entry was adjusted after investigation
was done.
Revenue for Conference for 2018/2019 increased by R391.00
An amount of R 391.00 was recorded between VAT Control Account and Conference Revenue.
Adjustment to useful lives for Property Plant and Equipment resulted in a decrease to depreciation for 2018/2019 as
per assets category listed below:
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-

46,083
26,857
353
14,265
7,938
(72,499)
36,356
2,416
(32,697)
(11,034)
(134,356)
57,521
(6,457)
(65,254)

-

40,277
3,000

-

(65,254)
(22,368)

-

(42,886)
65,254
22,368

41. CORRECTION OF ERROR (continued)
Accommodation Facilities
Boats
Firearms
Cleaning & Catering
Displays
Fencing & Signage
Garden Equipment
Radios
Motor Vehicles
Office Equipment
Plant & Machinery
Security
Visitor Facilities

The correction of error can be summarised as follows:
Effect on Statement of Comprehensive Income 2018/2019
Increase in employee costs
Increase in conference local expenses
Increase in conference revenue
Decrease in depreciation

-

Effect on the Statement of the Financial Position
Effect on the Statement of Financial Position
Decrease in Accumulated Depreciation

(391)

Correction of error relating to prior years
The correction of error was incurred due to entries not captured in the correct period resulting in an adjustment being done
for the prior year opening balances and the retained account.
Index Property - R13 741.55
In 2017/2018, Index Property was appointed the agent to collect the rent from the tenant for Msinsi Holdings. Instead of
Index Property invoicing Msinsi monthly for the expense, the amount was off set against the money owed to Msinsi. Msinsi
requested for the tax invoice and account for the expense in the correct period which is resulting in the prior year error
adjustment.
Discovery Paid EThekwini the Electricity Account – R19 938.45
In 2017/2018 Discovery paid the EThekwini electricity account on behalf of Msinsi Holdings and the deducted the amount
owed from the rent.
Interest Received from Discovery – R5 082.22
In 2017/2018 an amount of R 5 082.22 was received from Discovery and this amount was allocated to the debtor without
the correct entry being processed.
Bank Charges Correction – R 712.44
The bank charges and the Input Vat for Index Property account was not recorded but deducted from the debtor’s payment.
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41. CORRECTION OF ERROR (continued)
Rental Deposit – R34 805.60
The rental deposit for Discovery was refunded by the transferring attorney during the purchase of the Head Office building,
this amount was recorded in error under the insurance expense account, and this amount should be recorded under the
deposit account resulting in an adjusting entry for the prior period.
Debtors Tax Invoice Duplicated – R 9 491.14
A debtor was incorrectly raised in during 2016 for an amount of R 9 491.14
Adjustment to useful lives for Property Plant and Equipment resulted in a decrease to depreciation for assets
category listed below:
Accommodation Facilities
Boats
Firearms
Cleaning & Catering
Display
Fencing & Signage
Garden Equipment
Radios
Motor Vehicles
Office Equipment
Plant & Machinery
Security
Visitor Facilities

-

908,116
317,220
2,750
154,912
42,588
371,593
161,361
12,058
1,256,868
560,942
1,068,287
286,475
22,872

-

5,166,042

The correction of error can be summarised as follows:
Effect on Statement of Financial Position
Decrease in accumulated depreciation
Effect on Statement of Financial Position

-

Effect on Statement of Changes in Equity
Increase in Retained Income
Decrease in Retained Income

-
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Revenue
Chalets/Lodges - Eco Tourism
Campsites- Eco - Tourism
Eco - Tourism - Other
Boat Launching Fee
Tented Accommodation
Special Events Area - Eco Tourism
Boat Locker
Conferences - Eco Tourism
Gate Entry Revenue - Eco Tourism
Hunting
Environmental Management Fees
Wild Card Revenue - Eco Tourism
17

2,149,952
1,402,175
824,793
464,061
247,522
600,439
471,670
431,381
2,026,166
183,217
54,244,396
2,919,845

2,967,355
1,675,037
936,484
487,174
332,322
636,137
414,528
590,153
2,554,450
129,913
42,189,000
3,394,912

65,965,618

56,307,465

Other income
Rental Income

18

118,780

603,578

Sundry Income

18

1,143,919

196,667

1,262,699

800,245

163
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Detailed Income Statement
Figures in Rand

2020

Operating expenses
Advertising and Promotions
Alien Plant
Amortisation
Animal expenses
Audit fees
Allowance for Credit Losses
Bank charges
Body Corporate Levies
Conference - local
Conferences expenses
Consulting fees
Consumables
Depreciation
Directors Emoluments
Directors Expense
Displays/exhibitions
Electricity/Water and Rates
Environmental Education
Events
Fuel
Gas Supplies
Insurance
Kiosk Purchases
Laundry and Cleaning
Lease of office equipment
IT expenses
Lease rentals on operating lease
Licenses
Legal Costs
Loss on write off on moveable assets
Postage
Printing and Stationery
Private Security
Protective Clothing and Uniforms
Public Relations
SHEQ
Repairs and Maintenance
Salaries and Wages
Security levy (PSIRA)
Skills Development Levy
Staff Bursary
Staff Recruitment
Staff Training and Development
Staff Welfare
Subscriptions and Membership
Sundry Expenses
Telephone and Fax
Travel and Accommodation- local
Visitor Facilities
WCA Contributions
Wild Card Expenses

508,141
1,753,234
150,102
2,306,663
69,565
321,558
33,806
40,760
179,766
309,638
135,125
3,589,851
279,500
10,750
2,411,885
7,108
895,215
43,591
6,943
55,512
402,694
279,064
56,160
15,075
47,196
335
246,294
1,820,616
370,325
59,951
2,158,165
40,518,966
668
333,268
200,450
53,221
256,415
305,101
274,790
134,843
561,214
109,395
60,310
623,228
741,107

164

2019
Restated *

524,026
1,122,951
188,821
29,890
911,364
133,516
352,520
135,224
81,089
233,611
247,907
32,563
3,281,939
379,723
7,089
87,865
1,799,512
1,581
36,549
1,105,904
62,075
99,060
105,838
344,084
245,299
6,729
147,190
87,851
356,309
1,900
72
286,213
1,617,905
240,946
18,700
2,258,458
35,406,568
7,664
309,089
29,300
5,190
465,222
98,965
239,914
193,635
565,955
117,539
113,085
416,756
915,647
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Figures in Rand

2020

2019
Restated *

(62,737,564) (55,456,802)
Operating profit
Finance income
Finance Costs

23
24

4,490,757
699,585
(802,275)

1,650,909
519,152
(847,443)

Fair value adjustments

19

(883,629)

1,214,601

(986,319)

886,310

Profit for the year

3,504,436

165

2,537,219
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